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THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

New Hamnshive

Deportment of Transportation

WILLIAM CASS, P.E.
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council May 26, 2015

State House
Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into an agreement with Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. (Vendor 177195), Berlin, NH, for an amount not to exceed $920,818 for public transportation
services in the North Country region, for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2017, effective upon approval
by Governor and Council. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this agreement is available in the fiscal year 2016 and 2017 budget, contingent upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds, with the authority to adjust encumbrances in each of the State fiscal years
through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

FY 2016 FY 2017
04-96-96-964010-2916
Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $472,449 $448,369
EXPLANATION

The Department has approved requests for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funding from Tri-County

| Community Action Program, Inc. to assist in the provision of public transit service in the North Country region,
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is a private, non-profit organization providing rural public
transportation services for the general public and seniors and individuals with disabilities in Coos and Grafton
Counties as North Country Transit (NCT) and Carroll County as Carroll County Transit (CCT). This agreement
with Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. combines three separate FTA grant programs as follows:
Section 5311 Formula Grants for Rural Areas Program - $918,738; Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors
and Individuals with Disabilities capital program - $800; Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities program - $1,280.
The details of each grant are provided below.

NCT provides public transportation in Berlin-Gorham, Lancaster-Whitefield-Littleton, and northern Coos County.
CCT’s Blue Loon buses provide public transportation in southern Carroll County. The bus schedules for Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc. are attached to this Agreement.

The Department’s proposed FY 2016 and 2017 operating budget includes funds from the FTA Section 531 1
Formula Grants for Rural Areas Program (Section 5311) that provides funds for capital, planning and operating
assistance for public transportation in rural areas with populations of less than 50,000. Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. has provided public transportation utilizing these funds since 1993. The Department has
allocated federal funding for the SFY 2016-2017 biennium and the FTA Section 5311 allocation for Tri-County
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Community Action Program, Inc. is $918,738. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. will provide the

required matching funds, 20% for administration and/or capital and 50% for operations.

The Department released a public notice on December 29, 2014 announcing the availability of FTA Section 5311
funds and applications were due on February 9, 2015. The Department received applications for seven (7) rural
public transit systems and awarded funds to each transportation system. The seven (7) public transit systems are

as follows:

" Transi System T Applleant
Advance Transit (AT) Advance Transit
Concord Area Transit (CAT) Community Action Programs Belknap-Merrimack Counties
Winnipesaukee Transit System (WTS) Community Action Programs Belknap-Merrimack Counties
Community Alliance Transportation
Services (CATS) Community Alliance for Human Services
City Express VNA (@ Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services
North Country Transit (NCT) Tri-County Community Action Program
Carroll County Transit (CCT) Tri-County Community Action Program

An evaluation committee that consisted of Frederick Butler (NHDOT Rail & Transit, Public Transportation
Administrator), Michael Pouliot (NHDOT Rail & Transit, Transportation Specialist) and Carol Spottiswood
(NHDOT Rail & Transit, Transportation Project Coordinator) reviewed, evaluated and scored Section 5311

applications based on criteria as indicated in the application materials and the Department’s State Management

Plans for FTA programs. Every application met the Department’s criteria for inclusion in its SFY 2016-2017

public transit funding plan and will be awarded separate amounts for the aforementioned transit systems. The

evaluation matrix and scores are provided below for reference:

RIS 0 Fvaluation Criteria. S 'Weight
: The proposed service effectively addresses a demonstrated community need, and/or the proposed 15%
1 |service is a continuation or expansion of existing services. ’
' The applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to operate its service. 15%
3 +{The applicant has successful experience in providing transportation services. 15%
The application shows coordination with other transportation providers in the service area: public, 10%
nonprofit, and for-profit. ’
The applicant demonstrates involvement in and support for the project, financial and otherwise, on 10%
~/Ithe part of citizens and local government. °
+{The applicant demonstrates effort to involve the private sector in the delivery of transportation 10%
services. ’
The applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and effectiveness, measured in
ridership, service miles and hours, costs, and fare recovery. New applicants must demonstrate the 15%
ability to measure performance and achieve goals.
*|The applicant complies with relevant federal and state regulations, and has a history of compliance 10%
“jwith regulations and reporting requirements. °




TransitSystem 0 o e Average Score -
Advance Transit 91.7%
Concord Area Transit 89.2%
Winnipesaukee Transit System 86.5%
Carroll County Transit 86.3%
City Express 86.3%
Community Alliance Transportation Services 85.8%
INorth Country Transit 82.0%

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. has also been awarded FTA Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of
Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities (Section 5310) capital program funds in the amount of $800 to fund a
replacement computer.

The Department released a public notice on September 25, 2013 announcing the availability of funding for
accessible vehicles and other capital equipment from the FTA Section 5310 capita! program. Proposals were
solicited from eligible private nonprofit organizations or State or local governmental authority that is a designated
coordinated service provider. Project awards were based on the applicant’s ability to promote coordinated
transportation services while providing service to a wide range of geographical regions as well as minority and
disadvantaged groups.

Seven providers applied by the November 15, 2013 deadline and six transit providers were awarded funds for
approved projects that included replacement vehicles and/or capital equipment. The replacement vehicles, which
are owned by the transit provider with NHDOT as lien holder, will be procured by NHDOT. The six providers
are: Community Partners, Homemakers Health Services, Lamprey Health Care, Grafton County Senior Citizens
Council, Tri-County Community Action Program Inc. and VNA at HCS.

The Section 5310 funding awarded to Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is for the procurement of one
(1) replacement computer, The total project cost is $1,000, which includes $800 (80%) FTA Section 5310 funds
and $200 (20%) agency match. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. will procure the replacement
computer following Federal procurement guidelines.

The project evaluation committee consisted of two Department staff from the Bureau of Rail and Transit:
NHDOT Rait & Transit, Fred Butler (Public Transportation Administrator) and NHDOT Rail & Transit, Karen
Jennison (Transit Grants Coordinator). Each reviewer evaluated and scored applications based on criteria as
indicated in the application materials. Six of the seven applications met the Department’s criteria for inclusion in
its public transit funding plan and will be awarded separate amounts for the aforementioned transit systems. The
evaluation matrix and scores are provided below for reference:

-1 1 The proposed request effectively addresses a demonstrated community need. 15%
s The applicant's request has been identified in a capital or locally developed coordination plan. 5%
" | The applicant has successful experience in providing transportation services or the applicant 10%
3 | has outlined how the new service will be successful.
| The applicant shows a willingness to utilize vehicle(s) for coordination in the service area and o
1. : . e . ST 10%
4 | is involved with Regional Coordinating Council(s) and their activities.




| The applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and effectiveness, measured in
| ridership, service miles and hours and costs. New applicants must demonstrate the ability to 15%

; 5 | measure performance and achieve goals.
| The applicant has identified the financial ability to provide required match and on-going

6. | maintenance of the vehicle(s). 10%
.| The applicant identified how. the proj.ect meets the n_eeds and strateg_i'es addressed in the locally 10%

- 7| developed Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan.
g -} The applicant demonstrated it will meet minimum mileage requirements. 5%
"9 | Elderly and disabled citizens have full access to the applicant's services 10%

| The applicant complies with relevant Federal and state regulations, and has a history of
| compliance with regulations, reporting requirements, and maintaining vehicles per OEM 10%
10 | guidelines.

Transit System = . e R AT . Average Score
VNA at HCS 89.5%
Homemakers 87.8%
Community Partners 86.8%
GCSCC Littleton 86.8%
GCSCC Upper Valley 86.8%
Lamprey 84.8%
Tri-County CAP 79.5%

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. has also been awarded FTA Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities
program funds in the amount of $1,280 for the purchase of two (2) replacement computers.

The Department released a public notice on July 17, 2014 announcing the availability of funding from the Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities program. Proposals were solicited from
eligible public agencies and private nonprofit organizations engaged in public transportation services. Project
awards were based on the applicant’s ability to sustain existing public transit service, enhance service through
expansion or improvement, and attract new riders to public transit as well as prior compliance with Federal
requirements.

Six transit agencies applied by the August 15, 2014 deadline and all six transit agencies were awarded funds for
eligible projects. The six transit agencies are: Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST),
Advance Transit, Inc., Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc., Community Alliance of
Human Services, VNA @ HCS, and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Section 5339 funding awarded to Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is for the procurement of two (2)
replacement computers. This project is included in Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.’s long term
capital plan on file with the Department.

The total project cost for the computers is $1,600, which includes $1,280 (80%) FTA 5339 funds and $320 (20%)
agency match, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. will procure the replacement computers following
Federal procurement guidelines.

The project evaluation committee consisted of three Department staff from the Bureau of Rail and Transit:
NHDOT Rail & Transit, Shelley Winters (Bureau Administrator), NHDOT Rail & Transit, Fred Butler (Public




Transportation Administrator) and NHDOT Rail & Transit, Karen Jennison (Transit Grants Coordinator). Each
reviewer evaluated and scored applications based on criteria as indicated in the application materials. Every
application met the Department’s criteria for inclusion in its public transit funding plan and will be awarded
separate amounts for the aforementioned transit systems. The evaluation matrix and scores are provided below for
reference:

71 | This capital request describes how it effectively addresses a demonstrated community need. 10%
n The applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to operate service 15%
.2 | associated with this capital request. ’
3| The applicant has successful experience in providing transportation services, 15%
The applicant demonstrates involvement in and support for the project, financial and
: otherwise, on the part of citizens and local government. (e.g., letters of support, willing to 10%
- 5 | provide local match >20%, etc.)
Is the request for a replacement or expansion? If replacement, has the existing vehicle or 10%

6 | facility to be replaced met its useful life?
'| The applicant articulates a long-term commitment to continue the project beyond the 10%
~ 7. availability of the requested grant funds, e.g., ongoing maintenance costs.

The applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and effectiveness, measured in
| ridership, service miles and hours, costs, and fare recovery. New applicants must demonstrate 15%
~ 8 | the ability to measure performance and achieve goals.

.| The applicant complies with relevant Federal and state regulations, and has a history of
.| compliance with regulations and reporting requirements. New applicants must demonstrate 15%
9 | sufficient resources for compliance.

Trausit System o AversgeSeore
Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation 91.0%
Advance Transit 85.5%
VNA @ Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services 83.7%
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties 82.0%
Community Alliance Transportation Services 82.0%
Tri-County Community Action Program 82.0%

In the event that Federal funds become unavailable, general funds will not be requested to support this program.

The Agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the Department will
verify the necessary funds are available pending enactment of the fiscal year 2016 and 2017 budget. Copies of the
fully executed agreement are on file at the Secretary of State’s Office and the Department of Administrative
Services’ Office, and subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the Department of
Transportation.

Y our approval! of this resolution is respectfully requested.
Sincerely,

%m Cass, P.E.

Assistant Commissioner

Attachments
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Print Form _’
- - - ORM NUMBER P-37 { version 1/09)
Subject: Tri-County Community Action Program - SFY 2016-2017
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
NH Department of Transportation PO Box 483, 7 Hazen Drive, Concord NH 03220-0483
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. él 31 Pleasant Street, Suite 100, Berlin NH 03570
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
603-752-1741 04-96-96-964010-29? 6~O?2§l Uune 30,2017 $920,818.00
1.8 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Michelle Winters, Bureau of Rail & Transit 603-271-2468
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
F
w Q/w { . Michael Coughlin, CEO

1.13  Acknowledgement: State of v , County of
= E NH | - E Coos

Cn 5-1-2015 | » before the undersigned officer, personaily appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfaciorily

A Ie b ~Y- T Y BT Lo Awmd slant LR § PP [ PP e iR
azsm_d in black 1.11. and a\.mu-leuEEu that s/he executed this document in the capacity

€
preven 1o be the person whose name is
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or

et f Panma - . ame a
ustice of the Peace SUZANNE C. FRENGH

:Z Notary Fubiic - New Hampstire
—~ ’ " \ ; Vi
(S 4 (/1/;.5_ e Lt hn

vty Commission Expires Juna 19, 2018
("1 132 Name and Tifle-0f Notary or Justice of the Peace

Suzanne C. ¥rench, Notary

1.14  State Agency Si 115 E_ilme and Tide of State Agency Signatory

/Z’?(e/ [/—\ / %ﬁoﬂ (. b[f'o/hﬁf} ) Jjj veetn"

1.16  Approval by the N.H. Department &f Administration, Division of Personnel {if applicable)

By: Director, On:

t.17 Approval by thesAttorney Genggal (Form, Subgtance and Execution)
By: m /ﬂ///\x ’ On: S/lg/[g

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
i0 the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall bave no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and conlinued appropriaiion
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this’ Agreement iramediately upen
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not he required tn transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whaiever nature incurred by the Contracior in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITHLAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws,

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.FR. Part 60}, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue 10
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Cuniracior's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,

and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Coniractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necassary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified 10 perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do <o under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whor it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shali survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials W
Date_%*]*



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination:
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Defuult and suspending all payments 1o be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 reat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of i
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

5. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION,

5.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “dara” shatl mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agrezment, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings. pictorial reproductions, drawings. analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, compuier
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shail be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the eveat of an early iermination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™} describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shal be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nar
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12, ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFLCATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmiess the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and ali losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
coniained shail be deemed 1o constiluie & waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is herehy
reserved to the State, This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination ol this Agreement.

14, INSURANCE.

14,1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insuranve:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not tess than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount aot
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
4.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14,1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H, Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire,

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
idenrified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s} of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be

Contractor Initials WAL~
Date -1 -




attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
{10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
{“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subiect to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N H.RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference, The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums ot for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Warkers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

i6. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failuwe by ihe Staic o

be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the

nall

on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shal! be deemed 10 have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

8. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and

T

Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19, CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual

intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the imterpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary 1o any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT

EXHIBIT A Scope of Services
EXHIBIT B Budget

EXHIBIT C Special Provisions
EXHIBIT D Vehicle Inventory

Certificate of Good Standing
Certificate of Corporate Vote
Certificate of Insurance
Unified Protective Arrangement
Federal Clauses and Federal Certifications
Soetal Service Documenis (o mclude:
| n SRR I B o S
FilldliCldd I"-.C{ L
Board of Directors

Key Personnel and salaries
Resumes

Quarterly Monitoring Report Form
Charter Report Form

NTD Report Form

Bus Schedule(s)







EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor, Tri-County Community Action Program, shall provide the following
public transit service(s):

A.1.A Fixed route, demand-responsive, and/or route deviation public transit services in

A.lB

A2

A3

A4

Coos County to include the towns of Carroll, Clarksville, Colebrook, Columbia,
Dalton, Dummer, Errol, Gorham, Jefferson, Lancaster, Milan, Northumberland,
Pittsburg, Randolph, Shelburne, Stark, Stewartstown, Stratford, Whitefield and the
City of Berlin; Grafton County to include the towns of Bethlehem, Franconia,
Lincoln, Lisbon, Littleton, Sugar Hill, and Woodstock, as detailed in the “Project
Description™ of the Contractor’s application to the New Hampshire Department of
Transportation, Bureau of Rail and Transit (hereinafter “NHDOT™ for Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5311 funding including a map of service
areas and fare structure,

Fixed route, demand-responsive, and/or route deviation public transit services in
Carroll County to include the towns of Albany, Conway, Madison, Ossipee,
Moultonborough, Sandwich, Tamworth, Tuftonboro and Wolfeboro as detailed in
the “Project Description” of the Contractor’s FTA Section 5311 application to the
NHDOT.

The Commissioner of the Department of Transportation or the Commissioner’s

additional transportation services or to reduce iransportation services provided
under this contract. Any alterations to such transportation services shall be
submitted in writing by the Commissioner to the Contractor. The Contractor shall
implement the alterations within thirty (30) days unless otherwise agreed by the
Commissioner and the Contractor.

The Contractor may request to revise transportation services, as submitted in the
Contractor’s grant application to the NHDOT, to add, reduce or adjust
transportation services provided under this contract. Any alterations to such
transportation services shall be submitted in writing by the Contractor to the
Commissioner for approval. Upon approval of the Commissioner, the Contractor
shall implement any alterations within thirty (30} days uniess otherwise agreed by
the Commissioner and the Contractor.

The Contractor shall not change, add, or delete any route or make any fare, service
or operating schedule adjustments without the prior written agreement of the
Commissioner, except in an emergency situation. In such an emergency, the
Contractor shall notify the Commissioner no later than the next working day
following the day of such changes. Such change shall be valid for five days;
thereafter, the written approval of the Commissioner shall be required.
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All project vehicles, including those Federally-funded vehicles outlined in Exhibit
D, Project Equipment, as identified by their Vehicle Identification Numbers, shall
be used in accordance with all applicable Federal and State laws.

The Contractor will procure replacement computers to assist with meeting the
mobility needs of Coos and Carroll County. Funding was awarded from the FTA
Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
program for one (1) replacement computer not to exceed $800 and FTA Section
5339 Bus and Bus-Related Facilities Program for two (2) replacement computers
not to exceed $1,280. Federal funds will provide 80% of the cost and the Contractor
will pay the remaining 20% match.




EXHIBIT B

BUDGET
B.1 The Contract price, as defined in Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, is the FTA
Section 5311 and 5310 portion of the eligible project costs. Federal funds are
granted as follows:
COOS COUNTY CARROLL COUNTY
SECTION 5311 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2017
Administration $83,685 $83,685 $86,986 $64,986
Capital (PM) $36,236 $36,236 $25,006 $25,066
Operating $168,755 $165,755 $69,641 $69,641
TOTAL 5311 $288.,676 $288,676 $181,693 $159,693
SECTION 5310
1 ea. Replacement Computer $800
SECTION 5339
2 ea. Replacement Computers $640 $640
TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDS $200,116 $288,676 $182.333 $156,693

B2

B.3

B4

B.5
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Not less than fourteen days prior to the submission of the Contractor's first request
for FTA Section 5311 reimbursement, the Contractor shall submit to the
Commisstoner a budget incorporating ali funds to be expended in the provision of

approval of the Commissioner. Budget revisions may only request the transfer of
tunds within a category or between categories with the same matching ratio.

The Contractor may seek reimbursement only for eligible expenses listed in the
budget and detail-of-cost form provided by the NHDOT.

At the sole discretion of the Commissioner, the Contractor may carry forward any
unexpended portion of the federal funds included in the Contract Price to a
subsequent contract, if any, between the NHDOT and the Contractor.

The Contractor shall submit bid documentation (which must be in compliance with
FTA Third Party Procurement guidelines) and an invoice to the NHDOT for
reimbursement of eligible project expenses after procurement of the approved item.







EXHIBIT C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

C.1. Amend P-37 Section 2. “EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO BE
PERFORMED?” by adding the following:

2.1  The Contractor may change services only with the prior written agreement of the State and in
accordance with applicable Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requirements.

C.2.  Amend P-37 Section 5. “CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/PAYMENT” by adding the
following:

n
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lowable operating

able adm . Operaiing,
administrative and capital costs are identified in Exhibit B. The Contractor shall provide and
document the availability of local funds sufficient to meet the project cost in excess of the
Contract Price Limitation.

The amount paid by the

State to the Co
costs less fare revenues plus 80% of allow

5.6  In the event that revenues exceed the total allowable costs, said revenues in excess of total
allowable costs shall be placed in an interest bearing account within 30 days of the Compietion
Date and made available to the State up

[

=]
=N
T

3
1)
3
o

5.7 The Contractor shall submit a request for payment to the State on a form specified by the State
on a monthly or quarterly basis, together with all information to support the request. Such
requests for payment shall be properly compieted and signed. Requests for payments must be
for allowable costs only as defined in 2 CFR Part 200, No requests for advance payment will
be accepted by the State,

5.8 Upon receipt of the request for payment, the State shall review the request to determine the
allowability of costs. In connection with this review, the State may demand proeduction of (and
the Contractor shali produce) and inspect any documents and records described in Section 5.

i
o

Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records required
by the State, the State shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount due and cwing
to the Contractor and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions of this Agreement.
Contract reimbursements shall not exceed 50% of the total contract amount in any given
quarter.

3.10  Final Payment. Satisfactory acceptance by the State and FTA of all reports required by this
Agreement is a condition precedent to final payment (i.e., payment for the last month or
portion thereof of this Agreement). All reports will be prepared to the satisfaction of the State
and Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The final payment may be retained and withheld
pending receipt and satisfactory acceptance of all reports required by this Agreement and
resolution of all pending matters.

C3. Amend P-37 Section 6. “COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY” by adding the following:




6.4

6.5

6.6
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9.4
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9.7

9.8

9.9

The Contractor shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

The Contractor shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all
qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color,
age, creed, sex or national origin.

The provisions of 2 CFR 200, shall apply to local administration of this agreement and any
subcontracts under this agreement.

Amend P-37 Section 9. “DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/PRESERVATION” by adding
the following:

The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of this

agreement:

a) Except for its own internal use, the Contractor may not publish or reproduce such data in
whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Contractor authorize others to do
so, without the written consent of the State, until such time as the FTA may have either
released or approved the release of such data to the public.

b) As authorized by 2 CFR 200, the FTA reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to authorize others to use,
for Federal purposes, any work developed under a grant, cooperative agreement, sub-grant,
or third party contract, irrespective of whether a copyright has been obtained; and any
rights of copyright to which a recipient, sub-recipient, or third party contractor purchases
ownership with Federal assisiance,

Contractor understands and agrees that in addition to the rights set forth in 9.4 (b) above, FTA
may make available to any recipient, subgrantee, contractor or subcontractor its license in the
copyright to the date derived under this Agreement or a copy of the data first produced under

this Agreement.

It is FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the

The Contractor shall indemnify, save and hold harmless the State and United States, their
officers, agents and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any
liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any wiliful or intentional violation of the
proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation,

reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under this Agreement.

Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license to the United States under any patent or
bhe construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to the United
States under any patent.

Sections 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 above are not applicable to material furnished to the Contractor by
the State or United States and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement;
provided that such incorporated material is identified by the Contractor at the time of delivery
of such work.

In the event that the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under that
project shall become subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the State
or FTA may direct.




C.5. Amend P-37 Section 10. “TERMINATION" by adding the following:

10.1 The termination report must be accepted by the State and the Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) prior to final payment.

10.2  Termination; Liability. In the event of termination under Section 4 or 10.4 of this Agreement,
the acceptance of a Termination Report by the State shall in no event relieve the Contractor
from any and all liability for damages sustained or incurred by the State as a result of the
Contractor's breach of its obligations hereunder, including refund of any federal funds required
by FTA.

10.3 Completion of Services; Payment of Price. Excepting those obligations of the Contractor
which, by the terms of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Date, upon the
completion of the Services and upon payment of the Contract Price, this Agreement, and ail
obligations of the parties hereunder, shall cease and shall be without recourse to the parties
hereto.

10.4 Termination for Convenience. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary,
either the State or, except where notice of default has been given to the Contractor hereunder,
the Contractor may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written
notice.

C.6. Amend P-37 Section 12. “ASSIGNMENTS/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS™ by adding the
following:

12.1  The Contractor shall cause the provisions of this contract to be inserted in all subcontracts for
any work covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each
subcontractor; provided, however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to
subcontractors for standard commercial supplies or raw materials. The Contractor shall take
such action with respect to any subcontract as the State may direct as a means of enforcing
such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance. The Contractor shail ensure that any
subcontractor has obtained all licenses, permits or approvals required for the performance of

contract services.

C.7. Amend P-37 Section 14. “INSURANCE" by adding the foliowing:

14.1.1.a. The State of New Hampshire, Department of Transportation has accepted the General
Liability insurance of $1,000,000 per occurrence, $3,000,000 General Aggregate and
$2,000,000 per occurrence umbrella liability for Tri-County Community Action Program in
fulfillment of the requirements of Section 14.1.1 General Liability Insurance of the P-37 form.

C.R  Amend P37 by addin

25. DEFINITIONS

ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are incurred in the performance of the Services described
in Exhibit A and which satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200.

FTA: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federa) Transit Administration

PROJECT APPLICATION: The narrative, charts, figures and/or maps submitted to the
State detailing the scope of the public transportation program of the Contract as modified and
approved by the State.




C.9.
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REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation
services being provided by the Contractor. Revenues also include funds from contracts,
purchase of service agreement, and excess matching funds that directly benefit the
transportation service.

SECTION 5311: Section 5311 of the Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended.

STATE: The State of New Hampshire, acting through the Department of Transportation,
Bureau of Rail and Transit.

Amend P-37 by adding “ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS” as Section 26:

Ledgers. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain ledger sheets for each
budget category. Entries shall be made and shall refiect the financial activities of the Contracrtor.
The ledger sheet must be in a form approved by the State. The ledger will indicate the funds
remaining in each line item of the Contract Budget at the beginning of each month. Entries shall
be made on a running basis and carried over to the following month; that is, figures will be
brought forward cumulatively. Contractor shall also prepare and submit to the State a profit and
loss statement quarterly if such information is not provided with invoices.

Accounts Receivable. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall deposit all revenue in an interest-
bearing account with a banking institution in this State. Contractor shall prepare and maintain

l’CC@lpT vouchers for all revenue, lmmealately upon recelpt Contractor and/or subcontracior shail
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receipt number appearing in the Ledger shali correapund to the receipt voncher number. A
receipt voucher must be completed on a form approved by the State and shall identify each
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all prep
of funds. The voucher shall include the following imormatlon and shall be prepared on a form
approved by the State: The Division and account numbers from which the funds will be drawn,
the date of expenditure, a voucher number running in sequence, and any appropriate comments
supporting the expenditure of funds (e.g., invoices and payroll vouchers). All invoices received
by the Contractor shall be checked for accuracy and allowability. Each invoice must be approved
for payment by the Contract Manager. Immediately upon payment, Contractor and/or
subcontractor shall make entries to the appropriate ledger sheets documenting payment. (Each

subcontractor shall identify a Contract Manager).

TR

Voucher and Receipt Register. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain
two registers, which will contain a running total of all payable receipt vouchers. The registers
will provide a summary of voucher or receipt numbers, amount and purpose of action. No
self-designated abbreviations are to be used.

Check Register. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall maintain a check register. This register is
also considered a book of original entry, and is posted to the ledger immediately.

Time Sheet, Taxes, and Benefits. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall require each of its
employees to submit weekly time reports designating work performed and time spent on such
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C.10.

27.

work. The contractor shall summarize time reports by task and apply employee's rates of pay to
the hours worked. The Contract Manager shall review completed and signed time reports, and
cause them to be posted to the appropriate category in the general ledger. The Contractor shall
maintain records of employee payroll and benefits and shall post this information to the
appropriate category in the general ledger. The Contract Manager shall ensure that all payments
are on a timely basis.

Reimbursements. Prior to the fifteenth day of each month, the Contractor shall submit a
description of Contract activities, in a format as required by the State. Should the Contractor
show a profit for any month, the Contractor shall apply the amount of profit against subsequent
reimbursement requests. The Contractor shall agree to provide information in addition to the
monthly narrative at such times and in such manner as the State may require, and to prepare any
reports which may be requested by the State including but not limited to a final or termination
report if operations cease.

Mainterance of Records. The Contractor shall keep and maintain the records, documents, and
accounts described herein for a period of three years after the FTA grant is closed. The
Contractor shall maintain, and make available to the State and FTA, records relating to

complaints and comments received from the public. In the event the State disputes the
Contractor's operations or records as submitted for payment or otherwise, final resolution shall
rest with the State.

Audits and Inspections. Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date, and for a period
of three (3) years afier the FTA grant is closed or the date of resolution of all matiers relating to
this Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Contractor's normal business hours,
and as often as the State or FTA may demand. the Contractor shall make available to the State
and FTA or their designees all records pertalning to matters covered by this Agreement. The
Contractor shall permit the State and FTA to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to
make audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, pavroils, records of personnel, [rata (as defined
in P-37 section 9.1) and other information relating to 2ll matters covered by this Agreement. A
used in this paragraph, "Contractor" includes all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with,
controiled by, or under common ownership with, the entity identified as the Contractor in 1.3 of

P-37.

(%]

Independent Audit. The Contractor shall submit one audit done by one Certified Public
Accountant (CPA) for the entire project, or, as the State may require, for any part of the project
upon demand. Monies required for payment of the audit shall be set aside in the Contract Budget

for that specific purpose.

.10.1. In the event the audit reveals that monies are due and owing to the State from the

Contractor, for whatever reasons, the Contractor shall pay to the State such sums within
thirty (30) days of the audit date.

The Contractor shall submit quarterly performance and charter activity reports within 30 days of
the end of each quarter and shall submit any forms, information or reports required by the State

to complete the FTA’s National Transit Database (NTD) reporting.

Amend P-37 by adding “PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY™ as Section 27:

PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY. The following terms and conditions
apply to all equipment and real property purchased in whole or in part with funds provided
through this or other Agreements between the State and the Contractor:




a. All procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular 4220.1F
and future amendments, and with Buy America requirements, 49 CFR Part 660.

b. All vehicles shall be purchased by the State, unless the Contractor has received prior
approval from the State to procure vehicles.

¢. All other equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred ($500) per unit shall be purchased
by the Contractor subject to the prior approval of the State.

d. Title to all project equipment shall be in the name of the Contractor; provided, however, that
in order to secure the complete performance of this Agreement, the Contractor shall give the
State a security interest in all such equipment at the time of purchase and shall execute !
financing statements and do all other acts necessary or useful to the perfection of that !
interest and the renewal thereof. In connection with the purchase of any motor vehicles ;
pursuant to this Agreement, the Contractor shall give the State a security interest in the
motor vehicles at the time of purchase and shall take all steps necessary to protect the
State’s security interest, including taking steps to identify the State as a lien holder of such
motor vehicles on the motor vehicle titles.

e. In the event that this agreement is terminated, all project equipment and property becomes
the property of the State and it is understood and agreed that legal title to such equipment
shall be transferred to the State as soon as feasible. Project equipment will be disposed of in _
accordance with FTA Circular 9040.1G, and the Section 5311 State Management Plan. D

C.11. Amend P-37 by adding “EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION™ as section 28:
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C.12. Amend P-37 by adding “EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE” as section 2%:

28. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. Contractor shall be responsible for the maintenance and
repair of all equipment used in the service described in Exhibit A. Contractor shall maintain all
such equipment at a high level of cleanliness, safety, and mechanical soundness. The
contractor shall certify proper maintenance procedures, i.e. strict compliance with the vehicle
preventive maintenance guidelines, on vehicle reports. All maintenance, repair and physical
improvement activities on equipment shall be conducted by the Contracior and at a location
specified by the Contractor. The Contractor shall notify the State of any changes in this
location. The Contractor further agrees to maintain, repair, or make any physical improvement
to equipment as requested by the State. The State, FTA and/or their designees shall have the
right to conduct periodic inspections for the purpose of confirming proper maintenance and
repair.

C.13. Amend P-37 by adding “REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS” as section 30:

30. REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS. The Contractor shali maintain a complete and up to
date record of all motor vehicle repairs, and shall make such records available to the State and
FTA upon demand.

C.14. Amend P-37 by adding “VEHICLE STORAGE” as section 31:




31. VEHICLE STORAGE. With respect to any motor vehicles purchased in whole or part under
this Agreement, or maintained under this Agreement, the Contractor shall park or garage each
vehicle so as to ensure maximum available protection and safety for each vehicle. The
Contractor shall also ensure that each vehicle will be parked or garaged in such a manner that
its daily operations are not impaired or curtailed by conditions of weather or any other
circumstances. The Contractor shall notify the State of the location of the garaging site and any
relocation.

C.15. Amend P-37 by adding “TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW?” as section 32:

32. TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW. The State may require participation in training
courses determined to be essential to FTA program management in this contract period and
may require participation mn such training programs as it deems necessary by drivers and other
employees involved in the transportation of the public. Training may include defensive driving,
passenger assistance, emergency procedures and periodic refresher training every three (3)
years. The Contractor agrees that the State shali have the righi to review the performance of ati
drivers who are employed in connection with this Agreement, and to disallow the use of any
driver whose performance as a driver is determined to be unsatisfactory by the State,

C.16. Amend P-37 by adding “SAFETY REQUIREMENTS?” as section 33;

33. SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. All project equipment shall be inspected and certified by the
Department of Safety, and shall meet 2ll apphcable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards
and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations as required by the United States Department of
Transportation, and by the New Hampshire Department of Safety under RSA 266:72-a, in the
purchase and operation of all project equipment.

The Contractor shall provide the State with full and prompt writien notification of any accident
invoiving any vehicle used in its services. In addition, the Contractor shall be responsible to
report any accident in compliance with State law.

The Contractor shall submit to the State by February 1[5 of each year a report covering the
previous vear (January 1 through December 31), summarizing the resuits of its alcohol misuse
prevention and anti-drug programs on FTA approved forms. This shall be in compliance with
49 CFR Part 655.

C.17. Amend P-37 by adding “SERVICE LIMITATIONS” as section 34:

34. SERVICE LIMITATIONS. The Contractor shall not engage in the provision of
transportation services other than those described in Exhibit A, or outside the service area

described in Exhibit A, without the written consent of the State and without obtaining the |
appropriate operating authority. The Contractor shall not engage in charter or school bus

operations except as permitted by 49 CFR Parts 604 and 605, respectively.

C.18. Amend P-37 by adding “CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS” as section 35:

35. CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS. Contractor warrants that with respect to the
Services to be performed, it has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals which are required
by any law, order or regulation of any authority, state or federal, or which may be necessary for
the performance of the Services hereunder. The Contractor warrants that all personnel engaged
in the Services shall be qualified to perform such Services, and shall be properly licensed and
authorized to perform such Services under all applicable laws.




C.19. Amend P-37 by adding “LABOR PROVISIONS” as section 36:

36. LABOR PROVISIONS. The Contractor agrees to adhere to the terms and conditions of the
Unified Protective Arrangement, Section 533(b) of 49 USC 53 or as amended, incorporated
herein for the protection of the employees of any employer providing transportation services
assisted by this Agreement, and the employees of any other surface transportation providers in
the transportation service area identified in Exhibit A. ;

C.20. Amend P-37 by adding “PATENT RIGHTS” as section 37:

37. PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Contractor is
conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under this Contract, which
invention, improvement or discovery may be patentable under the laws of the United States or ‘
any foreign country, the Contractor shall immediately notify the State and provide a detailed ‘
report. The rights and responsibilities of the Contractor and the State with respect to such ‘
invention, improvement, or discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable Federal
laws, regulations, policies and any waiver thereof.

C.21. Amend P-37 by adding “BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION” as section 38:
38. BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION. The Contractor warrants that it has not employed or
retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the
Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any

company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Contractor, any

fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifis or any other considerarticn, contingent upon ,
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or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or viclati :
warranty, the State chall have the right to annul this Agreement without lability or, in its b
discretion to deduct from the Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full

amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.
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ID NUMBER

2013 Ford Phoenix 8 & 2 gasoline
2011 Startrans Senator II bus 16&2
2011 Startrans Senator Il bus 16&2
2011 Startrans Senator H bus [6&2
2611 Startrans Senator I bus 16&2
2011 Intemmational Champion 24&2 bus
2011 International Champion 24&2 bus

2011 Eldorado Aerolite 8&2 Gas Bus

2010 Eidorado Aerolite 8&2 gas bus
2010 Eldorado Aerolite 8&2 gas bus
2010 Eldorado Aerolite §&2 gas bus
2009 Ford Eldorado Aerolite Diesel Engine
2009 Ford Eldorado Aerolite Diesel Engine

2009 Eldorado Aerolite Diesel

Monday, May 11, 2015

IFDEE3FL7DDA1956
IFDFE4FS6ADB01898
1IFDFE4FS2ADBO1896
|FDFE4FS0ADBO1895
IFDEF34FS4ADB01897
4ADRASAAMICI597224
4DRASAAM3CJI597225
IFDEE3FLOBDAT3420

IFDEE3FT ORDIATIAD]

TFDEF3FL2ADBO1489
IFDEE3FLOADBO01487
IFDEE3SFL7ADB01486
IFDEE33PS9DA25993
1IFDEE3SP79DA259%4
iIFDEE35P99DAS51108

TRI-COUNTY CAP

Total Vehicles 17
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State of Nefw Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY
CAP) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed May 8, 1965. T further certify
that it is in good standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and

paid the fees required by law.

vy yYye In TESTIMONY WHEREOQF, | hereto

= : set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 1 day of April, A.D. 2015

ey Bkl

William M. Gardner
Secrefary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Gary Coulombe, do hereby certify that:
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{Mame of *“w alected Officar of the Agency) cannst be confracy signaio=y!

1. t'am a duly elected Officer of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
{Agency Mams)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duty adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 9-23-2014:

iThv e
[R =T E})

RESOLVED: That the Chief Executive Officer

Thie of Conirgat Sin et
LR R N 1 =Y \.’!—i \.nL-J \

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency 1o enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications therelo, as he/she may deem necessary, desirabie or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been ameanded or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 1st day of May, 2015.

taate Contract Signad:

4. Michaet Coughlin _is the duly e}ected Chief Executive Officer

Iz

NAETe O Durte et J'La iy i i i Tiiie of Confract Sioneisng

of ithe Agency. o -

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

L=

County of Cons
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 1st day of
May, 2015,

By Gary Couiombe

Flome of Tigrimel Tifiac.
oo e R

Mmﬂwv st

- o
! J‘é/:a Y Fimbios dustioe of the =ezo)

Commission Expires: 6-19-18

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005




N e DATE (MM{DDIYYYY}
ACORLD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 5/1/2015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies} must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER GONIACT ¥aren Shaughnessy
FIAY/Cross Insurance PHONE e (603) 669-3218 FAIG, Noy: (603) 645-4331
1100 Elm Street | AppREss. kshaughnessy@crossagency. com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Manchester NH 03101 nsurer 4 Arch Ins Co 11150
INSURED wsurer B Maine Employers Mutual Ins Co.
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc INSURER € :
30 Exchange Street INSURER D -

INSURERE ;
Berlin NH 03570 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:CL1471714530 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TC THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED., NOTW(THSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM CR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT QR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED 8Y PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDLISUBR] POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR | WD POLICY NUMBER {MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DDFYYYY) LIMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EAGH OGCURRENGE s 1,000,000
DAMAGE T6 RENTED
X [ cOMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (£s occurrence) | 3 100,000
A | cLamsmaoe [ ] occur NCPCKGD328200 [7/22/2014 [7/1/2015 | vep exp any one person) | § 5,000
[ PERSONAL & ADV INJURY [ § 1,000,000
| GENERAL AGGREGATE g 3,000,000
GEN'L AGBREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 3,000,000
X | poLicy B LOC i
COMBINED GINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY Ea accident) 5 1,000,000
a X | any AUTO BODLLY INJURY {Per person} | §
ALLOWNED || SCHEDULED NORATTOR28200 /222012 7/T/201E | BODILY INJURY (Per accideny| &
— NON-QWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
HIRED AUTOS H AUTOS (Per accident) $
Linderinsured motorist $ 1 000,000
umereLLA LAE | X | qooum EACH DOCURBENCE $ 2,000 00O
B | X | Excess Las CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE § 2,000,000
peo | | retenmions MCFXS0228200 7/22/2014 [7/1/2015 S
WORKERS COMPENSATION 102801186 WG STATU- OTH-
B AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY A et x TORY LIMITS { ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE e (35.} WB E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? IEI NTA i . H/1/2018  R/1/2015 500,000
{Mandatory in NH) All officers included s /17201 E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYER $ 500,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS betow E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000
A |preofessional Liability kxcpcxcoszazoo [7/22/2014 [7/22/2035 | per Goowrence 51,000,000
Aggregate $3,000,000

DESCRIPTION QF OPERATIONS | LOCATIONS / V?HICLES {Attach ACORD 101, Additional RBI‘I"I!I:kE Schedule, [f more space is raquirad)
Re: No Country Transportastion Program. Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special

provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREGF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCOR N
State of NH ORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS

Dept of Transportation
PO Box 483 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

7 Hzzen Drive
Concord, NH 03302-0483 & e .

Laura Perrin/K$5 T DL e
ACORD 25 (2010/05) © 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. Ali rights reserved.

INSN25 2010081 01 Tha ANNPN nama and inan aro ranictarad markc nf ACNHRD

——j




UNIFIED PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENT
For Application to Capital and Operating Assistance Projects
PURSUANT TO SECTION 5333(b) OF
TITLE 49 OF THE U.S. CODE, CHAPTER 33
- January 3, 2011

The following language shall be made part of the Department of
Transportation’s contract of assistance with the Grantee, by reference;

The terms and conditions set forth below shall apply for the protection of the
transportation related employees in the transportation service area of the
Project. As a precondition of the release of assistance by the Grantee to any
additional Recipient under the grant, the Grantee shall incorporate this
arrangement into the contract of assistance between the Grantee and the
Recipient, by reference, binding the Recipient to these arrangements.

These protective arrangements are intended for the benefit of transit employees
in the service area of the project, who are considered as third-party
beneficiaries to the employee protective arrangements incorporated by
reference in the grant contract between the U.S. Department of Transportation

i . & s - A, + . e - 2 1 i
e Grantee, and the parties to the contract so signiiy by executng that

~
contract. Transit employees are also third-party beneficiaries to the protective

arrangements incorporated in subsequent contracts of assistance, pursuant to
the Department’s certification, between the Grantee and any Recipient.

. o a4 T o + it 1 P 3 = + 3 crrit} S~ T TE
Employees may assert claims through thewr representalive with Tespect o 1ne

protective arrangements under this provision. This clause creates no
independent cause of action against the United States Government.

The term “service area,” as used herein, includes the geographic area over
which the Project is operated and the area whose population is served by the
Project, including adjacent areas affected by the Project. The term “Union,” as
used herein, refers to any labor organization representing employees providing

public transportation services in the service area of a Project assisted under

the grant, inciuding both empioyees of the Recipient and employees of other

public transportation providers. The term “Recipient,” as used herein, shall

refer to any employer(s) receiving transportation assistance under the grant.
The term “Grantee,” as used herein, shall refer to the applicant for assistance;
a Grantee which receives assistance is also a Recipient.

(1) The Project shall be carried out in such a manner and upon such terms
and conditions as will not adversely affect employees of the Recipient and of
any other surface public transportation provider in the transportation service




area of the Project. It shall be an obligation of the Recipient to assure that any
and all transportation services assisted by the Project are contracted for and
operated in such a manner that they do not impair the rights and interests of
affected employees. The term "Project,” as used herein, shall not be limited to
the particular facility, service, or operation assisted by Federal funds, but shall
include any changes, whether organizational, operational, technological, or
otherwise, which are a result of the assistance provided. The phrase "as a
result of the Project,” shall, when used in this arrangement, include events
related to the Project occurring in anticipation of, during, and subsequent to
the Project and any program of efficiencies or economies related thereto;
provided, bowever, that volume rises and falls of business, or changes in
volume and character of employment brought about solely by causes other
than the Project {including any economies or efficiencies unrelated to the
Project) are not within the purview of this arrangement.

An employee covered by this arrangement, who is not dismissed, displaced
or otherwise worsened in his/her position with regard to employment as a
result of the Project, but who is dismissed, displaced or otherwise worsened
solely because of the total or partial termination of the Project or exhaustion of
Project funding shall not be deemed eligible for a dismissal or displacement
allowance within the meaning of paragraphs (6) and (7) of this arrangement.

{2) Where employees of a Recipient are represented for collective bargaining
purposes, all Project services provided by that Recipient shall be provided
under and in accordance with any collective bargaining agreement applicable
to such employees which is then in effect. This Arrangement does not create
any collective bargaining relationship where one dnes not already exist or
between any Recipient and the employees of another employer. Where the
Recipient has no collective bargaining relationship with the Unions
representing employees in the service area, the Recipient will not take any
action which impairs or interferes with the rights, privileges, and benefits
and/or the preservation or continuation of the collective bargaining rights of
such employees,

(3) All rights, privileges, and benefits (including pension rights and benefits) of
employees covered by this arrangement (including employees having already
retired) under existing collective bargaining agreements or otherwise, or under
any revision or renewal thereof, shall be preserved and continued; provided,
however, that such rights, privileges and benefits which are not foreclosed from
further bargaining under applicable law or contract may be modified by
collective bargaining and agreement by the Recipient and the Union involved to
substitute other rights, privileges and benefits. Unless otherwise provided,
nothing in this arrangement shall be deemed to restrict any rights the




Recipient may otherwise have to direct the working forces and manage its
business as it deems best, in accordance with the applicable collective
bargaining agreement.

(4) The collective bargaining rights of employees covered by this arrangement,
including the right to arbitrate labor disputes and to maintain union security
and checkoff arrangements, as provided by applicable laws, policies and/or
existing collective bargaining agreements, shall be preserved and continued.
Provided, however, that this provision shall not be interpreted so as to require
the Recipient to retain any such rights which exist by virtue of a collective
bargaining agreement after such agreement is no longer in effect.

The Recipient agrees that it will bargain collectively with the Uruon or
otherwise arrange for the continuation of collective bargaining, and that it will
enter into agreements with the Union or arrange for such agreements to be
entered into, relative to all subjects which are or may be proper subjects of
collective bargaining. If, at any time, applicable law or contracts permit or
grant 1o employees covered by this arrangement the right to utilize any
economic measures, ncthing in this arrangement shall be deemed to foreclose
the exercise of such right.

(S){g) The Recipient shall provide to all affected smployess sixty (60} das

1
>
notice of intended actions which may result in displacements or dismissals

o
rearrangements of the working forces as a result of the Project. In the case o

T
rearran f
employees represented by a Union, such notice shell be provided by certified
mail through their representatives. The niotice shall contain a full and
adequate statement of the proposed changes, and an estimate of the number of
empiovees affected by the intended changes, and the number and
classifications of any jobs within the jurisdiction and control of the Recipient,
including those in the employment of any entity beund by this arrangement

pursuant to paragraph {21}, available to be filled by such affected employees.

{5)(b) The procedures of this subparagraph shall apply to cases where notices,

ided under subparagraph Sla), invelve employees represented by a Uniuon

1 il &Y, =388
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for collective bargaining purposes. At the request of either the Recipient or the
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representatives of such employees, ucsutiauuua for the PUrposes 01 Ieadlling
agreement with respect to the application of the terms and conditions of this
arrangement shall commence immediately. These negotiations shall include
determining the selection of forces from among the mass transportation
employees who may be affected as a result of the Project, to establish which
such employees shall be offered employment for which they are qualified or can
be trained. If no agreement is reached within twenty (20} days from the

commencement of negotiations, any party to the dispute may submit the




matter to dispute settlement procedures in accordance with paragraph (15) of
this arrangement. Unless the parties otherwise mutually agree in writing, no
change in operations, services, facilities or equipment within the purview of
this paragraph (5) shall occur until after either: 1) an agreement with respect to
the application of the terms and conditions of this arrangement to the intended
change(s) is reached; 2) the decision has been rendered pursuant to the
dispute resolution procedures in accordance with paragraph (15) of this
arrangement; or 3} an arbitrator selected pursuant to Paragraph (13) of this
arrangement determines that the intended change(s) may be instituted prior to
the finalization of implementing arrangements.

(5}{c) In the event of a dispute as to whether an intended change within the
purview of this paragraph (5) may be instituted at the end of the 60-day notice
period and before an implementing agreement is reached or a final dispute
resolution determination is rendered pursuant to subparagraph (b), any
involved party may immediately submit that issue to the dispute resolution
process under paragraph (15} of this arrangement. In any such dispute
resolution procedure, the neutral shall rely upon the standards and criteria
utilized by the Surface Transportation Board {and its predecessor agency, the
Interstate Commerce Commission) to address the “preconsummation” issue in
cases involving employee protections pursuant to 49 U.S.C. Section 11326 (or
its predecessor, Section 5(2)(f) of the Interstats Commerce Act, as amended], If
the Recipient demonstrates, as a threshold matter in any such di spute
resolution process, that the intended action is a trackage rights, lease
proceeding or similar transaction, and not a merger, acquisition, consoclidation,
or other similar transaction, the burden shall then shift to the involved labor
organization{s) to prove that under the standards and criteria referenced abave,
the intended action should not be permitted to be instituted prior to the
effective date of a negotiated or arbitrated implementing agreement. If the
Recipient fails to demonstrate that the intended action is a trackage rights,
lease proceeding, or similar transaction, it shall be the burden of the Recipient
to prove that under the standards and criteria referenced above, the intended
action should be permitted to be instituted prior to the effective date of a
negotiated or arbitrated implementing agreement. For purpeses of any such
dispute resolution procedure, the time period within which the parties are to
respond to the list of potential neutrals submitted by the American Arbitration
Association shall be five (5) days, the notice of hearing may be given orally or
by facsimile, the hearing will be held promptly, and the award of the neutral
shall be rendered promptly and, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, no
later than fourteen (14) days from the date of closing the hearings, with five (5)
additional days if post hearing briefs are submitted by either party. The
intended change shall not be instituted during the pendency of any dispute
resolution proceedings under this subparagraph (c). -




(5){d) If an intended change within the purview of this paragraph (5} is
instituted before an implementing agreement is reached or a final decision is
rendered pursuant to subparagraph (b}, all employees affected shall be kept
financially whole, as if the noticed and implemented action has not taken
place, from the time they are affected until the effective date of an
implementing agreement or final decision. This protection shall be in addition
to the protective period defined in paragraph (14} of this arrangement, which
period shail begin on the effective date of the implementing agreement or final
dispute resolution determination rendered pursuant to subparagraph (b).

An employee selecting, bidding on, or hired to fill any position established
as a result of a noticed and implemented action prior to the consummation cf
an implementing agreement or final dispute resolution determination shall
accumulate no benefits under this arrangement as a result thereof during that
period prior to the consummation of an implementing agreement or final
decision pursuant to subparagraph (b).

(6){a) Whenever an employee retained in service, recalled to service, or
employed by the Recipient pursuant to paragraphs (5}, (7){¢], or {18) hereofis
placed in a worse position with respect to compensation as a result of the

Project, the employes shall be considered a "displaced employee”, and shall be
paid a monthly "displacement allowance” to be determined in accordance with

this paragraph. Said displacement allowance shall be paid to each displaced
employee during the protective period so long as the employee is unable, in the
exercise of his/her seniorty rights, to cbtain a position producing
compensation equal to or exceeding the compensation the employee received in
the position from which the employee was displaced, adjusted to reflect
subsequent general wage adjustments, including cost of living adjustments

where provided for.

(6)(b) The displacement aliowance shall be a monthly allowance determined by

computing the total compensation received by the employee, including vacation
AllArrrancrec anA mr\ﬂf‘?‘!l}?’ COMﬂPﬂQQ‘f“ihﬂ CJ'I'!Q?"Q‘I”‘\"‘PPS, al’\_d b_is/her tota_l timﬁ' paid_

allowances and month mpensation guarantee
for during the last twelve {12) months in which the employee performed
compensated service more than fifty per centum of each such menths, based
upon the employee’s normal work schedule, immediately preceding the date of
his/her displacement as a result of the Project, and by dividing separately the
total compensation and the total time paid for by twelve, thereby producing the
average monthly compensation and the average monthly time paid for. Such
allowance shall be adjusted to reflect subsequent general wage adjustments,
including cost of living adjustments where provided for. If the displaced

employee's compensation in his/her current position 1s less in any month




during his/her protective period than the aforesaid average compensation
(adjusted to reflect subsequent general wage adjustments, including cost of
living adjustments where provided for), the employee shall be paid the
difference, less compensation for any time lost on account of voluntary
absences to the extent that the employee is not available for service equivalent
to his/her average monthly time, but the employee shall be compensated in
addition thereto at the rate of the current position for any time worked in
excess of the average monthly time paid for. If a displaced employee fails to
exercise his/her seniority rights to secure another position to which the
employee is entitled under the then existing collective bargaining agreement,
and which carries a wage rate and compensation exceeding that of the position
which the employee elects to retain, the employee shall thereafter be treated,
for the purposes of this paragraph, as occupying the position the employee
elects to decline.

(6){c) The displacement allowance shall cease prior to the expiration of the
protective period in the event of the displaced employee's resignation, death,
retirement, or dismissal for cause in accordance with any labor agreement
applicable to his/her employment.

(7)(a&) Whenever any employee is laid off or otherwise deprived of employment
as a result of the Project, in accordance with any collective bargaining
agreement applicable to his/her employment, the employee shall be considered
a "dismissed employee" and shall be paid a monthly dismissal allowance to be
determined in accordance with this paregraph. Said dismissal allowance shall
[irst be paid to each dismissed employee on the thirtieth 130th) day following
the day on which the employee is "dismissed” and shall continue during the
protective period, as follow:

Employee's length of service

pricr to adverse effect Period of protection
1 day to 6 years equivalent period
6 years or more 6 years

The monthiy dismissal allowance shail be equivaient to one-twelfth (1/12th)
of the total compensation received by the empleyee in the last twelve (12
months of his/her employment in which the employee performed compensation
service more than fifty per centum of each such month based on the
employee’s normal work schedule to the date on which the employee was first
deprived of employment as a result of the Project. Such allowance shall be
adjusted to reflect subsequent general wage adjustments, including cost of
living adjustments where provided for.




(7)(b} An employee shall be regarded as deprived of employment and entitled to
a dismissal allowance when the position the employee holds is abolished as a
result of the Project, or when the position the employee holds is not abolished
but the employee loses that position as a result of the exercise of seniority
rights by an employee whose position is abolished as a result of the Project or
as a result of the exercise of seniority rights by other employees brought about
as a result of the Project, and the employee is unable to obtain another
position, either by the exercise of the employee’s seniority rights, or through
the Recipient, in accordance with subparag'raph (e). In the absence of proper
notice followed by an agreement or decision pursuant to paragraph (5) hereof,
no employee who has been deprived of employment as a result of the Project

shall be required to exercise his/her seniority rights to secure another position

in order to qualify for a dismissal allowance hereunder.

(7)(c) Each emplovee receiving a dismissal allowance shall keep the Recipient
informed as to his/her current address and the current name and address of
any other person by whom the employee may be regularly employed, or if the
emplovee is self-emploved.

7)(d) The dismissal allowance shall be paid to the regularly assigned
incumbent of the posmop abolished. If the pos1t10n of an employee is
bolished when the employee is absent from service, the employee will be
entitled to the dismissal allowance when the emplovee is available for servic
The employee tempaorarily filling said position at the time it was abolished will
be given a dismissal allowance on the basis of that position, until the regul
employee is available for service, and thereafter shall revert to the em yiuyee‘s
previous status and will be given the protections of the agreement in said
position, if any are due him/her.

e ——,

c.

(7){e) An employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall be subject to call to
return to service by the employee’s former employer, after being notified in
accordance with the terms of the then-existing collective bargaining agreement.
Prior to such call to return to work by his/her employer, the employee may be

wmcn tne employee 18 pnysmaily and menta.lly quaililed or tor Wmch the
employee can become qualified after a reasonable training or retraining period,
provided it does not require a change in residence or infringe upon the
employment rights of other employees under then-existing collective bargaining

agreements.

(7)(f) When an employee who is receiving a dismissal allowance again
commences employment in accordance with subparagraph {e) above, said
allowance shall cease while the employee is so reemployed, and the period of
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time during which the employee is so reemployed shall be deducted from the
total period for which the employee is entitled to receive a dismissal allowance.
During the time of such reemployment, the employee shall be entitled to the
protections of this arrangement to the extent they are applicable.

(7}{g) The dismissal allowance of any employee who is otherwise employed
shall be reduced to the extent that the employee’s combined monthly earnings
from such other employment or self-employment, any benefits received from
any unemployment insurance law, and his/her dismissal allowance exceed the
amount upon which the employee’s dismissal allowance is based. Such
employee, or his/her union representative, and the Recipient shall agree upon
a procedure by which the Recipient shall be kept currently informed of the
earnings of such employee in employment other than with the employee’s
former employer, including self-employment, and the benefits received.

(7)(h) The dismissal allowance shall cease prior to the expiration of the
protective period in the event of the failure of the employee without good cause
to return to service in accordance with the applicable labor agreement, or to
accept employment as provided under subparagraph (e} above, or in the event
of the employee’s resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause in
accordance with any labor agreement applicable to his/her employment.

(7)) A dismissed employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall actively seek

and not refuse other reasonably comparable employment offered him/her for |
which the employee is physically and mentally qualified and does not require a

change in the employee’s place of residence. Failure of the dismissed employee

to comply with this obligation shall be grounds for discontinuance of the

employee’s allowance; provided that said dismissal allowance shall not be

discontinued until final determination is made either by agreement between the

Recipient and the employee or his/her representative, or by final and binding

dispute resolution determination rendered in accordance with paragraph (15)

of this arrangement that such employee did not comply with this obligation.

(8) In determining length of service of a displaced or dismissed employee for
purposes of this arrangement, such employee shalil be given fuil service credits
in accordance with the records and labor agreements applicable to him/her
and the employee shall be given additional service credits for each month in
which the employee receives a dismissal or displacement allowance as if the

employee were continuing to perform services in his/her former position.

(9) No employee shall be entitled to either a displacement or dismissal
allowance under paragraphs (6} or (7) hereof because of the abolishment of a




position to which, at some future time, the employee could have bid, been
transferred, or promoted.

(10) No employee receiving a dismissal or displacement allowance shall be
deprived, during the employee’s protected period, of any rights, privileges, or
benefits attaching to his/her employment, including, without limitation, group
life insurance, hospitalization and medical care, free transportation for the
employee and the employee’s family, sick leave, continued status and
participation under any disability or retirement program, and such other
employee benefits as Railroad Retirement, Social Security, Workmen's
Compensation, and unemployment compensation, as well as any other benefits
to which the employee may be entitled under the same conditions and so long
as such benefits continue to be accorded to other employees of the bargaining
unit, in active service or furloughed as the case may be.

(11){a) Any employvee covered by this arrangement who is retained in the
service of his/her employer, or who is later restored to service after being
entitled to receive a dismissal allowance, and who is required to change the
peint of his/her emplovment in order to retain or secure active employment
with the Recipient in accordance with this arrangement, and who is required to
move his/her place of residence, shall be reimbursed for all expenses of moving
his/her househeld and other persenal effects, for the traveling expenses for the
emplovee and members of the employee’s immediate family, including living
expenses for the employee and the emplovee’s 1 i i

[y WL B e Lurbs T LS Craaa ahm WAl

<
I - - " o -
his/her own actual wage loss during the time necessary for such transfer and
for a reasonable time thereafter, not to exceed five (5) working days. The exact
extent of the responsibility of the Recipient under this paragraph, and the ways

and means of transportation, shall be agreed upon in advance between the
Recipient and the affected employee or the employee’s representatives.

(11){b} If any such employee is laid off within three (3] years after changing
his/her point of employment in accordance with paragraph (a) hereof, and
elects to move his/her place of residence back to the original point of

employment, the Recipient shall assume the expenses, losses and costs of
moving to the same extent provided in subparagraph (a) of this paragraph (11}

and paragraph (12){a) hereof.

(11){c) No claim for reimbursement shall be paid under the provisions of this
paragraph unless such claim is presented to the Recipient in writing within
ninety (90) days after the date on which the expenses were incurred.

(11)(d) Except as otherwise provided in subparagraph (b), changes in place of
residence, subsequent to the initial changes as a result of the Project, which
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are not a result of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of seniority
rights, shall not be considered within the purview of this paragraph.

(12)(a) The following conditions shall apply to the extent they are applicable in
each instance to any employee who is retained in the service of the employer
{or who is later restored to service after being entitled to receive a dismissal
allowance), who is required to change the point of his/her employment as a
result of the Project, and is thereby reguired to move his/her place of
residence.

If the employee owns his/her own home in the locality from which the
employee is required to move, the employee shall, at the employee’s option, be
reimbursed by the Recipient for any loss suffered in the sale of the employee’s
home for less than its fair market value, plus conventional fees and closing
costs, such loss to be paid within thirty (30) days of settlement or closing on
the sale of the home. In each case, the fair market value of the home in
question shall be determined, as of a date sufficiently prior to the date of the
Project, so as to be unaffected thereby. The Recipient shall, in each instance,
be afforded an opportunity to purchase the home at such fair market value
before it is sold by the employee to any cther person and to reimburse the
seller for his/her conventional fees and closing costs.

2

If the employee is under a contract to purchase his/her home, the ecipient
shall protect the employee against loss under such contract, and in a

shall relieve the employee from any further obligation thereunder.

.
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If the employee holds an unexpired lease of a dwelling occupied as the
employee’s home, the Recipient shall protect the employee from all loss and
cost in securing the cancellation of said lease.

(12)(b) No claim for loss shall be paid under the provisions of this paragraph
unless such claim is presented to the Recipient in writing within one year after
the effective date of the change in residence.

(12){c} Should a controversy arise in respect to the vaiue of the home, the loss
sustained in its sale, the loss under a contract for purchase, loss and cost in
securing termination of a lease, or any other question in connection with these
matters, it shall be decided through a joint conference between the employee,
or his/her union, and the Recipient. In the event they are unable to agree, the
dispute or controversy may be referred by the Recipient or the union to a board
of competent real estate appraisers selected in the following manner: one (1) to
be selected by the representatives of the employee, and one (1) by the
Recipient, and these two, if unable to agree within thirty (30) days upon the
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valuation, shall endeavor by agreement with ten (10) days thereafter to select a
third appraiser, or to agree to a method by which a third appraiser shall be
selected, and failing such agreement, either party may request the State and
local Board of Real Estate Commissioners to designate within ten (10) days a
third appraiser, whose designation will be binding upon the parties and whose
jurisdiction shall be limited to determination of the issues raised in this
paragraph only. A decision of a majority of the appraisers shall be required
and said decision shall be final, binding, and conclusive. The compensation
and expenses of the neutral appraiser including expenses of the appraisal
board, shall be borne equally by the parties to the proceedings. All other
expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them, including the
compensation of the appraiser selected by such party.

(12)(d) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (11)(b) hereof, changes in
place of residence, subsequent to the initial changes as a result of the Project,
which are not a result of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of
seniority rights, shall not be considered within the purview of this paragraph.

(12)e) "Change in residence” means transfer to a work location which is either
(A) outside a radius of twenty (20) miles of the employee’s former work location

and farther from the employee’s residence than was his/her former work

location, or (B) is more than thirty {30) normal highway route miles from the
) J L J & -2

P
™
P

employee’s residence and also farther from his/her residence than was the

X
T 1

, .
mrplovee’s former work location,

4]

(13){a) A dismissed employee entitied to protection under this arrangement
may, at the employee’s option within twenty-one (21) days of his/her dismissal.
resign and (in lieu of all other benefits and protections provided in this
arrangement) accept a lump sum payment computed in accordance with

section (2) of the Washington Job Protection Agreement of May 1936:

>

Length of Service Separation Allowance

1 year and less than 2 years 3 months' pay
2- " " " RENC I S " "
3 " " " "5 " 9 " "
5 " " " 16 " 12 " "
s " " " 15 " 12 “ :
15 " " over 12 " "

In the case of an employee with less than one year's service, five days' pay,
computed by multiplying by 5 the normal daily earnings {including regularly
scheduled overtime, but excluding other overtime payments) received by the
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employee in the position last occupied, for each month in which the employee
performed service, will be paid as the lump sum.

Length of service shall be computed as provided in Section 7{b) of the
Washington Job Protection Agreement, as follows:

For the purposes of this arrangement, the length of service of the employee
shall be determined from the date the employee last acquired an employment
status with the employing carrier and the employee shall be given credit for one
month's service for each month in which the employee performed any service
(in any capacity whatsoever) and twelve (12) such months shall be credited as
one year's service. The employment status of an employee shall not be
interrupted by furlough in instances where the cmployee has a right to and
does return to service when called. In determining length of service of an
employee acting as an officer or other official representative of an employee
organization, the employee will be given credit for performing service while so
engaged on leave of absence from the service of a carrier.

(13)(b) One month's pay shall be computed by multiplying by 30 the normal
daily earnings (including regularly scheduled overtime, but excluding other

overtime payments) received by the employee in the position last occupied prior
- to time of the employee’s dismissal as a result of the Project.

(14) Whenever used herein, uniess the context requires otherwise, the term
‘protective period" means that period of time auring which a displaced or
dismissed employee is to be provided protection hereunder and extends from
the date on which an emplovee is displaced or dismissed to the expiration of six
(6} years therefrom, provided, however, that the protective period for any
particular employee during which the employee is entitled to receive the
benefits of these provisions shall not continue for a longer period following the
date the employee was displaced or dismissed than the employee's length of
service, as shown by the records and labor agreements applicable to his/her
employment prior to the date of the employee’s displacement or dismissal.

(13} Any dispute, claim, or grievance arising from or relating to the

interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this
arrangement, not otherwise governed by paragraph 12(c) of this arrangement,
the Labor-Management Relations Act, as amended, the Railway Labor Act, as
amended, or by impasse resolution provisions in a collective bargaining or
protective arrangement involving the Recipient(s) and the Union(s), which
cannot be settled by the parties thereto within thirty (30} days after the dispute
OT controversy arises, may be submitted at the written request of the
Recipient(s) or the Union(s) in accordance with a final and binding resolution
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procedure mutually acceptable to the parties. Failing agreement within ten
(10) days on the selection of such a procedure, any party to the dispute may
request the American Arbitration Association to furnish an arbitrator and
administer a final and binding arbitration under its Labor Arbitration Rules.
The parties further agree to accept the arbitrator’s award as final and binding.

The compensation and expenses of the neutral arbitrator, and any other
jointly incurred expenses, shall be borne equally by the Union(s) and
Recipient(s), and all other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them.

In the event of any dispute as to whether or not a particular employee was
affected by the Project, it shall be the employee’s obligation to identify the
Project and specify the pertinent facts of the Project relied upon. It shall then
be the burden of the Recipient to prove that factors other than the Project
affected the employee. The claiming employee shall prevail if it is estabhshed
that the Project had an effect upon the employee even if other factors may also
have affected the employee (See Hodgson's Affidavit in Civil Action No. 823-713).

(16) The Recipient will be financially responsible for the application of these
conditions and will make the necessary arrangements so that any employee
affected, as a result of the project, may file a written claim through his/her
Union representative with the Recipient within sixty {50} days of the date the
employee is terminated or laid off as a result of the Project, or within eighteen

Ll |
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(18} months of the date the emplovee’ sition with respect to his/her

{18} month date the emplovye 0Si with k1
employment is otherwise worsened as a result of the Project. In the latter case,
if the events giving rise to the claim have occurred over an extended period, the
18-month limitation shall be measured from the last such event. No benefits
shall be payable for any period prior to six (6) months from the date of the filing
of any claim. Unless the claim is filed with the Recipient within said time
limitations, the Recipient shall thereafter be relieved of zll liabilities and
obligations related to the claims.

w

™
=

[¢]

1

The Recipient will fully honor the claim, making appropriate payments, or

eyt 1T mieen vt T : 3 2 7
will give written notice to the claimant and his/her representative of the basis

for denying or modifying such claim, giving reasons therefore. In the event the
Recipient fails to honor such claim, the Union may invoke the following
procedures for further joint investigation of the claim by giving notice in writing
of its desire to pursue such procedures. Within ten (10} days from the receipt
of such notice, the parties shall exchange such factual material as may be
requested of them relevant to the disposition of the claim and shall jointly take
such steps as may be necessary or desirable to obtain from any third party

such additional factual materials as may be relevant. In the event the claim is
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so rejected by the Recipient, the claim may be processed in accordance with
the final and binding resolution procedures described in paragraph (15).

(17) Nothing in this arrangement shall be construed as depriving any employee
of any rights or benefits which such employee may have under existing
employment or collective bargaining agreements or otherwise; provided that
there shall be no duplication of benefits to any employee, and, provided
further, that any benefit under this arrangement shall be construed to include
the conditions, responsibilities, and obligations accompanying such benefit.
This arrangement shall not be deemed a waiver of any rights derived from any
other agreement or provision of federal, state or local law.

(18) During the employee's protective period, a dismissed employee shall, if the
employee so requests, in writing, be granted priority of employment or
reemployment to fill any vacant position within the Jjurisdiction and control of
the Recipient reasonably comparable to that which the employee held when
dismissed, including those in the employment of any entity bound by this
arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21) hereof, for which the empleyee is, or
by training or retraining can become, qualified; not, however, in contravention
of collective bargaining agreements related thereto. In the event such emplovee
requests such training or re-training to fill such vacant position, the Recipient
shail provide for such training or re-training at no cost to the employee. The
employee shall be paid the salary or hourly rate provided for in the applicable
collective bargaining agreement for such position, plus any displacement
allowance to which the employee may be otherwise entitled. If such dismissed
employee who has made such request fails, without good cause, within ten (10)
days to accept an offer of a position comparable to that which the employee
held when dismissed for which the employee is qualified, or for which the
employee has satisfactorily completed such training, the employee shall,
effective at the expiration of such ten-day period, forfeit all rights and benefits

under this arrangement.

As between employees who request employment pursuant to this
paragraph, the following order where applicable shall prevail in hiring such

employees: L

(a) Employees in the craft or class of the vacancy shall be given priority over
employees without seniority in such craft or class;

(b) As between employees having seniority in the craft or class of the
vacancy, the senior employees, based upon their service in that craft or class,
as shown on the appropriate senjority roster, shall prevail over junior
employees;
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(c) As between employees not having seniority in the craft or class of the
vacancy, the senior employees, based upon their service in the crafts or classes
in which they do have seniority as shown on the appropriate seniority rosters,
shall prevail over junior employees.

(19) The Recipient will post, in a prominent and accessible place a notice
stating that the Recipient has received federal assistance under the Federal
Transit statizte and has agreed to comply W1t_h the provisions of 49 U.8.C,,
Section 5333(b). This notice shall also specify the terms and conditions set
forth herein for the protection of employees. The Recipient shall maintain and
keep on file all relevant books and records in sufficient detail as to provide the
basic information necessary to the proper application, administration, and
enforcement of this arrangement and to the proper determination of any claims
arising thereunder.

(20) In the event the Project is approved for assistance under the statute, the
foregoing terms and conditions shall be made part of the contract of assistance
between the federal government and the Grantee and between the Grantee and
any Recipient; provided, however, that this arrangement shall not merge into
the contract of assistance, but sh all be independently binding and enforceable
by and upon the parties thereto, and by any covered employec or his/her
epresentative, in accordance with its terms, rior shall any other employee
rotective agreement merge into this arrangement, but each shall be

mdepe ntly binding and enforceable by and upon the parties therete, in

accordarce with its terms.

4

(21) This arrangement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the
parties hereto, and no provisions, terms, or obligations herein contained shall
be affected, modzﬁed altered, or changed in any respect whatsoever by reason
of the arrangements made by or for the Recipient to manage and operate the
system.
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thereof, under contractual arrangements of any form with the Recipient, its

successors or assigns, shall agree to be bound by the terms of this
arrangement and accept the responsibility with the Recipient for full
performance of these conditions. As a condition precedent to any such
contractual arrangements, the Recipient shall require such person, enterprise,
body or agency to so agree in writing. Transit employees in the service area of the
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project are third-party beneficiaries to the terms of this protective arrangement, as
incorporated by reference in the contractual agreement.

(22)  In the event of the acquisition, assisted with Federal funds, of any
transportation system or services, or any part or portion thereof, the employees
of the acquired entity shall be assured employment, in comparable positions,
within the jurisdiction and control of the acquiring entity, including positions
in the employment of any entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to
paragraph (21). All persons employed under the provisions of this paragraph
shall be appointed to such comparable positions without examin ation, other
than that required by applicable federal, state or local law or collective
bargaining agreement, and shall be credited with their yvears of service for
purposes of seniority, vacations, and pensions in accordance with the records
of their former employer and/or any applicable collective bargaining
agreemernts.

(23) The employees covered by this arrangement shall continue to receive any
applicable coverage under Social Security, Railroad Retirement, Workmen's
Compensation, unemployment compensation, and the like. In no event shall
these benefits be worsened as a result of the Project,

{24} In the event any provision of this arrangement is held to be invalid, or
otherwise unenforceable under federat, state, or local law, in the context of 2
particular Project, the remaining provisions of this arrangement shall not be
affected and the invalid or unenforceable provision shall be renegotiated by the
Recipient and the interested Union representatives of the employees involved
for purpose of adequate replacement under Section 5333(b). If such
negotiation shall not result in mutually satisfactory agreement any party may
invoke the jurisdiction of the Secretary of Labor to determine substitute fair
and equitable employee protective arrangements for application only teo the
particular Project, which shall be incorporated in this arrangement only as
applied to that Project, and any other appropriate action, remedy, or relief.

(25) If any employer of the employees covered by this arrangement shall have
rearranged or adjusted its work force(sj in anticipation of the Project, with the
effect of depriving an employee of benefits to which the employee should be
entitled under this arrangement, the provisions of this arrangement shall apply
to such employee as of the date when the employee was so affected. .
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Federal Clauses




Fly America Requirements

Applicability — all contracts involving transportation of persons or property, by air between the U.S. and/or places
outside the U.S. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases (33,000 or iess, except for construction
contracts over $2,000),

Contractor shall comply with 4% USC 40118 (the “Fly America” Act) in accordance with General Services
Administration regulations 41 CFR 301-10, stating that recipients and subrecipients of Federal funds and their
contractors are required to use US Flag air carriers for US Government-financed internationat air travel and
transpartation of their personal effects or property, to the extent such service is available, unless travel by foreign
air carrier is a matter of necessity, as defined by the Fly America Act. Contractor shall submit, if a foreign air
carrier was used, an appropriate certification or memorandum adequately explaining why service by a US flag air
carrier was not available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, provide a
certificate of compliance with the Fly America requirements. Contracter shall include the requirements of this
section in all subcontracts that may invalve international air transportation.

Charter Bus Requirements

These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases {($3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over
$2,000).

Contractor shall comply with 48 USC 5323{d) and (g) and 48 CFR 604, which siate that recipients and
subrecipients of FTA assistance may provide charter service for transportation projects that uses equipment or
facilities acquired with Federa! assistance authorized under the Federal transit laws (except as permitied by 49
CFR 604.2), ar under 23 U.S.C. 133 or 142, only in compliance with those laws and FTA regulations, “Charter
Service,” 49 CFR part 604, the terms and cenditions of which are incorporated herein by reference.

School Bus Requirements

Applicability — Cperaticnal Service Contracts. Thess raquirements do not apply 1o micro-purchasas ($3,000 or
less, except for construction contracts cver £2.000).

Pursuant to 68 USC 5323(f) or (g) as amended by MAP-21, 23 USC 133, 23 USC 142. and 48 CFR 605.
recipients and subrecipients of FTA assistance shall not engage in school bus operations exclusively for
transporiation of students and schodi personnel in competition with privaie school bus operafors uniess gualified
under specified exemptions, When operating exclusive schoo! bus service under an allowable exemption,
reciptents and subrecipients shall not use federally fundad squipment, vehiclas, ar facilities. Violations ifa

Recipient ar any Third Party Pariicipant that has operated schoaol bus sarvice in violation of FTA’s School Bus
iaws and reguiations, FTA may: (1) Require t
measures as FTA considers ap i

transit funds.

Energy Conservation

All Contracts except micro-purchases ($3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)
Cantractor shall comply with mandatery standards and policies relating to energy sfficiency, stated in the state
energy conservation pian issued in compliance with the Energy Pelicy & Conservation Act.

Clean Water

All Contracts and Subconiracts over $100,000

Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 USC 1251 et seq. Contractor shall report each violation to the recipient and
understands and agrees that the recipient shall, in turn, report each violation as required to FTA and the
appropriate EPA Regional Office. Contracter shall include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding
$100,000 financed in whole or in part with FTA assistance.

Lobbying




Construction/Architectural and Engineering/Acquisition of Rolling Stock/Professional Service Contract/Operational
Service Contract/Turnkey contracts over $100,000

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.5.C. 1352, as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, P.L. 104-
65 [to be codified at 2 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq.] - Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more
shall file the certification required by 49 CFR part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying." Each tier certifies to the tier
above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Cangress in connection with obtaining any Federal
contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier shall also disclose the name of any
registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying contacts on its behalf with non-
Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Such disclosures
are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient.

Access to Records and Reporis

Appiicability - As shown below. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases ($3,000 or less, except for
construction contracts over $2,000)

The following access to records requirements apply o this Contract:

1. Where the purchaser is not a State but a local government and is an FTA recipient or a subgrantee of FTA
recipient in accordance with 49 CFR 18.36(i), contracior shali provide the purchaser, the FTA, the US Comptralier
General or their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers and contractor records
which are pertinent to this confract for the purposes of making zudits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.
Contractor shall alse, pursuant to 48 CFR 633.17, provide authorized FTA representatives, including any PMO
contractor, access to contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a capital project, defined at 46 USC
5302{a}1, which is receiving FTA assistance through the programs describad 2t 49 USC 5307, 5309 or 5311,
2. Where the purchaser is a State and is an FTA recipient or a subgrantee of FTA recipient in accordance with 49
CFR 633.17, confractor shall provide the purchaser, authorized FTA rapresentatives, including any PMO
Contracicr, access to confractor's records and consiruciion sites pertaining to a capital project, defined at 45 USC
£302(za)1. which receives FTA assistance through the programs described at 49 USC 5307, 5309 or 5311. By
. .
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3. Whare the purchaser enters into a negotiated contract for other than a small purchase or under the simptified

acquisition threshold and is an institution of higher education, a hospital or other non-profit organization and is an
FTA recipient or a subgrantee of FTA recipient in accordance with 49 CFR 19.48, contractor shall provide the
purchaser, the FTA, the US Comptrotler General or their authorized representatives, access te any books,
documents, papers and record of the contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of
making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.

4. Where a purchaser which is an FTA recipient or a subgrantee of FTA recipient in accordance with 49 USC
5325(a) enters into a contract for a capital project or improvement (defined at 48 USC 5302(a)1) through other
than compeiitive hidding, contractor shall make available records related to the contract to the purchaser, the
Secretary of USDOT and the US Comptrolier General or any authorized officer or empioyee of any of them for the
purpeses of conducting an audit and inspection.

5. Contractor shall permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatscever or to copy
excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.

6. Contractor shall maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this contract for a period of
not less than three (3) years after the date of termination or expiration of this contract, except in the event of
litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this contract, in which case contractor agrees to




maintain same until the recipient, FTA Administrator, US Comptroller General, or any of their autharized
representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto. Re: 48 CFR
18.38(i){11).

FTA does not require the inclusion of these requirements in subcontracts.

Federal Changes

All Contracts except micro-purchases {$3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)

Contractor shail comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including without
limitation those listed directty or by reference in the Master Agreement between the purchaser and FTA, as they

may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of the cantract. Contractor's failure to comply
shall constitute a material breach of the contract,

Clean Air

1) Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations pursuant to the Clean Air Act, 42
USC 7401 et seq. Contractor shall repert each violation to the recipient and understands and agrees that the
recipient will, in turn, report each viclation as required to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regionai Office.

2) Contractor shalt include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $100,000 financed in whole or in
nart with FTA assistance.

Recycled Products

Ali contracts for items designated by the EPA, when the purchaser or contractor procures $10,000 or more of one
of these items during the current or previous fiscal year using Federal funds. The contractor agrees to comply with
all the requirements of Section 6002 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), as amended (42
U.8.C. 6962}, including but not limited to the regulatory provisions of 40 CFR Part 247, and Exacutive Order
12873, as they apply to the procurement of the items desianated in Subpart B of 40 CFR Part 247

Contract Work Hours & Safety Standards Act
Applicability — Contracts over $100,000

{1} Overlime requirements - No contractor or subcontractor contracting frr any part of the contract work which
may require or involve the empleyment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such iaborer or
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of she is empioyed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such
workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times

the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such warkweek,

(2) Vioiation; liabifity for unpaid wages; liquidated damages - In the event of any viclation of the clause set forth in
para. (1) of this section, contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefore shall be lable for the unpaid
wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable for liquidated damages. Such liquidated
damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards,
emplayed in violation of the clause set forth in para. (1) of this section, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on
which such individual was required or permitted to wark in excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours without
payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in para. (1) of this section.

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages - the recipient shalt upon its own action or upon written
request of USDOL withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable an account of work performed by
contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor,
or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours & Safety Standards Act, which is held
by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such
contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in para.




(2) of this section.

(4) Subcontracts - Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this section
and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. Prime
contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses
set forth in this section.

No Government Obligation to Third Parties
Applicability — All contracts except micro-purchases (33,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000}

(1) The recipient and contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the US
Government in or appraval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, absent the express written
consent by the US Government, the US Government is not a party to this coniract and shall not be subject to any
obligations or liabilities to the recipient, the contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract)
pertaining to any matter resulting from the underlying contract.

{2) Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with FTA
assistance. it is further agreed that the clause shali not he modified, except to identify the subcontractor who wit
be subject te its provisions.

Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts

Applicability — All contracts except micro-purchases ($3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)
{1) Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended,
31 USC 3801 et seq. and USDOT regulations "Program Fraud Civit Remedies," 49 CFR 31, apply to its actions
peraining to this project. Upon execution of the underlying contract, contractor certifies or affirme the truthfulness

and accuracy of any statement it has mada, it makes, it may maka, or causes to be made, peraining to tha

n

underlving contract or FTA assisted proiect for which this contract work is being performed. In addition to other
penalties thal may be applicable, contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, & false,
fictitious, or frauduient claim, statement, submittal, or ceriification, the US Government reserves the righi to
impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act (1988) on contractor to the extent the US
l-.nwarnrnnm nanml—‘. nnnropr:arﬁ

{2) if contractor makes. or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or frauduient claim, statement, submittal. or
certification to the US Government under a confract connected with a project that is financed in whele orin part
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penalties of 18 USC 1001 and 49 USC 5307 (n)(1} on contractor, to the extent the US Government deems
appropriate.

(3} Contractor shall include the above two ctauses in each subcontract financed in whele or in part with FTA
assistance. The clauses shali not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the

provistons.

Termination
Applicability — All Contracts over $10,000, except contracts with nenprofit organizations and institutions of higher

learning, where the threshold is $100,000

a. Termination for Convenience (General Provision) the recipient may terminate this contract, in whole or in part,
at any time by written notice to contractor when it is in the recipient's best interest. Contractor shall be paid its
costs, including contract close-out costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of termination. Contractor
shall promptly submit its termination claim to the recipient. If contractor is in possession of any of the recipient's
property, contractor shall account for same, and dispose of it as the recipient directs.

b. Termination for Default [Breach or Cause] (General Provision) If contractor does not deliver items in




accordance with the contract delivery schedule, or, if the contract is for services, and contractor fails to perform in
the manner called for in the contract, or if contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of the contract, the
recipient may terminate this contract for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of termination to
contractor setting forth the manner in which contractor is in default. Contractor shall only be paid the contract price
for supplies delivered and accepted, or for services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set
forth in the contract.

If it is later determined by the recipient that contractor had an excusable reason for not perfarming, such as a
strike, fire, or flood, events which are not the fauit of or are beyond the control of contractor, the recipient, after
setting up a new delivery or performance schedule, may allow contractor to continue work, or treat the termination
as a termination for convenience.

c. Opportunity to Cure (General Provision) the recipient in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for
breach or default, allow contractor an appropriately short period of time in which to cure the defect. In such case,
the notice of termination shall state the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions

If contractor fails to remedy to the recipient’s satisfaction the breach or default or any of the terms, covenants, or
conditions of this Contract within ten (10) days after receipt by contractor or written notice from the recipient
setting forth the nature of said breach or default, the recipient shall have the right to terminate the Contract without
any further obligation to contractor. Any such termination for defauli shall not in any way operate to preclude the
recipient from aiso pursuing ali availabie remedies against contracior and its sureties for said breach or default.

d. Waiver of Remedies for any Breach in the eveni that the recipient elects to waive its remedies for any breach
by contractor of any covenant, term or candition of this Contract, such waiver by the recipient shall not limit its
remadies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other term, covenant, or condition of this Contract.

e. Termination for Converience (Professional or Transit Service Contracts) the recipient, by written notice, may
terminate this contract, in whole or in part, when it is in the recipient's interest. If the contract is terminated, the
recipient shall be fiable only for payment under the payment provisions of this contract for services renderad
before the effective date of termination.

f. Termination for Default (Supplies and Service) If contractor fails to deliver supplies or to perform the services
within the time specified in this contract or any extension or if the contractor fails to comply with any other
prowsuons of this contract, the recipient may terminate this coniract for default. The recipient shall terminate by

delivering to contractor a notice of termination specifying the nature of default. Contractor shall only be paid the
contract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner or
performance set forth in this contract.

If, after termination for failure to fulfiit contract ebligations, it is determined that contractor was not in default, the
rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if termination had been issued for the recipient’s
convenience.

g. Terminaticn for Default (Transportation Services) If contractor fails te pick up the commodities or to o perform the
services, including delivery services, within the time specified in this contract or any extension or if contractor fails
to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the recipient may terminate this contract for default. The
recipient shall terminate by defivering to contractor a notice of termination specifying the nature of defauit.
Contractor shall only be paid the contract price for services performed in accordance with the manner of
performance set forth in this contract.

If this contract is terminated while contractor has possessicn of the recipient goods, contracter shall, as directed
by the recipient, protect and preserve the goods until surrendered to the recipient or its agent. Centractor and the
recipient shall agree on payment for the preservation and protection of goods. Failure to agree on an amount shaif
be resolved under the Dispute clause. If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined
that contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if termination had
been issued for the recipient’'s convenience.




h. Termination for Default {Construction} If contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the work or any separable part,
with the diligence that will insure its completion within the time specified, or any extension, or fails t¢ cocmplete the
work within this time, or if contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the recipient may
terminate this contract for default. the recipient shall terminate by delivering to contractor a notice of termination
specifying the nature of default. In this event, the recipient may take over the work and compete it by contract or
otherwise, and may take possession of and use any materials, appliances, and plant on the work site necessary
for completing the work. Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for any damage te the recipient resulting from
contractor's refusal or failure to complete the work within specified time, whether or not contractor's right to
proceed with the work is terminated. This liability includes any increased costs incurred by the recipient in
completing the work.

Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated nor shall contractor be charged with damages under this
clause if:

1. Delay in completing the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or
negligence of contractor. Examples of such causes include: acts of God, acts of the recipient, acts of another
contractor in the performance of 2 contract with the recipient, epidemics, guarantine restrictions, sirikes, freight
embargoes; and

2. Contractor, within 10 days from the baginning of any delay, notifies the recipient in writing of the causes of
deiay. If in the recipient's judgment, delay is excusable, the time for completing the work shall be extended. The
recipient's judgment shall be final and conclusive on the parties, but subject to appeal under the Disputes clauses.

if, after termination of contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that contractor was not in default, or that the
deiay was excusabie, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as T termination had been issued
for the recipient's convenience.

i. Termination for Convenience or Default (Architest & Engineering) the recipient may terminate this contract in
whols or in part, for the recipient's conveniance or because of contractor's failure to fulfill contract obligations. The
recipient shail ferminate by delivering to coniractor a notice of termination specifying the nature, extent, and

sipt of the netice, contractor shall (1) immediately discontinue all services

effective date of termination. Upon rec 1Y immediat
afiectad {uniess the notice directs otherwise), and (2) deliver to the recipient all data, drawings, specifications,

reporis, estimates, summaries, and other information and matenais accumuiated in performing this coniract,
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whether completed or in process. |f termination is for the racinient’s convenience, it shall make an equitabie
adjustment in the contract price but shall aliow no anticipated profit on unperformed services. I termination is for
contractor's failure to fulfill contract ebligations, the recipient may complete the work by contact or otherwise and
confractor shall be liable for any additional cest incurred by the recipient.

f, after termination for faiiure to fulfilt contract obligations, it is determined that contracior was not in default, the
rights and obligaticns of the parties shall be the same as if termination had been issued for the recipient’s

convenience.

i. Termination for Convenience or Default {Cost-Type Contracts) the recipient may terminate this contract, or any
portion of it, by serving a notice or termination on contractor. The notice shall state whether termination is for
convenience of the recipient or for default of contractor. If termination is for default, the notice shall state the
manner in which contractor has failed to perform the requirements of the coniract. Contractor shall account for any
property in its possession paid for from funds received from the recipient, or property supplied to contractor by the
recipient. If termination is for default, the recipient may fix the fee, if the contract provides for a fee, to be paid to
contractor in praportion to the value, if any, of work performed up to the time of termination. Contractor shall
promptly submit its termination claim to the recipient and the parties shall negotiate the termination settlement to
be paid to contractor. If termination is for the recipient's convenience, contractor shall be paid its contract close-
out costs, and a fee, if the contract provided for payment of a fee, in proportion to the work performed up to the

time of termination.




If, after serving a natice of termination for default, the recipient determines that contractor has an excusable
reason for not performing, such as sirike, fire, flood, events which are not the fault of and are beyond the control
of contractor, the recipient, after setting up a new work schedule, may allow contractor to centinue work, or treat
the termination as a termination for convenience.

Government Wide Debarment and Suspension (Non Procurement)

The Recipient agrees to the following: (1) It will comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R, part 180, subpart C, as
adopted and supplemented by U.S, DOT regulations at 2 C.F.R. part 1200, which include the following: (a) It will
not enter into any arrangement to participate in the development or implementation of the Project with any Third
Party Participant that is debarred or suspended except as authorized by: 1 U.S. DOT regulations,
“Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment,” 2 C.F.R. part 1200, 2 U.8. OMB, “Guidelines to Agencies on
Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement),” 2 C.F.R. part 180, including any amendments
thereto, and 3 Executive Orders Nos. 12549 and 12689, "Debarment and Suspension,” 31 U.S.C. § 6101 note, {b)
it will review the U.S. GSA “System for Award Management,” hitps://www.sam.gov, if required by U.S. DOT
regulations, 2 C.F.R. part 1200, and {c) It will include, and require each of its Third Party Participants to inciude, a
simitar provision in each lower tier covered transaction, ensuring that each Jower tier Third Party Participant: 1 Wil
comply with Federal debarment and suspension requirements, znd 2 Reviews the “System for Award
Management” at hitps.//www.sam.gov, if necessary to comply with U.S. DCT regulations, 2 C.F.R. part 1200, and
{2} If the Recipient suspends, debars, or takes any similar action against a Third Party Participant ar individual,
the Recipient will provide immediate written notice to the: (a) FTA Regicna! Counse! for the Region in which the
Recipient is located or implements the Project, (b) FTA Project Manager if the Project is administered by an FTA
Headquarters Office, or (¢} FTA Chief Counsel,

Contracts Involving Federal Privacy Act Requirements

When a grantee maintains files on drug and alcohol enforcement activities for FTA, and these files are organized
so that information could be retrieved by personal identifier, the Privacy Act requirements apply to all contracts
except micro-purchases (53,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)

The following requirements apply to the Contracter and its employees that administer any system of records on
behall of the Federat Government under any contract:

(1) The Contractor agrees to compiy with, and assures the compliance of its employees with, the information

the Contractor agrees to obtain tha exprass consent of the Federal Governmant before the Contractor or its
employees operate a system of records on behalf of the Federal Government. The Contractor understands that
the requirements of the Privacy Act, including the civil and criminal penalties for violation of that Act, apply to
those individuals involved, and that faiture to comply with the terms of the Privacy Act may result in termination of
the undertying contract.

Civil Rights Requirements
Applicability — All contracis except micro-purchases ($3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)

The foliowing requirements apply to the underlying contract:

The Recipient understands and agrees that it must comply with applicable Federal civil rights laws and
regulations, and follow applicable Federal guidance, except as the Federal Government determines otherwise in
writing. Therefore, unless a Recipient or Program, including an Indian Tribe or the Triba! Transit Program, is




specifically exempted from a civil rights statute, FTA requires compliance with that civil rights statute, including
compliance with equity in service:

a. Nondiscrimination in Federal Public Transportation Programs. The Recipient agrees to, and assures that each
Third Party Participant wiil, comply with Federal transit law, 42 U.5.C. § 5332 (FTA’s "Nondiscrimination” statute):
(1) FTA's "Nondiscrimination” statute prohibits discrimination on the basis of: (a) Race, (b) Color, (¢} Religion, (d)
Nationai origin, (e) Sex, {f) Disability, or (g} Age, and (2) The FTA "Nondiscrimination” statute’s prohibition against
discrimination includes; (a) Exclusion from participation, (b) Denial of program benefits, or (c) Discriminaticon,
including discrimination in employment or business opportunity, (3) Except as FTA determines otherwise in
writing: (a) General. Fcllow: 1 The most recent edition of FTA Circular 4702.1, “Title V! Requirements and
Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration Recipients,” to the extent consistent with applicable Federal laws,
regulations, and guidance, and

2 Other applicable Federa!l guidance that may be issued, but (b) Exception for the Tribal Transit Program. FTA
does not require an Indian Tribe to comply with FTA program-specific guidelines for Title VI when administering its
projects funded under the Tribal Transit Program,

b, Nendiscrimination — Title V! of the Civil Rights Act, The Reacinient agrees to, and assures that each Third Party
Participant will: {1) Prohibit discrimination basad on: (a; Race, (&) Color, or {c} National origin, (Z) Comply with: (8)
Title V1 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., (b) U.5. DOT regulations,
“Neondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation - Effectuation of Title V!
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964," 49 C.F.R. part 21, and (c} Federal transit law, specifically 49 U.5.C. § 5332, as
stated in the preceding section a, and (3) Except as FTA determines otherwise in writing, follow: {a) The most
recent edition of FTA Circular 4702.1, “Title VI and Title Vi-Dependent Guidelines for Federal Transit
Administration Recipients,” to the extent consistent with applicable Federal laws, regulations, and guidance. (b)

U.8. DOJ, "Guideiines for the enforcement of Title V1. Civil Rights Act of 1884, 28 C.F.R. § 50.3, and {c) Other
appiicable Federal guidance that may be issued,

c. Equal Employment Opportunity. (1) Federal Requirements and Guidance. The Racipient agrees io, and

assures that each Third Party Participant wiil, prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, of
national origin, and: (a) Comply with Title VIl of the Civii Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.8.C. § 2000¢ &t
seq,, (b) Facilitate compliance with Executive Qrder No. 11248, "Equal Employment Opportunity " as amended by
Exacutive Order No. 11375, “Amending Executive Order No. 11248, Relating tc Equal Employment Gpportunity,”
42 U.8.C. § 2000e note, {c) Comply with Federai iransit law, specifically 48 U.S.C. § 5332, as stated in saciion a,
and {d} Comnly with other applicable EEC laws and regulations, as provided in Federal guidance, including laws
and requlations prohibiting discrimination on the basis of disabiiity, except as the Federal Government determines
otherwise in writing, (2) General. The Recipient agrees tc: (a) Ensure that applicants for employment are
smpioyed and employees are treated during employment without discrimination on the basis of their: 1 Race, 2
Coicr, 3 Religion, 4 Sex, 5 Disability, & Age, or 7 National origin, (b) Take affirmative action that includes, but is
not limited to: 1 Recruitment advertising, 2 Recruitment, 3 Employment, 4 Rates of pay, & Other forms of
compensation, 8 Selection for training, including apprenticeship, 7 Upgrading, 8 Transfers, 9 Demoticns, 10
Layoifs, and 11 Terminalions, bui {b} indian Tribe. Titie Vil of the Civil Rights Act of 1564, as amended, exempts

Indian Tribes under the definition of "Employer™. |

(3) Equal Empioyment Opportunity Requirements for Construction Activities. In addition to the foregoing, when
undertaking "construction” as recognized by the U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL), the Recipient agrees 10
comply, and assures the compliance of each Third Party Participant, with: (a) U.S. DOL regulations, “Office of
Federal Contract Compliance Frograms, Equatl Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor,” 41 C.F.R,
chapter 80, and (b) Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Empleyment Opportunity,” as amended by Executive
Order No. 11375, “Amending Executive Order No. 11248, Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” 42 U.8.C.
§ 2000e note,

¢, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise. To the extent authorized by applicable Federal law, the Recipient agrees




to facilitate, and assures that each Third Party Participant will facilitate, participation by small business concerns
owned and controlled by sccially and economically disadvantaged individuals, also referred to as “Disadvantaged
Business Enterprises” {DBEs), in the Project as follows: 1) Requirements. The Recipient agrees to comply with:
(a) Section-1101(b) of MAP-21, 23 U.8.C. § 1C1 note, (b) U.S. DOT regulations, "Pariicipation by Disadvantaged
Business Enterprises in Department of Transporiation Financial Assistance Programs,” 49 C.F.R. part 26, and (c)
Federal transit law, specifically 49 U.S.C. § 5332, as stated in section a, (2) Assurance. As required by 49 C.F.R.
§ 26.13(a), (b) DBE Program Requirements. Recipients receiving planning, capital and/or operating assistance
that will award prime third party contracts exceeding $250,000 in a Federal fiscal year must: 1 Have a DBE
program meeting the requirements of 48 C.F.R. part 26, 2 Implement a DBE prograrn approved by FTA, and 3
Establish an annual DBE participation goal, (¢) Special Requirements for a Transit Vehicle Manufacturer, The
Recipient understands and agrees that each transit vehicle manufacturer, as a condition of being authorized to hid
or propose on FTA-assisted transit vehicle procurements, must certify that it has complied with the requirements
of 49 C.F.R. part 26, {d) the Recipient provides assurance that: The Recipient shall not discriminate on the basis
of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award and performance of any DOT-assisted contract or in the
administration of its DBE program or the requirements of 49 C.F.R. part 26. The Recipient shall take all necessary
and reasonable steps under 49 C.F.R. part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of
DOT-assisted contracts. The Recipient's DBE program, as required by 48 C.F.R. part 26 and as approved by
DOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation of this program is a legal obligation and
failure to carry out its terms shali be treated as a viokation of this agreement. Upon notification to the Recipient of
its failure to carry out its approved program, the Department may impose sanctions as provided for under 49
C.F.R. part 26 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.8.C. § 1001 and/or the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq.,

(2) Exception for the Tribal Transit Program. FTA exempts Indian tribes from the Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise regulations at 48 C.F.R. part 26 under MAP-21 and previous legisiation,

e. Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex. The Recipient agrees to comply with Federal prohibitions against
discrimination on the basis of sex, including: (1) Title X of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 20
U.5.C. § 1681 et seq., (2) U.S. DOT regulations, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Frograms or
Activities Receiving Federal Financlal Assistance," 48 C.F R, part 25, and (3) Federal fransit law, specifically 49

U.5.C. § 5332, as stated in section 2,

f. Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age. The Recipient agrees to comply with Federa! prehibitions against
discrimination on the basis of age, including: {1} The Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA}, 26 U.S.C. 8§
621 — 634, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age, {2) U.8. Equal Empioyment Opportunity
Commission {U.S. EEOC) regulations, “Age Discrimination in Employment Act,” 29 C.F.R. part 1625, which
implements the ADEA, (3) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq., which
prohibits discrimination against individuals on the basis of age in the administration of programs or activities
receiving Federal funds, (4) U.S. Health and Human Services regulations, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age
in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance,” 45 C.F.R. part 80, which implements the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975, and
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5 of Disability.
prohibitions pertaining to discrimination against seniors or individuals with disabilities: (1) Federal laws, inciuding:
(a) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.8.C. § 794, which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of disability in the administration of federally funded programs or activities, (b) The Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1980 (ADA), as amended, 42 1J.8.C. § 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities
and services be made available to individuals with disabifities, 1 General, Titles |, Il, and Il of the ADA apply to
FTA Recipients, but 2 Indian Tribes. While Titles || and Il of the ADA apply to Indian Tribes, Title | of the ADA
exempts Indian Tribes from the definition: of *employer,” (¢} The Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended,
42 U.8.C. § 4151 et seq., which requires that buildings and public accommodations be accessible to individuals
with disabilities, (d) Federal transit law, specifically 49 U.S.C. § 5332, which now includes disability as a prohibited

he Recipient agrees to comply with the Tollowing Federal




basis for discrimination, and (g) Other appiicable laws and amendments pertaining to access for elderly
individuals or individuals with disabilities, (2) Federal regulations, including: (a) U.S. DOT regulations,
"Transportation Services for Individuals with Disahilities (ADA),” 49 C.F.R. part 37, {b) U.S. DOT regulations,
“Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in Programs and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal
Financial Assistance,” 49 C.F.R. part 27, (¢) U.S. DOT regulations, "Transportation for Individuals with Disabilities:
Passenger Vessels,” 49 C.F.R. part 39, (d) Joint U.S. Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board
(U.S. ATBCB) and U.S. DOT regulations, “Americans With Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for
Transportation Vehicles," 36 C.F.R. part 1192 and 48 C.F.R. part 38, {e) U.8. DOJ regulaticns, "Nondiscrimination
on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government Services,” 28 C.F.R. part 35, {f) U.S. DOJ regulations,
“Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by Public Accommodaticns and in Commercial Facilities,” 28 C.F.R.
part 36, (g) U.S. EEQC, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with
Disabilities Act,” 292 C.F.R. part 1630, (h) U.S. Federal Communications Commissicn regulations,
“Telecommunications Relay Services and Related Customer Premises Equipment for Persons with Disabilities,”
47 C.F.R. part 64, Subpart F, {i) U.S. ATBCB regulations, “Electronic and Information Technelogy Accessibility
Standards,” 36 C.F.R. part 1194, and (j) FTA regulations, “Transportation for Elderly and Handicapped Persons,”
49 C.F.R. part 609, and (3) Other applicable Federal civii rights and nondiscrimination guidance,

h. Drug or Aicohol Abuse - Confidentiality and Other Civil Rights Protections. The Recipient agrees to comply with
the confidentiality and civil rights protections of. (1) The Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972, as
amended, 21 U.8.C. § 1101 et seq., (2) The Comprahensive Alcohc! Abuse and Alcchelism Prevention,
Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 4541 et seq., and {3} The Public Health
Service Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 290dd - 290dd-2,

i. Access to Services for Pecple with Limited English Proficiency. Except as the Federal Government determines

whose understanding of English is limited by followinag: 1) Executive Order Ne. 13166, “Improving Access to
Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” August 11, 2000, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d-1 note, and {2} U.S.
DCT Notice, “DOT Palicy Guidance Concarning Recipients' Responsibilities to Limited English Proficiency (LEP}

FPersons,” 70 Fed. Reg. 74087, December 14, 2005,

}. Other Nondiscrimination Laws. Except as the Federal Government determines otherwise in writing, the
Recipient agrees to: (1) Comply with ather appiicable Federal nondiscrimination laws and reguiations, and {2}
Foliow Federal guidance prohibiting discrimination.

k. Remedies. Remedies for failure to comply with applicable Federal Civil Rights laws and Federal regulations
may be enforced as provided in those Federal laws or Federal regulations.

Breaches and Dispute Resolution

All contracts over $100,00C

Disputes arising in the performance of this contract which are not resolved by agreement of the parties shall be
decided in writing by the recipient’s authorized representative. This decision shall be final and conciusive unfess
within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of its copy, contractor mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to
the recipient's CEQ. In connection with such appeal, contracior shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and
to offer evidence in support of its pasition. The decision of the recipient's CEQ shali be binding upon contractor
and contractor shall abide by the decision. FTA has a vested interest in the settiement of any violation of Federal
law including the the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3720.

Performance During Dispute - Unless otherwise directed by the recipient, contractor shall continue performance
under this contract white matters in dispute are being resclved.

Claims for Damages ~ Should either party to the contract suffer injury or damage to person cr property because of
any act or omission of the party or of any of his employees, agents or others for whose acts he is legally liable, a
claim for damages therefore shall be made in writing to such other party within ten days after the first observance




of such injury or damage.

Remedies - Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterciaims, disputes and other matters in
question between the recipient and contractor arising out of or relating to this agreement or its breach will be
decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the residing State.

Rights and Remedies - Duties and obiigations imposed by the contract documents and the rights and remedies
available thereunder shall be in addition o and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies
otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by the recipient or contractor shall constitute a
waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act
constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in
writing.

Transit Employee Protective Provisions
Contracts for transit operations except micro-purchases {$3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over
$2,000)

{1} Contractor shali comply with applicabie transit employae protective requirements as foiiows;

{a} Transit Employee Protective Requirements for Projects Authorized by 48 USC 5311 in Nonurbanized Areas - if
the contract involves transit operations financed in whele or in part with FTA assistance authorized by 48 USC
5311, the contractor shali compiy with the terms and conditions of the Special Warranty for the Nonurbanized
Area Program that is most current, and any alternative comparable arrangement specified by U.S. DOL for
application to the project, in accordance with U.8, DOL guidelines, “Section 5333(b}), Federal Transit Law,” 29
C.F.R. Part 215, and any revision thereto. [New amendments to U.S. DOL guidelines, “Section 5333(b), Federal

Transit Law,” 28 C.F.R. Part 215, were published at 73 Fed. Reg. 47046 et. Seq., August 13, 2008.]

(2) Contractor shall alsc include any applicable requirements in each subcontract involving iransit operations
financed in whoie or in part with FTA assistance.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
fal

i
Contracts over $3,000 awarded on the basis of a bid or proposal offering to use DBEs

a. This contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 28, Participation by
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistanics Programs. The
national goal for participation of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) is 10%. The recipient's overall goal
for DBE participation is listed elsewhere. If 2 separate contract goal for DBE participation has been established for
this procuremeant, it is listed elsewhere,

b. The contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or sex in the
performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the
award and adminisiration of this contract. Faiiure by the coniracior to carry cut these requirements is a material
breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the municicpal
corporation deems appropriate. Each subcontract the contractor sigins with a subcontractor must include the

assurance in this paragraph (see 49 GFR 26.13(b)).

c. If a separate contract goal has been established, Bidders/offerors are required to document sufficient DBE
participation to meet these goals or, alternatively, document adequate good faith efforts to do so, as provided for
in 49 CFR 26.53.

d. If no separate contract goal has been established, the successful bidderfofferor will be required to report its
DBE participation obtained through race-neutral means throughout the pericd of performance.




e. The contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for satisfactory
performance of that work no later than 30 days after the contractor's receipt of payment for that work from the
recipient. In addition, the contractor may not hold retainage from its subcontractors or must return any retainage
payments to those subcontractors within 3C days after the subcontracior's work related to this contract is
satisfactorily completed or must return any retainage payments to those subcontractors within 30 days after
incremental acceptance of the subcontractor's work by the recipient and contractor's receipt of the partiai
retainage payment related to the subcontractor’'s work.

1. The contractor must promptly notify the recipient whenever a DBE subcontracter performing work related to this
contract is terminated or fails to complete its work, and must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE
subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work. The contractor may not terminate any DBE
subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prier written consent of
the recipient.

Prompt payment
Applicability = All coniracis except micro-purchases (33,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)

The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontracter under this prime coniract for satisfactory performance of
its contract no iater than 30 days from the receipt of each payment the prime contract receives from the Racipient.
The prime contractor agrees further to return retainage payments tc each subcontractor within 30 days after the
subcontractors work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of payment from the above
referenced time frame may occur only for good cause following written approval of the Recipient. This clause

applies to both DBE and nen-DBE subcontracts.

Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms

All contracts excent micro-purchases ($3.000 or less. except for construction contracts over $2.000)

The preceding provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms & Conditions required by USDOT, whether or
+ 1 1
L 1

not expressly atated in the preceding contract provisions. All USDOT-required contractua! provisions, as stated in
ETA Circuiar 4270 4F are hereby incorporated hy reference. A vyt thing 10 the conirany herain ‘;‘J?‘withsf.‘jﬁdiﬁg_ all
FTA mandated terms shall ba deemed to control in the event of 2 conflict with other provisions contained in this
f

Agreement. The contracior shall not perform any act, fail to perform a y act, or refuse to comply with any request

Py, - T, —_

thatl would cause the recipient 1o be in violaiio

Drug and Alcohol Abuse and Testing
Operational service contracts except micro-nurchases ($3,800 or less, except for consiruction contracts over

$2,000)

The Contracior agrees to comply with the following Federal substance abuse regulations: a. Drug-Free
Workplace. U.S. DOT regulations, "Drug-Free Workplace Requirements {Grants), " 49 C.F.R. Part 32, that
imptements the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 as amended, 41 U.S.C. §§ 8103 et seq., and 2 CFR pan 182,
b. Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use. FTA Regulations, "Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug
Use in Transit Operations,” 49 USC 5331, as amended by MAP-21, 49 CFR part 40, 49 USC chapter 53, 49 CFR
Part 655, to the extent applicable.

Other Federal Requirements
The following requirements are not federal clauses.

Full and Open Competition




In accordance with 49 U.3.C. § 5325(a) all procurement transactions shall be conducted in a manner that
provides full and open competition.

Prohibition Against Exclusionary or Discriminatory Specifications

Apart from inconsistent requirements imposed by Federal statute or regulations, the contractor shall comply with
the requirements of 49 USC 5323(h)(2) by refraining from using any FTA assistance to support procurements
using exclusionary or discriminatory specifications.

Conformance with ITS National Architecture

Contractor shall conform, to the extent applicable, fo the National Intelligent Transportation Standards architecture
as required by SAFETEA-LU Section 5307(c), 23 U.S.C. Section 512 and as amended by MAP-21 23 U.8.C. §
517(d), note and follow the provisions of FTA Notice, "FTA National Architecture Policy on Transit Projects,” 66
Fed. Reg.1455 efseq., January 8, 2001, and any other implementing directives FTA may issue at a later date,
except to the extent FTA determines otherwise in writing.

Access Requirements for Persons with Disabilities

Contractor shall comply with 49 USC 5301(d), stating Federal policy that the eiderly and persons with disabilities
have the same rights as other persons to use mass transportation services and facilities and that specia! efforts
shall be made in pianning and designing those services and facilities to implement that policy. Contracter shall
also comply with all applicable requirements of Sec. 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (1873}, as amended, 28 USC
794, which prohibits discriminaticn on the basis of handicaps, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
(ADA), as amended, 42 USC 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities and services be made
available to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments thereto,

Notification of Fndera! articipation

To the extant required by law, in the :

(including constructlon services) having an aggregate value of $500.000 or more, rontractar shall specify the
e

ncement of any third party contrac

.-c-

anno

amount of Federal assistance as & percentage of the tctat cost of the third party coniract.

intarest of Maemhbore or

No members of, or delegates
benefit arising therefrom.

ineligibie Contractors and Subcontractors

Any name appearing upon the Comptroller General's list of ineligible contractors for federally-assisted contracts
shall be ineligible to act as a subcontractor for contractor pursuant to this contract, If contractor is on the
Comptroller General's list of ineligible contractors for federaily financed or assisted construction, the recipient shall
cancel, terminatle or suspend this contract.

Other Contract Requirements

To the extent not inconsistent with the foregoing Federal requirements, this contract shall also include those
provisions attached hereto, and shall comply with the recipient’s Procurement Guidelines, available upon request
from the recipient.

Compliance with Federal Regulations

Any contract entered pursuant to this solicitation shall contain the following provisions: All USDOT-required
contractual provisions, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F, are incorporated by reference. Anything to the
contrary herein notwithstanding, FTA mandated ierms shall control in the event of a conflict with other preovisions
contained in this Agreement. Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perfarm any act, or refuse to comply with
any graniee request that would cause the recipient to be in viclation of FTA terms and conditions. Contractor shall




comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including, without limitation, those
listed directly or incorporated by reference in the Master Agreement between the recipient and FTA, as may be
amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract. Contractor's failure to so comply shall
constitute a materiat breach of this contract.

Real Property

Any contract entered into shall contain the following provisions: Condractor shall at all times comply with all
applicable statutes and USDOT regulations, policies, procedures and directives governing the acquisition, use
and disposal of real property, including, but not limited to, 49 CFR 18.31-18.34, 49 CFR 19.30-18.37, 48 CFR Part
24, 49 CFR 5326 as amended by MAP-21, 49 CFR part 18 or 19, 49 USC 5334, appiicable FTA Circular 5010,
and FTA Master Agreement, as they may be amended or premulgated during the term of this contract.
Contractor's failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach cf this contract.

Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency

To the extent applicable and except fo the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing, the Recipient agrees
to comply with the poticies of Executive Order No. 13168, "Improving Access to Services far Persons with Limited
Engiish Proficiency,” 42 U.S.C. § 2000d 1 note, and with ihe provisions of U.8. DOT Notice, "DOT Guidance ic
Recipients cn Special Language Services to Limited English Proficient (LEF) Beneficiaries,” 70 Fed. Reg. 74087,
Decamber 14, 2005,

Environmental Justice

Except as the Federal Government determines ctherwise in writing, the Recipient agrees to premote
envircnmental justice by fallowing: (1)

Executive Order No. 12898, “Federa! Actions to Address Envirenmental Justice in Minerity Populations and Low-

1 3.C. 84321

income Popuiations,” February 11, 1854, 42 U.5.C. i hoie, facilitating compliance with that
ry
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Executive Order, and {2} DOT Crder 3610.2, "Depantmeant of Transpcrtat:c.". Acticns To Address Environmental
Justica in Minm-ih; Panulatinone and | ow-income anlllnhan "R2 Fed, IQr:\g 18! 77, April 15 1997 and (3) The

ncome Po ti £2 Fed. Reg. 1R3 pril 15,1897 ana (3)

D s
maost recent and applicable edition of FTA Circutar 4703.1, "Environmentat Justice Policy Guidance for Federal

Transit Administration Recipients,” August 15, 2012, to the extent consistent with applicable Federal iaws,

regulations, and guidance,

Envircnmente! Protecticns

Compliance is required with any applicable Federal laws imposing environmental and resource conservation
requirements for the project. Somie, but not ail, of the major Federal laws that may affect the project inciude: the
Mational Environmental Policy Act of 1959, the Clean Air Act; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act; the
comprehensive Environmental respense, Compensation and Liability Act, as well as environmental provisions with

federal regu[atlons and directives that may affect the pro;ect. Compliance is requured with any applicable Federal
iaws and regulations in effect now or that becorne effective in the future.

Geographic information and Related Spatial Data

Any project activities involving spatial data or geographic information systems activities financed with Federal
assistance are required to be consistent with the National Spatiat Data Infrastructure promuigated by the Federal
Geographic Data Committee, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing.

Federa! Single Audit Requirements for State Administered Federally Aid Funded Projects Only
Non Federal entities that expend $500,000 or more in a year in Federal awards from all sources are required to
comply with the Federal Single Audit Act provisions contained in U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular No. A 133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Prefit Organizations. Non Federal entities that
expend Federal awards from a single source may provide a program specific audit, as defined in the Circular. Non
Federal entities that expend less than $500,000 in a year in Federal awards from all sources are exempt from




Federal audit requirements for that year, except as noted in '3052.215(a), but records must be available for review
or audit by appropriate officials of the Federal and State agencies.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Identification Number

The municipal project sponsor is required to identify in its accounts all Federal awards received and expended,
and the Federal programs under which they were received. Federal program and award identification shall
include, as applicable, the CFDA title and number, award number and year, name of the Federal agency, and
name of the pass through entity.

CFDA number for the Federal Transportation Administration

A Recipient covered by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1986 and OMB Circular A-133, "Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations,” agrees to separately identify the expenditures for Federat
awards under the Recovery Act on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards {(SEFA) and the Data
Collection Form (SF-SAC) required by OMB Circular A-133. The Recipient agrees to accomplish this by

identifying expenditures for Federal awards made under Recovery Act separately on the SEFA, and as separate
rows under ltem 8 of Part [l on the SF-SAC by CFDA number, and inclusion of the prefix “ARRA” in identifying the
name of the Federal program on the SEFA and as the first characters in Item 9d of Part !l on the SF-SAC.




Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
Section a.

Separate contract goal for Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) participation
The State of New Hampshire, Department of Transportation has established an overall
goal of 1.63% for DBE participation in Federal Transit Administration funded contract in

lieu of the 10% national goal outlined in Section a. of the Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise Federal Clause.

By signing below the Contractor agrees to comply with the applicable Federal
Clauses,

Date: 5-1-2015

Company Name: Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Authorized Name: Michael Coughlin

Title: Chief BExecutive Officer







Federal Certifications




CERTIFICATION AND RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING

| Michael Coughlin, Chief Executive Qfficer , hereby certify
(Name and title of official)

On behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. that:
(Name of Bidder/Company Name)

» No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of
the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the
making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and
the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreeament.

If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid
to any person influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and
submit Standard Form — LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in
accordance with its instructions.

v

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in
the award documents Tor ail sub-awards at aii tiers {inciuding sub-contracis, sub-
grants and contracts under grants, loans, and cogperative agreements) and that

all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

v

This cetitification is a material represeniation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this transaction was made or enfered into. Submission of this certification is a
prerequisite for making or entsring info this fransaction imposed by 31 U.5.C. § 1352 (a5
amended by the Lobbying Disciosure Act of 1895). Any person who falis o fife the
required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 810,000 and not
more than §100,000 for each such failurs.

The undersigned certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents of the

statements submilted on or with this certification and understands that the provisions of
31 U.8.C. Section 3801, et seq., are applicable therefo.

Name of Bidder/Company Name _Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Type or print name_ Michael Coughlin

Signature of authorized representative \)\M M LSL - Date 5////8

Signature of notary and SEAL ——~J #4¢ &y - gf?é»fvf/é—q

SU2ANNE O, FRENCH
Notary Public « New Hampshire
#4y Bommisslon Expires Juna 19, 2018




GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (NONPROCUREMENT)

Instructions for Certification: By signing and submitting this bid or proposal, the
prospective lower tier participant is providing the signed certification set out below.

(1) It will comply and facilitate compliance with U.S. DOT regulations,
“Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment,” 2 CFR part 1200, which adopts and
supplements the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (U.S. OMB) “Guidelines to
Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement),” 2
CFR part 180,

(2) To the best of its knowledge and belief, that its Principals and Subrecipients at the
first tier:

a. Are eligible to participate in covered transactions of any Federal department or
agency and are not presently:

ﬂnh:rrnd
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Suspended,

Proposed for debarment,
Declared ineligible,
Voluntarily excluded, or
Disqualified,

——— — i—
Lo N IV . N W LN
B S )

cr

——
.
.\
- O
|
2
1%5]
E!
[=]
=
[}
—h
iy
-5
)
[
[0S
Ci
=ty
.l
)
i
¢!
)
1
)
Y
3
5
i
13
5
3
,.
)
-
t+
"
1
5
+

J -
=

t
3 e
rrnrnn 1l'\r'i TO ANDTaiN
FRiiig Rl Wk Lt

r X
arformine a e (Fadaral Qi—:rn Ar ineall
ok i R S T = V L] LY

(8]
o 4 Rl e R A LT - AL

transaction, or contract under 3 public transaction,
(2) Viclation uf a“y Federal or State antitrust statute, or
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destruction of records, making any false statement, or receiving stolen

property,

¢. Itis not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminalily or civilly charged by a
governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the
offenses listed in the preceding subsection 2.b of this Certification,

d. It has not had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local)
terminated for cause or default within a three-year period preceding this
Certification,

e. If, at a later time, it receives any information that contradicts the statements
of subsections 2.a - 2.d above, it will promptly provide that information to
FTA,




GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (NONPROCUREMENT)

f. 1t will treat each lower tier contract or lower tier subcontract under its Project
as a covered lower tier contract for purposes of 2 CFR part 1200 and 2 CFR part
180 if it:

(1) Equals or exceeds $25,000,
(2) Is for audit services, or
{3) Requires the consent of a Federal official, and

g. It will require that each covered lower tier contractor and subcontractor:
(1) Comply and facilitate compliance with the Federal requirements of 2 CFR
parts 180 and 1200, and
(2) Assure that each lower tier participant in its Project is not presently
declared by any Federal department or agency to be:
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Project,

Declared ineligible to participate in its federally funded Project,

e. Voluntarily excluded from participation in its federally funded Project,
or

f. Disqualified from participation in its federaily funded Project, and
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Contractor _ Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc,

S A A
Signature of Authorized Official __\MAsA~S W\\ st Date & /t /1S
Name and Title of Contractor’s Authorized Official _Michael Coughlin, CEQ
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To the Board of Directors of PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. CERTIFIED PURLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Berlin, New Hampshire WOLFEBORO » NORTH CONWAY
DOVER » CONCORD
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT STRATHAM

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tri-County Community Action
Program, fnc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2014, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with acceunting principles gensrally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, impiemeniation, and maintenance of internal control reievant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from materiai
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial stalemants based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accerdanca with zuditing standards genera!l ;m_,n_er_i i the Unite
Stetes of America and the standards appilcabie o financiai audlt ntained in Govemrrem
Audmng Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require thal we plan and parform the audit to obtain reasonable asst %z‘ﬁrce about whether the

financial staternents are free from materlal misstatemen

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
iudgment, inciuding the ssssssment of the nisks of material misstatement of the financial
state"nents whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intsrnal control reievant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’'s internal contrei. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

-t

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate tc provide &
basis for our audit opinion.

Cpinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financiai position of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. as of June 30, 2014, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.




Other Matters
Prior Period Adjustment

The financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program, inc. as of June 30, 2013,
were audited by other auditors whose report dated March 31, 2014 expressed a qualified
opinion on those financial statements. The reason for the qualified opinion on the fiscal year
2013 statements was that the Organization had not previously classified the difference between
its assets and liabilities as unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and
permanently restricted net assets based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. The previous auditor stated that the effects on the financial statements of that
departure were not readily determinable. As discussed in Note 14 to the financial statements,
the Organization has adjusted its 2013 financial statements to retrospectively apply the change
in temporarily restricted net assets. The other auditors reporied on the financial statements
before the retrospective adjustment.

As part of our audit of the fiscal year 2014 financial statements, we also audited the adjustments
described in Note 14 that were recorded to restate the fiscal year 2013 financial statements. In
our opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not
engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the 2013 financial statements of the
Organization other than with respect to the adjusimenis and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2013 financial statements as a whole.

Cther Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whale. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit

Y T R A P YT T

Crganizations, is presenied for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements Such information is the resnonsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directty {o the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial staiements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures it accordance with audiling standards generaity accepied in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in 2ll material respects, in relation to the
financiai statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 18, 2015, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Frogram, inc.’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program,
inc.'s internal controt over financial reporting and compliance.

Lot Helbnne] i oy te
rsfitind) Qiaoeicbin

January 18, 2015
North Conway, New Hampshire




TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 3 375,389
Accounts receivable 833,677
Invenicries 66,039
Prepaid expenses 27,286
Other assets 818
Total current assets 1,303,219
PROPERTY
Property, plant, and equipment 10,782,988
Less accumulated denreciation 4018 978)
Praperty, net 6,764 012
OTHER ASSETS
Restricted cash 704 665
Building refinance costs, net 16,252
Total other zssets 720,817
TOTAL ASSETS $ 8788148

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt $ 315,312
Demand note payable 501,051
Accounts pavabie 652,705
Accrued compensated absenses 277778
Accrued salaries 111,488
Accrued expenses 112,335
Refundabie advances 224,571
Cther liabilities 405,583
Total current liabilities 2,600,832

LLONG TERM BDEBT
Long term debt, net of current portion 4,253,883
Interest rate swap at fair value 45,713
Total lizbilities 6,004,438

NET ASSETS

Unresfricted 1,220,487
Temporarily restricted 663,213
Total net assets 1,883,710
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 8,788148

See Notes to Financial Statements
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T COMMUNITY S PRI
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant and contracts $ 14,550,759 5 - $ 14,550,759
Program funding 1,430,906 - 1,430,906
Utility programs 1,235,250 - 1,235,250
In-kind contributions 141,303 - 141,303
Contributions 253,696 - 253,696
Fundraising 48,388 - 48,388
Rental income 742,117 - 742,117
Interest income 877 - 877
Gain on disposal 4,404 - 4,404
Qther revenue 258,500 - 256,500
Total revenues and other support 18,664,200 - 18,664,200
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS 59,623 {59.923) -

|

|

|

\

|

1 . "

| Total revenues, other support, and
net asseis reieased from restrictions

18,724,123

(56.623)

18,664,200

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Prograrmn Services:

Agency fund 1,020,464 - 1,620,464
Head Start 2,004,565 - 2,004,585
Guardianship 725,580 - 725,580
Transportation 974,583 - 974 583
Valunieer 103,631 - 103,631
Workforce development 520,858 - 520,858
Alcohol and cther drugs 1,032,132 - 1,032,132
Carroll County dentai 484 838 - 484 888
Carroll County restorative justice 18G,275 - 160,275
Support canter 23R 810 - 238,514
Homeless 468,841 - 468,841
Energy aid cennnuiiiy deveispment 7,790,706 - 7,750,708
Eider 1,068,155 - 1,068,155

Total program services 16,554,217 - 16,564 217

Supporiing Activities:

General and adminigtrative 1,257 658 - 1,227 558

Fundraising 5678 - 5,678

Total supporing aclivilies 1,233,334 - 1,233.334

Totz! functiona! exmenses 17,787,851 - 17,787 551

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FROM OPERATIONS 936,572 {55,923) 876,649
OTHER INCOME ARD (EXPENSE)

Gain on interest rate swap 32,937 32,937
TOTAL CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 969,509 (58,823) 909,586
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR (AS ORIGINALLY STATED) (227,714) i,125,522 357,808

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT {NOTE 14) 478,702 {402,386) 76,316
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR (RESTATED) 250,988 723,136 974,124
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR § 1,220,497 683,213 $ 1,883,710

See Notes to Financial Statements
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TRILCOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC,

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to recancile change in net assets o
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Gain on disposal of property
Gzin on interest rate swap
(Increase) decrease in assats:
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Due from insurance
Prapaid expensas
Other assets
Ingreags (decraase) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

ther liabilities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

= e y _
Froceeds from disposal of property

Purchass of proparty and equipment

Net repavment of demand note payable
Repayment of long-term debt
Repaymaent of captial lease obligation
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BALANCE, END OF YEAR
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest

See Notes to Financial Statements
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$ 909,586

379,543
(4,404)
{32,937}

(73,140
132,610

(1,018
41,353

(14,234)
502

(505,581}
17,428
34,078
(5,322)
213,275

_ (62247)

4 29 ACD
)k, -

37,

4,404
(177.038)

(7% 8343
11r4,0234)

(184,5386)
(347,318)
(41,284)

{573,138)
286,720

88,679

$ 375388

§ 247,825
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NOTE 1.

TRI-COUNTY CONIMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of activities
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the Organization) is a New Hampshire
non-profit corporation that operates a wide variety of community service programs
which are funded primarily through grants or contracts from various federal, state,
and local agencies.

The Organization’s programs consist of the foliowing:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides centrai program management
support and oversight to our many individual programs. This includes
planning and budget development, bookkeeping and accounting, payroll
and HR services, iegal and audit services, IT support, management
support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaiscn between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.. Board of Direclors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

ponsibilities include the management and allocation of fundin
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization’s real estate property.

©Q

An example is The Northern Forest Heritage Park (the Park), which
provides hundreds of individuals with an educationai experience as they
visit a full-size replica logging camp, interactive exhibits, the Brown
Company House Museum, the Artisans' Display Gallery and gift shop, as
well as boat tours, cultural festivals, demonstrations, and competitions. The
Park is also available for community and famity events.

Head Start

Head Start serves hundreds of children and their families in multiple
classrooms and locations throughout three counties. Research
demonstrates that children who are healthy learn better. Due to this fact,
parents in our program receive assistance in completing medical and
dental exams for their children. To further assist in breaking the cycle of
poverty, each family enrolled in Head Start receives assistance in
completing a family needs assessment, and subsequent support in
achieving their self-sufficiency and personal improvement goals.




Guardianship
The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian

services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medicai
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity.

Transportation
The Organization’s transit program provides various transportation

services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Crganization's fleet of 18
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the gensral nublic.

Volunteer

Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains a
minimum corps of 330 volunteers, ages 55 and older. These volunteers
share their skills, life experiences, and time with over 50 local non-profit
and public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer

assisiance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 50,000 hours yearly.

Workforce Development
The Organization is assisting iransitional and dis paced workars as they
prpn::trra 'F('\T news hQ ﬁﬂd aiso assisﬁng Cuﬂ‘m +he eulplnyeﬂ uJor (ers tC .
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gain the skiils required for better jobs.
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Tne Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with iraining facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy family (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skilis, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Alcohol & Other Drugs (AQOD)
Services provided through the AOD program include assisting the

b 2
alcohelic/addicted person on the road to recovery, through three phases:

Crisis Intervention, Sobriety Maintenance, and Assessment and Referral to
appropriate treatment facilities. The Residential Treatment Programs
(Friendship House) provide chemically dependent individuals with the
fundamental tools of recovery, including educational classes, greup and
individual counseling, work and recreational therapy, and attendance at in-
house and community-based alcoholics anonymous and narcotics
anonymous meetings. The AOD program also offers assistance with its
impaired driver programs.




The Friendship House, in December of 2014, had approximately $130,000
worth of investments and improvements due to assistance from Public
Services of New Hampshire.

Carroll County Dental

The Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers high quality oral health
care to children with NH Medicaid coverage. The Organization also serves
uninsured and underinsured children and adults using a sliding fee scale
that offers income-based discounts for care. The Center accepts most
common dental insurances for those who have commercial dental
insurance coverage. A school-based project of the Dental Center, School
Smiles, offers oral health education, screening, treatment and referrals for
treatment to over 1,000 children in 9 schools in the vicinity of the Center.

3 v peleg ] ]
framework of Balanced and Restorative Justice. Two kay components
this process are personal accouniability for one's actions (diversion) and
alternative conflict resolution (mediation). Services are provided by in-
house staff, volunteers, and parinered relations with other local service
providers.

(o

[ o JUYOUr N o YR S

DU IOFL 2T

Tihvm Dlemmmiratian's Crimeeard Mamtar AF Riralk WHaties de A AAarasotisn anA
LI 1) u:vc.u e Cati1: o UUPV\JII AN AW B R RS ) AL (R R W] [ R AW P Pl i [+ AN I ENenP bW el YN
cavuzl vinlence crigis canter that nrovides direct service and shelter o
sexuzl viciencs Cnsis cenier that provides girect service ang snellier o

o~ — a b - s A g~

victims of domestic and sexual violence in Northemn Grafton County
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civic and community groups, as wall ag to other health and human service
professionais in the area

Supports groups for victims and survivers are provided all year long. Cpen
24 hours a day, services include: Crisis intervention, emergency shelter,
court, hospital and police advocacy and accompaniment, support groups,
violence prevention programs reach out to students in grades 4-12 and
community cutreach trainings and professional presentations to civic and
community groups, as well as to other health and human service

professionals in the area.

Homeiess

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients. The
Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to help
preserve older housing stock.




Enerqgy and Development. and Community Contact

Energy programs provide fuel assistance, electric assistance, utility
conservation, and weatherization measures including insulation, air-
sealing, energy efficient lighting and refrigerators, hot water conservation
measures, minor home repairs, and replacement windows and doors.

Eight Community Contact sites allow for local participant access.
Applications for energy assistance program, rental security deposit
assistance and other emergency services are taken at these community
contact offices. These offices also provide information fo the
Organization’s clients about their other programs and programs available
through other organizations in the community.

Elder

The Organization's Elder program provides senior meals in 12 community
dining sites, home-delivered meals (Mezals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. Adult Day Services including respite for those caring for an
adult who requires assistance with activities of daily living, support groups,
caregiver education, and in-home assessments. The Coos County
Servicelink Aging & Disability Resource Center assists with Medicare
counseling, Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and

caregiver supports.

Method of accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with accounting principies generailly accepted in the
United States of America, as promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards

H [y
Board {(FASB) Accounting Standards Codificatit

revenues, other than contributions, and expenses are reported when incurred
without regard to the date of receipt or payment of cash.

tion {ASC) Under this basis

I SRR U Ualo 1

Basis of presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the FASB in its
Accounting Standard Codification No. 958 Financial Statements of Not-For-Profit
Crganizations. Under FASE ASC No. 958, the Grganization is required to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes
of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and
permanently restricted net assets. The Organization had no permanently restricted
net assets at June 30, 2014. The Organization had temporarily restricted net assets

) i H e ompmibn o ad Ten RF ok
of $863,213 at June 30, 2014 after the prior period adjustment as described in Nots

Restricted and unrestricted support

Contfributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or
permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in temporarily
or permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction.
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When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as
net assets released from restrictions.

Unrestricted net assets include revenues and expenses and contributions
which are not subject to any donor imposed restrictions. Unrestricted net
assets can be board designated by the Board of Directors for special projects
and expenditures.

Temporarily restricted net assets include contributions for which time
restrictions or donor- imposed restrictions have not yet been met. When a
restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restriction.

Permanently restricted net assets include gifts which require, by donor
restriction, that the carpus be invested in perpetuity ard only the income or a2
portion thereof (excluding capital gains restricted by State statute) be made
available for program operations in accordance with donor restrictions. The
Organization had no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2014,

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be receivad to seil an asset or paid 1o
transfer a liability (i.e. the "exit price”) in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measursment date. The accounting standards for fair vaiues
estabiishes a hierarchy for inpuis used in measuring fair vaive thal maximizes
the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of uncbservabis

requiring that the mest observable inputs be used when availabie. Observable
inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liabiiity
developed based on market daia oblained from sources independent oF e
the Organizaticn's

inputs by
HEISL Y L

.
L

Organization. Unobservable inpuls are inputs that reflact
assumptions about the assumptions market participants wouid use in pricing the
asset or liability deveioped based on the best information available in the
circumstances. The hierarchy is classified into three levels based on the reliability
of inputs as foliows:

Level 1: Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Organization has the ability to access. Since
valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available
in an active market, vatuation of these products does not entail a significant
degree of judgment.

Level 2: Valuation is determined from quoted prices for simiiar assets or
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in markets
that are not active or by model-based technigues in which all significant inputs
are observable in the market.

Level 3: Valuations based on inputs that are uncbservable and significant to
the overall fair value measurement. The degree of judgment exercised in
determining fair value is greatest for instruments categorized as Level 3.

11




The availability of observable inputs can vary and is affected by a wide variety of
factors, including, the type of asset/liability, whether the asset/liability is established
in the marketplace, and other characteristics particular to the transaction. To the
extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or
unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value requires more judgment.
in certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels
of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purposes the level in the
fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls is
determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety.

Fair value is a market-based measure considered from the perspective of a market
participant rather than an entity-specific measure. Therefore, even when market
assumptions are not readily available, assumptions are required to reflect those that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or f'a_,.luy at the measuremeant

date.

Loel.

As disclosed in Note 6, the note payable which bears monthly interest of 65% of the
sum of the one month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 3.25%, when
the Organization's debt service coverage ratio is 1.10; or 3.00% when the
Organization's debt service coverage ratio is 1.20. The Organization's purpose in
entering into a swap arrangement was to hedge against the risk of interest rate
increases on the related variabie rate debt and not to hold the instrument for tradmg

purposes. The Crganization pays inierest at a fixed 3.85%. The arrangemem is
scheduled to expire on August 2040, The notiona! amount of the contract was
$3,145,412. Accordingly, the swap arrangement, which is a derivative financial

instrument, is classified as a cash flow hedge.
For the year e Jun 2 . e swap was
$49.712 and the unreslized g in was $22 027 The fair value of the sy <
included on the balance sheet as a long term hcbili‘y No amounts have been
reclassified as interest expense and based upon the Organization’s inient to hold
the derivative until expiration they do not expect to reclassify any unrealized gains

or losses to interest expense.

waran i
S t

Accounts Receivabie
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects fo collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounis due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based upon reimbursement for
sxpendltures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivabie baiance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
and paricipants in the alcohol and other drug treatment programs. Past due
receivables are written off at management's discretion using the direct write off
method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles generally
accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write method
approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts to be
written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts receivable,
and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as length of
time outstanding.

12




The Organization does not charge interest on outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.
Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation. Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is
included in the indirect cost pool and charged to the programs in accordance with
the indirect cost plan. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as

Buildings and improvements 20toc 4C years
Vehicles 5to 8 years
Furniture and Equipment 5to 15 years

G|

rants received in aavance are recorded as refundable advances an scoghized
as revenue in the pericd in which the related cervices or aypenditures zre
nerfarmed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor condiiions being met
aggregated $224, 571 as of June 30, 2014

onprofit tax statuse

he Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c) (3} organization of the internal
Revenue Code. It has been classified as an Organization that is nct a private
foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitabie
contribution deduction for individual donors. The Organization files information
returns in the United Staies. The Organization is no longer subject {0 examinations by
tax authorities for years prior to 2008.

-

The Organization foliows FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The
Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions , therefcre, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not been
recognized.

The Organization’s Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt from Income
Tax), subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after it is filed.
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Retirement plan
The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of

Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to contribute
to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee may elect
salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits allowed in the
Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the Organization's annual
discretion. In January 2013, payments had ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2014,
there were no discretionary contributions recorded.  Further information can be
obtained from the Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded as
restricted support. In the absence of such stipulations, contributions of noncash
assets are recorded as unrestricted support.

Donated property and eguipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
valug at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as unrestricied support
unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets
donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that
must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted support.
Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be
maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the
donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The
Organization reciassifies temporarily resiricted net assets to unrestricted nei assets
at that time

Use of estimates
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted

accounting princinles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reporied amounts
of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activiies have been

summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain

gosts,f have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
enefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various program
and supporting services based on actual or estimated time empioyees spend
on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of the each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

14




NOTE 2.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses

include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation _expense is aflocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
supplemental statements of functional expenses. Depreciation applicable to
assets which are used by multiple programs, primarily buildings, is charged to
the benefiting program based upon an analysis of square footage. The same
calculation is used to allocate other building costs including insurance. These
costs are reported as space costs on the supplemental statements of
functional expenses.

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage: huilding liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.

Thea Olrg»:n ization submi ropncnl for the pgnr-l lacun frlngc

izatior cost
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013 received

V
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provisional appr oval and is effective untll ameanded. The raie is 12.3%.
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Advertising poiicy
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o m ] bl bl mf mapmimme A sl i A miirred The tmtal
U&Icla GJIU IIG ""VGHOUIII V LW e | ey VIUGG M VGIL!Q tl\_—; l"‘ GAHCIIJGU GQ Itlul_! [WPLNN Pt LLCy)

cost of advertising for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $11,778.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with
financial institutions, and investments with criginal maturities of three months or
less. At year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances
were deposited with multipie financial institutions. At June 30, 2014, the balances
on interest and non-inierest bearing accounts were insured by the FDIC up to
$250,000. At June 30, 2014, there was approximately $487,000 of depesits held in
excess of the FDIC limit. Management believes the Organization is not exposed to
any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and considers this a normal
business risk.

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 6. The required balance in the
account is $52,497 and is restricted from withdrawal except to make payments of
debt service or as approved by the US Department of Agriculture. Amounts
withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with monthly
deposits untif the maximum reguired depaosit balance is achieved.

15




NOTE 4.

The balance as of June 30, 2014 was $6,218. The Organization was not in
compliance with this requirement however, in May 2013, the client began making
the required monthly deposits of $437. This amount is included in restricted cash
on the Statement of Financial Position.

The Qrganization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 6}. The required balance in the
account is $186,516 and is equal to the interest payments on the bond for a 12
month period. The balance as of June 30, 2014 was $187,107, and the
Organization was in compliance with this requirement. This amount is included in
restricted cash on the Statement of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other curreni iiabiiities. The total current liability related to this
withdrawal at June 30, 2014 was $403,588. These amounts are included in other
liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position. The total restricted cash within this
account at June 30, 2014 was $398,354, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Staiement of Financial Position.

During fiscal year 2013, the Court Appointed Special Trustee requested and
received $225,000 from private donors. These funds were restricted to use by the
Special Trustee under his individua!l authority. As of June 30, 2014, the remaining
balance of these funds is $112,285. This amount is included in restricted cash on
the Statement of Financial Position.

INVENTORY

In 2014, inventory included weatherization materials which have been purchased in
bulk. These ilems are valued at the most recent cost. A physicai inventory is taken
annuaily. Costis determined using the first-in, first-out (FiFO) method.

PROPERTY
Property consists of the following at June 30, 2014:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value
Building $7,972,540 $2448604 $5523,936
Equipment 2,214 981 1,570,372 3,785,353
Land 505 467 - 595 467

$10,782,988 34018976 $6,764012

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.
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NOTE 5.

NOTE 6.

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $378,065.

The Organization also had building refinancing costs of $17,730. Amortization
expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $1,478.

ACCRUED EARNED TIME

Employees of the Organization are eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of
240 hours. At June 30, 2014, the Organization had accrued a liability for future
annual leave time that its employees had eamned and vested in the amount of
$277,779.

LONG TERM DEBT
The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2014 consisted ¢f the

foliowing:

Ncte payable requiring 360 monthly installments
of $484 including interest at 5% per annum.
Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due March 2024, $ 447319

Note payable requiring 360 monthly instailments
of $1.746 including interest at 4.5% per annum.
Secured by genera! business assets. Final
installment due June 2024, 144,785

Note payabie reguiring 360 monthly instaliments
of $1,664 inciuding interest at 5% per annum.

o f . P 1
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installment due January 2027, 185,470

Note payable raquiring 360 monthly instaliments
of $292 including interest at 4.75% per annum.
Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due April 2030. 38,753

Note payable requiring 360 monthly instaliments
of $74 including interest at 4.75% per annum.
Secured by general business assets. Final
instaiiment due June 2028. 8,50

Note payable requiring 120 mon
of $475 including interest at 4.25% per annum.
Secured by a first mortgage on a business condo.

Final instaliment due December 2015. 8,340

Note payable requiring 120 monthly installments
of $3,798 including interest at 6.75% per annum.
Secured by first mortgages on two commercial
properties. Final installment due April 2021. 459,945
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Note payable to a related party, interest accrues
6% per annum, no monthly installments, full
principal amount plus interest is due August 2012,
informally extended. 26,170

Note payable to a non-profit organization (related
party}, interest accrues 6% per annum, no
monthly installments, full principal plus interest
due during the Organization's fiscal year end
2013, informally extended. 149,866

Bond payable requiring monthly installments of
$15,260 including interest adjusted by a swap
agreement with a fixed rate of 3.85%, adjusted by
the difference between the fixed amount and a
rate of interest equai o 69% of the sum of the 1
month LIBOR rate plus 3.25% ({(when the
Organization's debt service coverage ratio is
1.10) or 3.00% (when the Organization’s debt
service coverage ratio is 1.20). Secured by first
commercial real estale morigage on various
properties and assignment of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040, 3,016,863

Note payable requiring 240 menthly insialiments
of $4,518 including interest at 4.18% per annum.
Secured by second mortgage on commercial
property. Final installment due December 2032. 485,182
4,569,205
Less current porticn due within one year {315,312}

[ate m A Acn aonn
L

5 4,253,883
The scheduled maturities of long term debt as of June 30, 2014 were as foilows:

Years ending

June 30 Amount
2015 $ 315312
2018 142 626
2017 146,154
2018 545,838
2018 134,263

Thereafter 3,284 912
3 4569205

As described at Note 2, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first six notes payable listed above. In May 2013, the
Organization began making monthly deposits to the reserve account, but had not
yet accumulated the required balance.
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NOTE 7.

NOTE 8.

Failure to meet this requirement may be construed by the Government to constitute
default: however, the awarding agency is aware of this issue and has not made a
request for advanced payment. The balance in this account as of June 30, 2014
was $6,219.

As described at Note 2, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank related to the bond payable listed above. Additionally, the Organization
is required to maintain a debt coverage ratio of 1:1.10 as stipulated in the loan
agreement.

DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE
The Organization has available a $45,000 unsecured line of credit with Northway
Bank, at June 30, 2014. Borrowings under the line bear interest at 6. 50% per annum,

P e

znd totaled $33,811 at June 3G, 2514, respectively. The iine of credit is unsecursd.

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with TD Bank which was
secured with real estate mortgages and assignments of leases and rents on various
properties as disciosed in the line of credit agreement.  Borrowings under the iine
bear interest at 4.25% per annum, and totated $400,000 at June 30, 2014. The line is
subject to renewal each January.

The Organization has available a $25,000 line of credit with Bank of New Hampshire
which is secured with all business assets of the Northern Forest Heritage Fark.
Borrowings under the iine bear interesi at 4.25% per annum, and otaksd $16,007 &t
June 30, 2014,

Thym D S R i N i ~E A im T A itk $ 3
The Organization was issued a revelving line of credit in 2014 with the New
[ H - | nAd A b
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Hampshire Deparment of Administration Seivices. Gi
outstanding debt totaled $58,838, which ingl di

LEASES

Capital Leases

The Organization leased equipment from Leaf Financial Corporation under the
terms of a capital lease. The economic substance of the lease was that the
Organization was financing the acquisition of the assets through the lease, and
accordingly, it was reccrded in the Organization's assets and liabilities. In 2014, the

remaining balance was paid off and the balance was subsequently reduced to zero.

Operating Leases

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various stariing dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has
several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For the year ended
June 30, 2014, the annual rent expense for leased facilities was $188,455.
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Minimum future rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2014, are as follows:

Years ending

June 30 Amount
2015 $ 171,566
2016 83,1186
2017 81,757
2018 83,531
2019 70,938

Thereafter 282,000
782.906

Rent expense for the vear ended June 30, 2014 totaled $714,004,

NOTE 9. [IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the

T ki A Eldae
9‘"’""‘””“”9‘ pO' cy degcribed in Mote 1. The Head Start {, Transportation and Cider

Programs raly heavrly on \_folunteers who donate their services to the
Organization. These services are vaiued based upon the comparative market
wage for similar paid positions. The Organization is also the beneficiary of a
donation of in kind in the form of below market rent for some of the facilities

utilized by the Head Start and Elder Prinuﬁllit The '\ja!f_e of the in.kind rent is

recorded at the difference between the rental payment and the market rate for the
property based upon a recent appraisal.

Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities
of the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

NOTE 10. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Organization receives a large majority of its support from federal and state
Government: For the year ended June 'J.ﬂ 2014 :lpprnvnm:'l’ai\r 4:14 N1R 996

e e

\73%) of the Orgdnizatlons total revenue was received from federal and state
governments. |f a significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would
have an effect on the Organization’s programs and activities.
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NOTE 11. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2014

NH Charitable Foundation Grant, Mt. Jasper $ 32,653
Donations to Special Trustees 50,000
Champagne Family Rescue 616
Berlin Area Renewable Energy Initiative 18,838
Transitions in Caregiving Plus 3,235
10 Bricks Shelter Funds 107,221
Fuel Assistance Emergency Fund 8,688
Donations to Mahoosuc Trail 1,842
Carroll County Transit Program 7,954
Community Centact 3,943
Donations to Mapie Fund 1,825
Private Funding for Fuel Assistance Program 145,178
Pellet Stove Frogram 25,000
Private Funding for Head Start 26,028
Loan Programs 153
Private Funding for Alcohol and Other Drug Program 50,060
Funding for Tyler Blain House 12,585
North Country Transit Other 22,041
Restricted Buiidings 140,802
Total temporarily restricted net assels

Grant Compliance

The Organization received funds under severai federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with varicus stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmental Contingencies

On March 30, 2009 the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company. The exterior scil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department’s satisfaction.




NOTE 14.

in addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard fo site occupants, area residents, and the
environment provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Other Liabilities

During fiscal year 2012, the Organization withdrew $375,000 from an account
entrusted to the Organization as part of the Guardianship Program (see Note 2).
This unauthorized withdrawal was reported to the New Hampshire Assistant
Attorney General of the Charitable Trust Division and an agreement was reached to
replenish the account. The Organization returned $191,000 during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013 and $184 000 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 to
the Guardianship Services Program account.

In addition to the requirement to return the funds, the Organization was assessed a
fee of $5,244 related to the unauthorized use of these funds. This amount was still
outstanding at June 30, 2014 as no official notice or request for payment had been
received by the Organization.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Ag disclosed in Neote € the Organization has 2 lcan payable io the wife of the
former Chief Executive Officer. Also in Note 8 the Organization has a loan payable
to a non-profit organization which also provides pass-through state and federal
funding for some of the Organization's programs. See Note 6 for terms of the note
nayables. Total note payables to related parties for the year ended June 30, 2014

was $176.036.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

The beginning net assets for 2014 have been restated to correctly classify
unrestricted and iemporarily restricted net assets. The prior auditors had modified
their audit opinion for the year ended June 30, 2013 with regards to these balances
stating that the Organization had previously not classified these net asset balances
appropriately. They also stated that the effects on the financial statements were not
reasonably determinable. During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Organization
reviewed their entire unrestricted and temporarily restricted net asset balances and
corrected this issue. Tie effect of the restatement was to increase unrestricied net
assels and decrease temporarily restricted net assets for 2013 by $402,386.

There was also another adjustment, totaling a net amount of $76,316, related to
refundable advances not recorded at June 30, 2013.




NOTE 15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 19,
2015, the date the financial statements were availabie to be issued.
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IRLCOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM,INC,

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Pass-thraugh
Entity Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass Through Identifying CFDA Federal
GrantorfProgram Title Number Numbar Expenditures
.8, Department of Health and Human Services
Direct
Head Start Q1CH1041/47 93.600 § 1,174,745
Head Start 01CH1041/48 93.600 854,228
FPassed through New Hampshire Office of Energy and Flanning
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance (Admin.) 1025875 93.568 86,708
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance (Assurance 16) 1025875 93.568 31,324
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance (Admin.) 1033340 83.568 384,079
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance (Program) 1033340 93.568 5,322,837
Low-Income Home Enerpy Assistance (Assusance 16) 1033340 93.568 103,269
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance (HRRP) 1025855 93.568 17,353
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance {HRRP) 1033552 23.568 72,444
Special Programs for the Aging - Title Ill, Part B - Grants for Supporiive Services and Senior Centers {SEAS) 14AANHT3SP 93.044 10,780
Passed through New Hempshira Health and Human Services
Communily Services Bicck Grant 1026068 93.569 112,288
Community Services Block Crant 102500731 G3.5588 486,833
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families {NHE® Workplace Success) 93.558 332,008
Ternparary Assistance for Needy Famiies {JARC) g2.558 24,300
Praventative Health and Health Services Block Grand (Cral Health Program) 90072003 53,891 16,617
Special Programs for the Aging - Tille I!l, Part D - Disease Prevenlion and Heallh Promolion Services (Sr Oral Health} 102-500731 93.043 210
Special Programs for the Aging - Tille 1L, Part B - Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centars (Adutt Medical) 1016485 93.044 2,449
Special Programs for the Aging - Title Hll, Part C - Nutrition Services (HD Meals) 1016499 93.045 157,945
Natianal Famity Caregiver Supperl, Tille fll, Parl E 1008784 93.0582 §,5M
Malional Family Caregiver Suppert, Title Ill, Part E 14AANHTFC 93,052 10,738
Special Programs for the Aging - Title Ill, Part B - Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers (Sr Wheels) 1016495 93,044 50,593
Medical Assistance Program (Assessment & Counseling #1) 1008784 53,778 20,908
Medical Assistance Program (Oplions Counseling and 1&R #7) 83.778 33,902
Madiral Assistance Program (Transponaiion) 8§3.77¢ 48,032
Nutrition Services incentive Program {(NSIP) 23.053 74,604
Sorial Servites Block Zrant Tile M 12D G-15301NA3OSR s3.607 5,19%
Sociat Services Blozk Grant (Title XX 18R) 1008784 92,667 2,062
Socizt Sarvices Bleck Crant {Tille XX Adik Daycars) 1016503 Q3667 2,134
Socist Services Block Grant {Tille XX HD Meals APS} 1016496 83.667 2,857
Social Services Block Grant {Title XY HD Meals) 1016495 $3.667 53,754
Special Programs for the Aging - Titke 1l Fart C - Nulditon Services {Congregasie Meais) 1016501 93.045 £€,558
Affordable Care Act - Aging and Disability Resource Canter (ADRC Opfionaly 0RO0028 23,517 14,544
Cuniers jor Medicare and Medicaid Services (5HiP) 1008784 93.779 7,325
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (SHIP) INDCMSE020220 83779 4,197
Speciai Pragrams for ne aging - Tite v anc Titie !l - Diseretonary Praecis (SMPF) 1008784 93048 3,084
Special Programs for the Aging - Title IV and Title !l - Discretionary Projects {SMFPP) SOMPO17E §3.045 7,354
Adminisiration for Community Living - Medicare Enraliment Assistance Pragram {MIPPA) £3.071 2,818
Ceniers ior Medicare and Medicai Services (Marketplace Assisier Services) 53.525 24,557
Passed Through Newr Mampshire Coalilion agains! Domestic end Sexual Violence
Family Violence Prevention and Services/Battered Women's Shelters - Grants to Slates and Indian Trbes (SPIRDV) 93.671 26,638
Family viclence Prevention and Services/Batlered Women's Shelters - Grants to States and incian Tribes (DVS) 93.671 22,884
FPazsed through New Hampshirs Division of Fublic Haalth Services
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse §5.858 260,450
Fassed through New Hampshire Division of Chiid Support Services
Projects far Assistence in Transition fram Homelessness (PATH) 23.150 79.829
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES: 10.021,622
U.5. Department of Energy
Passed through Govemor's Office of Energy and Community Services
Weaihenzation Assistance for Low-Income Persons 1033405 81.042 206,433
FPassed through NH Communily Development Finance Authonty
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program (Befler Buildings) 81.128 72,291
TOTAL LS. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY: 281.724
U.5. Corporation for Nationat and Comrmunity Service
Direct
Ralired and Senior Volunteer Program 4ASRANHDOY 94,002 72.754
TOTAL U.5. CORPORATICN FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE: 72,754




JRECOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION FROGRAM,ING,

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Pass-through Federal
Entity
Federal Grantor/Pass Through identifying CFDA Faderal
Grantor/Program Title Nurnber Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Direct
Supplemenial Nutrition Assisiance Program (food stamps) 10.551 €520
Rural Housing Presarvation Grants 10.433 4,392
Passed Through New Hampshire Dapariment of Education
Child and Agutt Care Food Prograrm 10.558 105,762
TOTAL LS. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE: 116,694
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Diract
Emergency Management Performance Grants {(FEMA) 126735 97.042 21.888
TOTAL U.5. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY: 21,889
.8, Depanment of Justice
Passeo through New Hampshine Coalifion Againsi Domestic and Sexyal Vipience
Crme Viclim Assistance (VOCA) 16.575 66,702
Sexual Assauit Services Farmuia Pregram (SASP) 201 2-KF-AX-0021 16.817 7.878
TOTAL 11.S DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE: 74,580
U.§. Department of Transportation
Passed through New Hampshire Depanment of Transporiation
formuta Grants for Rurai Areas {Section 5311) MNH-1B-X044 20.508 283,798
Jab Access and Reverse Commute Program {FTA- Section 5316} 20.516 37,386
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and individuats with Disabiities (5510 POS, NCC) hNH-65-X002 20.513 47,225
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and individuals with Disabililies (5310 POS, MWVEC) 20512 . 29258
TOTAL UL DEPARTMENT OF TRANSICRTATION 407 BCE

.3, Deparitieni vl Housinyg sny Uibal Guysioprienl
Passad through New Hampshire Office of Farily Services

Emergency Soiutions Grant Pregram 14,231 32812
Supporuve Housing Frogram (ROLP) 14 238 130,186
Fasseg through Mew Hampshire Health ang Humarn Services then Southwestern Community Services
Emarpency Solulions Grent Program [Rapid Ra-Housing and Pravantion) 14,21 40 126
TOTAL UG DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVEL OPMENT: 202.826
U.5 Bepartment of Labor
Passed thmugh New Hamnshim Dapartment of L ahar
WiA Adut Frogram 2005-005 17.258 54,318
WA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants 200%-505 i7.278 77,228
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR: 142,247
TCTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS S 11342002

NOTE A - BAS!S OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expendilures of federal awards ({the Schedule) includes the federal granl activity of Tri-County Communily Aclion Pregram, Inc. under programs of
the federal government for lhe year ended June 30, 2014. The information in this Sthedule is presented in accordance with the requiremenis of OMB Circular A-123, Audifs of
States, Local Govemmanls, and Nen-Profit Organizations. Because the Schedule presents only a selecied porion of the opsratiens of Tri-Countly Communily Aclion Program,
Inc., itis
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PROFESSHONAL ASSOUIATION

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

WOLFEBORO « NORTE CONAY
RI-COUN Cc NITY ACTI R DOVER » CONCORD
STRATHAM
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, inc.
Beriin, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroiler Genera!l of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2014, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related nciss o ihe financial stalements, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 19, 2015.

internai Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we consicerad Tri-County Community
Action Program inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) tc determine the audit
precedures ihat are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our cpinion on the
financial statements, but not for the nurnase of expressing an opinion on the effectivensss of Tri-County
Gommunity Action Program Inc.’s internal centrol. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.’s internal contral.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing thelr assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatemenis on a timely basis. A maferial weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a maierial weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Qur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal
control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to
be significant deficiencies: FS-2014-001, FS-2014-002, and FS-2014-003.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.’s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regufations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of cur testing of internal control and
compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Zggyz{ P Lanel/ ﬂéyé
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North Conway, New Hampshirs
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC, & RKoberts

TPROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROVOLFEBORO « RORTH CONAY
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133  DOVER + CONCORD

STRATHAM

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, inc. .
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2014. Tri-County Community Action Program inc.'s major federai programs
are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying scheduie of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, requlations, contracts, and
granis apgplicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responeibility is to express an opinicn on compliance for each of Tri- Codm, Community Action
Frogram Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of t types of compiiance requirements

8]
audit of com mpliance in zccordance with audifing standards

i i N e R

generally acc;bted in the LHJ'ubteHd States of Ame r a; the standards applicable to financial audits
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and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Slates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements rafarred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

s
referred tn zhove, We rconducted aun

3

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, [nc. complied, in all material respects, with the

types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014.
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Report on Iinternal Control Over Compliance

Management of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance raquirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, In¢.’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a controi over
compliance does not ailow management or empioyees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompiiance with a type ¢f compiiance
requirament of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, er combination of deficiencies, in internal controt cver compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
interna! control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compiiance, yet important enough to merit
attenticn by those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of intaernal control over comeliances wae for the limited nurnose dascribed in the first
oe 10N QT Imernal Conro! over cempiance was o ing imited purpoes ) 1 The Yirsy

paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intern i control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiercies in inrternal coniral over comp Iaﬁ:e that we consider fo be material weskr xesees Howsaver,

materizl weaknesses may exist that hav- nol been identified,

The purpose of this report on internai conirol over compliance is sulew to describe the sc ope of our
tagting of intarnal contro! ovaer compli o e (o f Bla it by o o cuirameanis ~F
oo LIII\J (L SR IR RN =] [RESASIRREE A=) Bup N | IIIJHGH\.JG Gllu 13!5 I¢QUILD [STERTEI-1Y LCJDLH!\.; uacCu Ull I.I!C leu P D L WY
OMB Circuiar A-133. Accordingly, this reporl is not suitabie for any other purpose.

Le av, e Lonet /@é/f
lofﬁﬁm/ Ls5cesmboins

North Conway, New Hampshire
January 19, 2013
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

1. The auditors’ report expresses an unmadified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.

2. Three significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Controf Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and are included in the Findings - Financial Statement Audit
below.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disciosed during the audit,

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported in the /ndependent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Contref Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

5. The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federai award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. There were no audit findings which the auditor wouid be required to report under section 510(a)
of OMRE Circular A-133,
7. The programs tested as major programs included:

Low Income Home Energy Assistance — CFDA #9093 568

Aging Cluster;
Special Praograms for the Aging — Title i Part B — CFDA #03 044
Special Programs for the Aging — Title lll, Part C — CFDA #83.045
Nutrition Services Incentive Program — CFDA #93.053

Community Services Bock Grant — CFDA #93 569

FHead Start — CFDA #93.600

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families — CFDA #93.558

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $340,260.

W
-

ri-County Community Action Program, inc. was determined not io be a iow-risk auditee,
FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
FS-2014-001

Condition: The Organization records their monthly receivables based on the invoicing done by
the Program Directors. The non-contract billings are recorded as miscellaneous receivables for
the year-end balance. Management reviews subsequent cash receipts to capture any
IEJayments tcr;at may have been overloocked by a Program Director when completing their reports
or year end.
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Criteria: A system needs tc be deveioped to ensure that all financial information, including the
receivable balances and estimates for allowance for doubtful accounts, is captured and reported
in the financiat statements.

Cause: Procedures have not been fully designed and implemented over the accounts
receivable in order to safeguard the assets.

Effect: Although we did not encounter receivables that were not properly recorded, there is the
risk that the miscellaneous receivables balance would be misstated.

Recommendation: The Organization should design and implement policies and procedures for
the recording, reporting and collection of ali receivables.

Management Response: Management agrees with this finding. Due to the structure of the

Organization, billing needs to be initiated by the program departments after reviewing their

monthly results from their records and the Organization's accounting system. The Finance

Depariment revnevs the revenue and expense rer\orts te review for flags (such as budget

‘v'ariances) inat indicate posssblc uniilled items due to an unaxpected revenue and expenss
u

[ %]
imbaiance. Monthly | mqumes are made of Depar‘mcnt Directors 10 ask about polential unbilied
items. Written procedures will be created for Directors and/or their designees {o {ollow tc help
prevent missed billings, receivable adjustments, and/or the accrual of as yet unhilled but earned
receivables.
FS-2014-002

Condition: The Organization failed o comply with the requirements to report net assets as
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted.

b Fomede
QPGS

Cr:terla The Orgamzatlon needs to have a process in piace to identify restrictions on grants

Cause: The predecessor auditor provided guidance to management on how to record the net

zssels,

Effact: The Organization required assisiance and guidance on how to caiculate the amount of
Federal funds included in temporarily rqurlr“fpd net assets, resulting in a prior period
adjustment.

Recommendation: The Organization needs io deveiop a policy tc properly record
dongtions and grante in the appropriate net asset classification.

Management Response: Management agrees with this finding. The predecessor auditor and
former fiscal management had discussicns related to the treatment of the net asset section.
The Organization decided to seek and ulilize the guidance of the predecessor auditor. Before
this finding current management was reviewing and guestioning the prior recommended nel
asset classifications. After review of documentation and consulting with the current auditors, the
current management concurs that net assets need to be classified differently and that specific
written instructions are required to insure proper classification in the future. Subsequent to
June 30, 2014, management analyzed the nel assel balances and posted adiustments to
properly classify net assets by restriction.at June 30 2014,

FS-2014-003

Condition: The Organization failed to design and implement procedures to control and monitor
the use of a certain bank account and the proper recording of another account.

Criteria: Controls over the bank accounts must be designed and impiemented to prevent, or
detect and correct, errors including misappropriations.

Cause: A lack of internal control procedures over the Organization’s bank accounts, noted
above, and the reconciliation of those accounts.
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Effect: One bank account was not properly recorded in the Organization's general ledger,
resulting in an adjustment to the trial balance. Anocther bank account was reported on a cash
basis, rather than an accrual basis, and had to be adjusted accordingly.

Recommendation: Management should further improve controls over the bank accounts in
order to ensure that they are being reported properly.

Management Response: Management agrees with this finding. Although immaterial to the
financial statements in this instance, Management agrees that all bank accounts need to be
recorded and reconciled properly due to the responsibility related to the custody of these cash
assets. The Organization has corrected the issue related to both referenced accounts above
and is performing further research to ensure no other such accounts have been omitted.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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IRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC,
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Financial Statement Audit

FS-2013-01

Condition: Although some improvements have been made since the prior year audit, the
financial reporting system continues to be inadequate in its ability to identify, capture, and
record information. Procedures to prevent, or detect and correct material misstatements in
the financial statements are not effective. Customary accounting procedures were not fully
implemented and those procedures which did exist were not consistently done in a timely
manner,

Audit fieldwork was scheduled to begin on Sertember 30, 2013, three months after the
fiscal year end. Although we held a pre-audit conference on June 13, 2013 and provided
the Chief Financial Officer with spacific requests for information, we did not receive an
adjusted frial balance until September 26, 2013 which, when received, was lzbeled as
"Draft”.

When we arrived to perform audit procedures, the client was in still in the process of
reconciiing revenues and total expendifures to a waorksheel used to prepare the draft
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA}. This process was required, because
as noled in the prior year audil deficiencies letter, there were maeany inaccuracies in the
pasting of revenue throughout the vear Many adiustments were required before the
financial reporting sysiem accurately repented the total revenues by program. Thereiore g
final SEFA could not be prepared until January 2014, This aiso made it dificuit for program
managers (o0 manage their programs since the ravenues as reportad (o them during the year

was incorrectiy allocated by source.

The financial reporting system was c¢losed on a monthiy basis withouf ensuring ali
accounts payabie invoices reiating to the pericd were posted. Entries for internai
expensss such as depreciation and ccoupancy costs were missing from ceverz! month end
reports, These errors not only caused an issue for program managers during the fiscal
vear bacause financial information used to support reimbursement regquests frequently
changed when these adjusiments were finally calculated and posied, but alsc caused
determining final expenditures by program exitremely difficult.

Additionally, although reconciliations of most balance sheet accounts had been prepared at
year end, there had been iittle to no effort made to reconciie the annuai amcunts for
payroll, depreciation, or occupancy costs to the trial balance. Our audit procedures found
issues with the depreciation and occupancy costs as reported on the trial balance which
were later correcied through adjusting entries.

It was also noted that on the Aging Cluster quarterly program service reports, that the
amounts reported as expenditures of the program were incorrect because the departments
are not receiving timely financial reperis with correct financial information.

Recommendation; The Organization should continue its efforts to further enhance and refine
the financial reporting system so that information can be obtained in a timely manner.

Prior Year Management Response: Management agrees with this finding.

The Organization did have difficulty with completing the preparation for the audit and
closing out the year, The prior year audit was not finished until March 31st, and it appears
that the new Chief Financial Officer and Senior Accountant, who started in May 2013 and
June 2013 respectively, spent their time acclimating themselves as best they could.
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The Organization was struggling to keep its doors open and much activity and effort was
being placed on survival activities like cash management. Management expects that closing
out the fiscal year and audit preparation will be much guicker in FY14 as the
Organization's financial stability has improved significantly and less staff time and energy
is diverted to survival efforts.

Management agrees with the finding that not all accounts payable expenses were being
properly recorded by the end of the posting period. Because the Organization was so
strapped for cash, it would close the monthly quickly, usually around the 5™ of the month, so
that it could send out billings. Some accounts payable invoicing was not being recorded in the
monthly posting period, usually due to a lag in receiving invoices from vendors. The
Organization would capture these payables in the next month.

Management sees this as a problematic process that frankly will probably continue until
there is an adequate cash reserve. The Organization is currently working on improving
cash reserves by selling off surplus real estate. The Lancaster property has already sold,
an offer has been made on the Ashland property (contingent upon a vote at Town
Meeting), and a proposal is being negotiated for the Northern Forest Heritage Park
property. The School Street property in Berlin is actively on the markel. As each propeny
closes, a portion of the proceeds will move inic a cash reserve account, so the
Organization will be able to remedy this problem over time.

Starting late in fiscal 2013, and continuing to the present time, on the advice of a consultant,
the Organization changed its methodoiogy of posting depreciation, posting to the departments
where the item is used, rather than to the whole agency. The posting is now done monthly,
rather than annually, as previously done.

Current Status: We have found significant improvement over the Organization's ability to
identify and record information, as well as the procedures o prevent, or detect and correct
material misstatements. We have identified one ftem {FS-2014-002) that we would consider to

be a significant deficiency that needs adjusiment in order to produce financial statements.

T ReTatly]
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Condition: Procedures for the recording of receivables are poorly designed  and

inadeguate to ensure reporting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
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I fiscal year 2012, the Organization began utilizing the account v medul

year 2 un !
financial reperting system. This system was used for a portion of the year and was not
ussd for all types of receivables. Programs with significant client activity such as the Dental
Center, Restorative Justice, Alcohol and OCther Drugs and Transporiation track their
receivables using a variety of systems which range from patient billing systems to excel
worksheets. Because the fiscal department does not track receivables for these program
areas, the finance depariment has no way to ensure that all receivables have been
recorged, an allowance has been established for doubtful accounts, or that collection
efforis are made to ensure payment is received,

Recommendation: The Organization should design and implement policies and procedures
for the recording, reporting and coliection of all receivables,

Prior Year Management Response: Management agrees with this finding.

In April, 2013 the Organization initiated the use of the "accounts receivable" module for
contract receivables. Later that year, the Organization also began the process of recording
receivables for non-contract billings, such as for Alcohol & Other Drugs and Dental
receivables. This is a new process for the Organization, but staff seems to be taking it
very seriously. Staff in the finance department now have a method to remind program
directors when non-contract receivable information is due. This has been a work in
progress, but management believes the information is much more accurate now.
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Receivables for the Alcohol & Other Drugs and Dental programs require more intensive
attention. The Chief Financial Officer is working with the leadership of those two programs,
both to collect what is collectable from old accounts, and to put procedures in piace to
better assure payments in the future. i is likely that there will always be some accoumis
from both of these programs that will remain uncollectable, due to the population the
Organization serves: low-income, transient, jail-bound in some cases. But we need to follow
best practices to ensure as much as possibie is collected at the point of service, and to stay
in touch with clients after they have left.

Current Status: The Organization records their monthly receivables based on invoicing done
by the Program Directors. The non-contract billings are recorded as miscellaneous
receivables for the year-end balance. Management reviews subsequent cash receipts to
capture any payments that may have been overlooked by a Program Director when
completing their reports for year end. If there was a delay in payment fo the Organization,
there is the risk that the miscellaneous receivables would be misstated. During our testing in
the current year, we noted the Organization had properly captured the appropriate receivabies
balance (F5-2014-001).

Condition; Although the Qrganization states in its accounting policies that it complies with
the requirements to frepont net asseis as unrestricied, temporarily restricted, and
permanently restricted, it appears that finance department personnel did not fully
understand the requirements related to each classification.

This was evidenced by the Chief Financial Officer clesing all temporarily restricted net
asset accounts from fiscal year 2012 into one summary account, thereby losing the detall
of which grant had remaining temporarily restricted funds to be expended.

it was further evidenced by the entries related to i 'vch.ules by the iransportation
program, the proceeds of which have to be used to reaccuire new vehicles. This amount was
recorded as sales revenue and not identified as temporarﬂy restricted proceeds until
guesticned by the suditor.
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tricted net assets at year end becaus unable to correctly ad
eporting system fo re,c:ort the total expenditu ures by program, de not have a
ace io calcuizie the restricied revenues in excess of expenditures once correctly adjusied,
and do not appear to be working toward developmg a methodology to corect this
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Recommendation: The Organization should develop a policy regarding the acceptance of
donations and other grants. This should be completed in conjunction with consideration of a
risk management policy. The Organization should create a standard form which should
include an identification of any restrictions imposed by the donors on the award since many
private donors fail to stipulate this in {heir own documentation. The finance department
empioyees as well as other program staff, should be educated on the preper classification of
net assets. The accounting system or other mechanism should be utilized te frack revenues
which are unexpended at the fiscal year end. If the donation is restricted as to the allowable
time frame for expenditure, then the donat;on should be returned to the donor. If there is NG
time restriction then they should record these assets as temporarily restricted in the financia
statements. These funds should be made available in the subseguent year for continuation of

the donated purpose.




Prior Year Management Response: Management agrees with this finding.

There is a policy regarding the acceptance of donations and other grants, but it appears to
be outdated, and does not include a standard form which would document the donor's
restrictions as to the use of funds. Management will work with the finance department to
ensure that the policy is updated and such a form is created. Moreover, the finance
department will be directed to create a simple, less cumbersome system to track expended
and unexpended grant and donation revenues, and record them accurately in the financial
statements.

Current Status: We noted that there were some items within temporarily restricted net assets
that related to programs and should be transferred to unrestricted, resulting in a prior period
adjustment (FS-2014-002).

FS-2013-04

Condition. Procedures to allocate shared occupancy costs to the benefiting programs were
inadequate and failed to allocate the costs accurately. Furthermore, reconciliation
procedures that would have identified the errors were not performed.

Recommendation. Procedures to identify, allocate and reconcile occupancy costs fo the
benefitting programs shouid be refined to ensure that all cosis are captured, properly
allocated and posted to the financial reporting system.

Prior Year Management Response: Management agrees with this finding.

FY 2013 was the first year that the Organization moved {o capiure occupancy costs
and assign them fo benefitting programs, rather than fo the agency as a whole. Naturaily,
with so many propenies, and so many programs, there have been some emors in
implementing this process. But it does seem to capture true programs costs much better than
the previous method. Management's position is that the agency needs to get this right, so
ihere is a process for cosi aiiocation that can be used in future years.

Management plans to review occupancy costs regularly, to ensure that they are captured.
Finance department now reconciles occupancy costs quarterty for accuracy, and this
practice will continue.

Current Status: During our testing. we noted that the costs were allocated properly and that
reconciilation procedures were periormed.

FS-2013-05

Condition: The listing of property and equipment as originally received from the
Organization did not include $661,615 of assets which were included in the total assets per
the trial balance. Further inquiry revealed that the Chief Financial Officer had ramoved the
assets from the listing because they were fully depreciated and planned to post a journal
entry to remove the asset balance and related deprecistion from the accounts. However,
no procedures were performed to identify if the assets were still in existence and still being
used by the Organization.

Recommendation: Design and implement a policy for property and equipment which
inciudes the requirement to periodically take a physical inventory of assets currently in use
and to update the fixed asset as needed for additions and disposals.

Prior Year Management Response: Management agrees with this finding.
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In the new Accounting Policy and Procedure Manual, there is a process for property and
equipment that allows the Organization to dispose of or write off fully depreciated assets.

During FY 2014, the Chief Operating Officer assigned an employee to list all property and
equipment in existence, and there is a draft that needs to be reviewed, so there is a listing
of all the Organization's assets in one place. This list will be reviewed at least annually in
the future.

Current Status: The assets mentioned were added back to the schedule and the full listing
was reviewed by management. Those assets that were no longer in existence, or in service,
were removed from the listing and the accounts were reconciled to the trial balance.

FS-2013-08

Condition: The Organization failed to design and implement procedures to control and
moniior the use of the crganizations bank accounts.

A test of the confrols over the bank reconciliation process identified missing reconciliations
for July 2013 for nine bank accounts used for the senior meal site locations, senjor wheels
program and the Head Start policy council. These bank accounts are reconciied at the
individual site/program locations and a copy of the reconciliation is to be sent to the fiscal
depariment for review. The July reconciliations had not been received by the fiscal
depariment as of Sepiember 3G, 2013, the first daie of audit fieldwork. Aithough the
reconciliation had been identified as missing by the Accounting Manager, the Chief
Financiat Officer had not requested or obtained the missing items. The balances in the
account were immaterial however; failure to monitor and enforce controls may create
opportunities for fraud or errors to go undetected.

Confirmations of account balances with banking institutions revealed two accounts with the

\nfﬁf\(‘:l‘\n“& r\llﬁrﬂhhl Cavimme Ranl i.ll"'\ll“’"‘l wiare nnt lietad in tha Tinansial ramArinn cuctam
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and appeared o have been overiooked. The accounis balances were immaterial however,
the accounts should be ciosed if ne Ionger being used. Bank accounts which are not
monitored and reconsiied may creaie opporiunities for frauduient activiiy.

Examination of the operating bank account reconciliation revealed an unusual adiustment
related to the line of credit. The operating account is tied to 2 line of credit whlch is
tomatically drawn upon when checks presen nted for pa yment exceed the avanable benk
! a mmwd b e e i Al Lo i B o L B e
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nk balance of $5832. The checks had nat been’ presented for payment and therefore
net b
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ine of credit had not heen ac d tc cover the overdra®, however, the Organization

recorded a reconciliation adjustment zo increase cash by the amount of availabie cradit on
the lne of credit. As z result, the bank balance and the line of credit balance were
overstated by the available credit line of $122,648.
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Recommendation: Because of the iiquid nature of cash, preventative controls should be
the first area of focus because controls often identify the error too late to prevent the loss
of resources. Management shouid further refine conirols over the bank accounts to
strengthen the internal control system.

Prior Year Management Response: Management agrees with this finding.
The need for betier controls of cash and bank accounts is a priority for the Organization's

management. In FY 2014, the Organization closed several smaller, probiematic accounts,
where getting programs managers to reconcile was a challenge.

The finance department will now reconcile all bank accounts monthly, before the month is
closed. The Organization management commits to ensuring that unusual practice, such as
writing checks that exceed the available cash, will not take place.




Current Status: There were bank reconciliations prepared monthly for ali bank accounts and
amounts agreed to the trial balance; however, we did note that the Head Start Policy Council
bank account was not properly recorded on the trial balance of the Organization and the
Guardianship account was being reported on a cash basis, rather than accrual basis, creating
twao adjusting entries {FS-2014-003).

FS-2013-07

Condition. Although the client is preparing a worksheet to reconcile the payroll reports
from the payroll module of the accounting system fo the quarterly 941 reports, the
reconciliation process did not include a reconciliation to the totals per the general ledger
accounts. Reconciling to the general ledger is an important control which helps to identify
miss-postings which may otherwise go unncticed due to the large dollar amount and
transaction volume processed through the payroll general ledger accounts. This control is
especially important at the Organization because the accounting system includes an
additional step of posting to a summary account and then allocating the costs to the
individual program general ledger accounts. Assuming that the amount posted to the
summary account equals the amount posted to the individual program general ledger
accounts  without verification could create an opportunity for errors or fraud to be
undstected.

Recommendation. Management should implement procedures to include a quarterly
reconciliation of the payroll information to the general ledger accounts.

Prior Year Management Response: Management agrees with this finding.

The Organization now has a process for reconciliation of payrolt at every payroll period.
This reconciliation is conducted by the Organization's senior accountant, and his work is
overseen by the Chief Financial Officer. Payroil is now being reconciled down to the
individual program general account lavel through the vesrio-dzte time sheet chargeg, by
the activity report in our accounting system.

Current Status: During our testing, we noted that the

reconciled to the 541 returns with no exceptions.

F5-2013-08

transactions which were included on a statement which spanned the fiscal ysar end. The
entry correctly recorded the lizbility, however the expenses were posted {o a summary
account which was included in misceilansous expenses rather than posting each expense
to the appropriate expense account. As a result, although the liability is correctly recorded,
the expense is not reported by natural classification or by function. Additionally, the expense
will not be included in expenses which were eligible for grant reimbursement.

Recommendation: Procedures should be implemented to ensure that all expenses are
posted to the correct general ledger account including those posted through general journal
entries.

Prior Year Management Response: Management agrees with this finding.

During FY 2014, the Organization created a new credit card policy designed to provide
better internal controls, and direct expenses to the programs where they belong. Beginning
in FY 2014, the Finance department is recording all outstanding payables down to the
grant award level. This should ensure more accurate accounting of expenses, and also
allow the Organization to capture all allowable federal and state reimbursements.

Current Status: During our testing, we noted that the credit card transactions were
appropriately recorded to the proper expense accounts and by function.
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FS-2013-09

Condition: Procedures over the control of the weatherization/better buildings materials
inventory are inadequate.

The Organization purchases inventory in bulk for use by all of the weatherization programs.
The materials used by the Better Buildings program are recorded on a worksheet and an
entry should be posted at year end to transfer the expense related to the program from a
general expense account to a Better Buildings program specific account. The Organization
failed to post this entry which caused the Better Building program costs to be understated
by approximately $39,300.

Additionally, the finance department makes one entry at the end of the fiscal year to adjust
the balance in the inventory account to agree to the value calculated from a physical count.
However, no procedure exists to track and record the value of the items removed from
inventory to ensure that all inventory has beern accounted for and used for the
weatherization programs.

which would aliow the
can be nroperly recorded. In
| djustm nt at year end, costs
S Of misapproprigtions can be

Recommendation: The O”‘ nizetion should develep
tracking of items remove d from inventory so that .
this manner, the endmc inventery shouid recn_nre mm ma
can be properly aliocated by program, and any €
detected.

Prior Year Management Response: Management agrees with this finding.

Prior to FY 2014 there does not seem to have been zn adequate system for internai
control of the Weatherization materials inventory. Since that time, there has been a change
in ieadership in the program, and new procedures for tracking inventory.

Currently, as items are removed from inventory and used to weatherize homes, the
Weatherization Director tracks each job's actual use of materlals, as well as labor and

other expenses. The process of tracking expenses and revenues is oversesn by the
EHCCO Division Director and repcrted regularly to the Finance depariment. The CFO
reviews these inveniory usses, revenuss and expenses, z2rd makes \_.'a!ue ad)iustmengs in

the halance sheet nnarfprly The (‘)manw:tmn now conducts a a physical count of materials
nach quarter and captures these m gournal entrves Fmance oepartment haq aiqo created a

Current Status: During our testing we found that opdated cortrols wers in place over the
inventory and that the inventory was being reconciled. The Organization has improved their
internal controls over the last fiscal year and is still in the process of making updates to
improve their procedures. We noted during our testing of internal controls that thers were
missing signatures of approval and signs-offs on routing sheets; however, these appear to bs

isolated incidents.

FS-2013-10
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Condition; Managemem failed to Gesign and li“p‘cmc[‘u a pl’uucddrc to ensure tha
drawdown of federal funds was only for immediate needs and that reimbursement
requested only after the costs had been incurred.
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Advanced funding of $533,667 for program costs for the fuel assistance program funded
through federal CFDA $3.568 was received on 10/31/12. Expenditures for the grant period
had not been incurred however the funds were spent on organizational operating

expenses.

Recommendation: The Organization should continue in its efforts to design and
implement procedures to ensure that funds advanced by an awarding agency are
expended as closely as possible to receipt of the advance.
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Prior Year Management Response: Management agrees with this finding.

This particular finding is vital for the Organization's future program integrity. The
Organization MUST comply with cash management requirements regarding the drawdown
of an awarding agency's funds. Management believes that the spirit of the Auditor's
recommendation has been followed in FY 2014. For example, the Organization began a
procedure of drawdowns with Head Start and RSVP that guaranteed that funds were not
requested until payroll and accounts payable were completed and only represented costs
to date. Other major federal accounts such as CSBG were drawn only on a 1/12" basis, and
FAP monies were segregated into a separate restricted account which prohibited movement
of funds without dual signatories from Senior Management.

However, Management commits to taking the additional step of creating a pelicy and
procedure that contains language specifically referencing how monies advanced by an
awarding agency are to be treated.

Current Status: Corrected.

Single Audit
SA-2013-01

Condition: Our audit of the controls over the Better Buildings Program revealed that the
Organization failed to comply with Davis-Bacon Act wage requirements.

The current year issue was identified and reported by NH Community Development
Finance Authority during 2 monitoring visit in July 2013 and related to the June 2013
payroll. Additionally, we identified issues with the May 2013. Both of these emors were
aftar the fiscal 2012 deficiency letter was issued which identified a similar finding related to
the Weatherization Program.
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the NH Office of Energy and Planning within 7 days of pavroll processing. The Organization
did not comply with this reguirement.

Recommendation: The Organization should design and implement a system to comply
with Davis Bacon Wage reguirements.

—t

Prior Year Management Response: Management commils {o complying with Davis-Bacon

Act wage requirementis.

As of FY 2014, the Better Buildings program no longer exists. In future, when the
Organization takes on projects that are subject to Davis-Bacon, Management will ensure
that all requirements under the Act will be met. The Organization will seek the guidance of
an employment attorney to ensure its practices are designed to be fully compliant.

Current Status: Corrected.

SA 2013-02

Condition: The listing of property and eguipment did not include any information regarding
the source of funds used to acquire or improve each asset. Some of the asseis were
purchased with federal funds in accordance with grant requirements. However,
depreciation related to those assets would not be an allowable expenditure for grant
reimbursement. The Organization did not have a procedure in place to identify assets
purchased with federal funds and to ensure that the depreciation related to the assets was
charged to the correct program for proper financial reporting, but not included in expenses
submitted for reimbursement for grant compliance.

Recommendation: Procedures should be implemenied which would include the
identification of assets purchased with federal funds and a mechanism for tracking and
posting the related depreciation expense,
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Prior Year Management Response: Management agrees with this finding.

In FY 2014, the Finance department created a "Federal, un-reimbursable" code in its
accounting scftware, to keep track of non-allowable depreciation expenses.

Starting with a reminder to Program Directors in March, 2014, Management will take the
additional step of making sure Program Directors and Finance staff are all weli-versed in
the requirement to identify assets purchased with federal funds.

Current Status: Corrected.

SA 2013-03

Condition: Procedures have not been designed or implemented to allocate expenses to
grants with periods which differ from the Organization's fiscal year.

The Head Start grant year includes the period of February 1 to January 31 of each year.
Because the Organization did not post depreciation on a monthly basis until March of
2013, no depreciation was posted to the grant year which ended on January 31, 2013
However, 12 months of depraciation was posted to the grant year ending January 31, 2014
although only 5 months of depreciation was attributable to this time frame.

Similarly, in-kind occupancy costs were not allocated to the correct grant year, No in-kind
occupancy costs were charged to the grant year which ended on January 31, 2013, Instead
all in-kind occupancy costs were charged to the grant year ended January 31, 2014.

Recommendation: Posting expenses on a monthly basis will help to alleviate issues related
to differing grant periods. However, careful review of financial information by an individual
independent of the preparation will help to identify errors with calculations and application
of allacation mathods.

Prior Year Management Response: Management agrees with this finging.

-y =
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it appears that when the Organization began posting ex;
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Management appreciates the Auditor's suggestion that the Qrganization should not oniy
post expenses on a monthly basis, but also provide a careful review by someone not
involved in the preparation, as a check against errors. The current process is that the
Senior Accountant prepares the journal entries for grant accounts monthly, and these entries
zre reviewed and approved by the Chief Financial Officer monthly.

Current Status: Corrected.

SA 2013-04

Condition: Controls over the accumulation of allowable costs and related reimbursement
requests for the Better Buldings program were inadeguate.

Testing of reimbursement requests for 3 out of 10 requesis submitted during the fiscal year
identified 2 out of the 3 requesis selected couid not be reconciied to the financiai
reporting system. In both cases, the administrative costs did not agree to the financial
reports. Additionally, in one case the program costs did not agree to the financial reports.
Of the 3 requests tested, 2 requests were not approved by the appropriate personnel.

Because the grant remained cpen after the current fiscal year end, the Organization had
an opportunity to research and correct the issue prior to the grant close out.

Recommendation; Procedures must be designed and implemented which provide for the
accumulation of information which wili allow for an accurate reimbursement request,
supported by verifiable data to be prepared.
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Prior Year Management Response: Management agrees with this finding.

The new Weatherization Director has begun a reconciling process using accounting
software to put together reimbursements. He also cbtains signatures of senior staff, who
review his work prior to transmission of billing. This practice was begun October 2013 and
continues today.

Current Status; Corrected.
SA 2013-05

Condition: In testing expenditures for the Head Start program, we noted numerous
reimbursement requests which lacked the employee's signature and the approval of the
supervisor.

Recommendation: We recommend that procedures be impiemented which would require
proper approval of all invoices, including expense reimbursements prior to payment.

Prior Year Management Response: Management agrees with this finding.

in FY 14 a process was created where any employee requesting reimbursement is required
to prepare and sign the employee reimbursement form. A supervisor is required o review
and approve the reimbursement, and the Payroll Accountant is required to review the
reimbursement and make sure it was free of error, charged to the correct expense and
element codes, accompanied by adequate backup documents and appropriately approved.
The Payroll Accountant then requests the Chief Financial Officer signature on the document
before release of payment.

Current Status: Corrected,
SA 2013-06

Condition: In testing reporling required for the Aging ciuster, we noted that the reports for
the gquarter ended June 2013 were filed iate for both the transportation program as well as
the scn[or meals program. Additionally we noted that the nl'mbm of trins reported on the
March guarterly report for transpertation reported 64 fewer trips than were actually

b T k i s
reimbursed, Further inq:m-u with the Pr"'sacnu Durector revealed that the trips were p

reimbursed but were mistakeniy left off the quarteriy report,

It was aiso noted that on the Aging cluster quarterly program service reports, the amounts
reperied as expenditures of the program were incorrect.

Recommendation: We recommend that procedures be implemented which would require
a reconciliation of supporting data to the guarterly reports. We also recommend that a
schedule be developed {o ensure timely filing of reports.

Frior Year Management Response: Management agrees with this finding.

fn FY14 a process will be developed to ensure the timely filing of accurate reporis.

Current Status: Corracted.
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract
Beverly Raymond Transportation Director $£55,161.60 %.48 $26,201.76
Brenda Gagne Transit Operations Manager | $36,420.80 %.53 $19,120.92
Kenneth Hawkins Maintenance Manager $29,868.68 %.55 $16,427.84




Beverly Raymond
braymond@tccap.org

Objective:

To obtain a position where I can oversee and manage all aspects of an expanding human
service/public transportation program.

Qualifications:

2004 to Present
* Director of Tri-County CAP’s Transportation Programs.
Responsible for overseeing the planning and operations of the transit program.

1994 to 2004

* Assisted the Director of North Country Transit with program responsibilities. Served
as interim Director in the absence of a permanent Director.

* Human Resources and Safety Manager for Tri-County CAP, Inc., North Country
Elderly Programs.

1985 to 2004
*Coordinator of the Tri-County CAP, Inc., Healthy Older People’s Education (HOPE)
program, a wellness program providing direct service through a volunteer base.

1996 to 2001
*Co-proprietor and administrator for Luc’s Appraisal Services, an independent vehicle

adjusting firm serving over 25 insurance companies.

Committees and affiliations:

In 2004 I was asked to be a member of the Governor’s Task Force on Transportation.
This committee was formed under Executive Order from the Governor to develop a better
means of providing community transportation. The focus has been on the development
and implementation of a statewide coordinated brokerage system as a means of providing
transportation to the residents of New Hampshire.

In 2006 I became an appointed representative on the State Coordinating Council for the

4 s~
Community Action Program’s in NH. This Council oversees and provides direction on
the impilementation of a statewide coordinaied community transportation system.

I am a member of several Community Resource groups and attend meetings in and
outside of my service area to stay informed and also to inform the communities of what 1s
happening within Tri-County CAP’s transportation programs and the services being
provided. I view these groups as a step to working with other agencies toward a
coordinated transportation system.




I am a member of the Steering Committee and the Transportation Committee of our
regional planning commission, North Country Council (NCC). In 2008 I became the
Chair of the Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC). I have worked in conjunction
with NCC in the development of our regions Coordinated Transportation Plan. The plan
enables my program to qualify for FTA funding by being in compliance with the
requirement to have a Regional Coordinated transportation plan. The plan can be viewed
on my organizations website: www.tccap.org.

I am a member of the Community Transportation Association of America. Iam
receiving their assistance with current projects being undertaken by my program.

I was asked by CTAA to do a presentation at their 2006 Expo on the implementation of
our JARC system that began operation in January of 2006.

I received my certification as a Community Transporiation Manager in 2007 through the
Community Transportation Association of America.

I currently serve as Treasurer of the New Hampshire Transit Association and also serve
on their Legislative Committee.

I am a member of the Advisory Committee of the NHDOT’s Rural Transit Assistance
Program. [ am also an RTAP trainer certified to train in Emergency Evacuation
Procedures and Passenger Assistance.

I serve on the Emergency Preparedness committee in my region and chair a
subcommittee for transportation.

I am co-chair for Tri County CAP’s Safety Committee.

At present I am also working with a committee toward the development of an in
statewide brokerage for non emergency medical transportation for the NH Department of
Health and Human Services.

Education:

~(raduated Berlin high School in 1974, majoring in College Preparatory Business
Classes

~Currently attending classcs at the University of New Hampshire, Granite State College,
pursuing a Bachelors Degree in Behavioral Sciences. I have taken classes beneficial to
the Director of Transportation position such as: Critical Thinking; Critical Anaiysis in
Behavioral Sciences; and Presentational Communications.

~Related seminars, workshops, and trainings:

I received my certification as a Certified Community Transportation Manager (CCTM) in
May of 2007, through the Community Transportation Association of America. This
certification requires extensive knowledge in the areas of transit operations and
management. Areas include: Human Resource Management, Financial Management,




Operation Management, Transit Development, Procurement and Contracting, and
Professional Development

Participated in the Northern New England Dialogue sponsored by Center for Independent
Living and Easter Seals Project Action, May of 2007, on “Improving the Coordination of
Accessible Transportation”

Attended the 2007 NH Conference on Statewide Emergency Preparedness

Team Member of a team that was selected to participate at the Easter Seals Mobility
Conference in Washington, DC in 2006

Other educational components related to transit operations and management includes:
Volunteer Management, NHDOT & FTA Supervisory Drug & Alcohol, Dispatching and
Scheduling, Handling Difficult People, Fundamentals of Personnel Law for Managers
and Supervisors, Supervision for Nonprofit Managers, Staying legal. .. What Nonprofits

Maury

Need to Know About Criminal Records and Identification, Cost Allocation for Transit

L)

Managers, Transit Service Planning, ADA Requirements, and have atiended and attended
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vanous trainings at CTAA Expos 2005 and 2006, and the 17 h Rural, Pubiic, and Intercity
Tribal Transportation Conference, 2006.

Memberships:

The Governor’s Task Force on Community Transportation

The State Coordinating Council for statewide coordinated community transportation

New Hampshire Transit Association, Concord, NH

SAL

North Country Council Steering Conunittee
Chair of the Transportation Advisory Committee

Co-Chair of the Tri County Community Action Program, Safety Committee




Brenda Gagne
Transportation Operations Manager
Tri County Community Action Program Inc.

Professional Summary:

Successful management of the day to day aspects of Public Transportation routes and

Demand Response transportation program including daily operations, statistical data reporting, Federal grant
writing, warrant articles, Federal quarterly reports, facility management, accounting, staff management;
monitoring productivity goals; and keeping current on FTA and DOT procedures and policies. Proficient in
Microsoft excel, word, publisher and power point.

Experience:

Tri-County CAP, Inc.
North Country Transit
31 Pleasant St. Suite 100
Berlin NH 03570
603-752-1741
7/2004-Present

Operations Manager

R pcgnno;k”;fi eq nelndar
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*QOverseeing daily operations of a public transit and Para transit service.
*Facility Management.

*Gathering statistice

*Quarterly reporting to NHDOT and BEAS.
*Preparing quarterly invoices to BEAS and NHDOT
*Weekly employee scheduling, staff management.
*Creating procedure manuals

*Grant writing

*Budget preparation

*Wniing Warrant Articles

*Drug & Alcohol Testing

*Emergency Preparedness




Landscapes by Gary Weiss
9314 McConnell Rd.
Noodstock, IL 60098
2/2004 - 6/2004

(Temporary)

Accounts Manager/Office Manager
Administrative Assistant

Responsibilities included;
* Accounts payable, accounts receivable, invoicing, preparing customer statements, *Preparing waivers, AIA
G702 & G703 forms, IDOT (Illinois Dept. Of Transportation)
* Billing payroll, working with Windows XP, Microsoft Word, Excel, Quickbooks Pro
2004, preparing Bids, data entry.
*Phone communications and general receptionist and secretarial duties.
*Customer Service.

Mountain Village Construction
P.O. Box 96

Milan, N.H. 03588
1-603-449-9916

5/1995 - 172004

Accounts Manager/Office Manager
Administrative Assistant

Resnonsibilities included;

*Customer service.

* Accounting using Quick Books Pro.

*Preparing payroll and Tax Paymcnts.

*Preparing Customer Statements and Invoices.
*Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable.
*Creating and running Profit and Loss Reports.

*Data Entry.

*Phone communications and general secretarial duties.




Milan Parks and Recreation Dept.
2.0. Box 300

Milan, N.H. 03588
1-603-449-2484

6/1997 - 3/2002

Parks and Recreation Director
Responsibilities included;

*Directed and implemented sports and recreational programs for youth and adults for the
Towns of Milan, West Milan, and Dummer.

*Development of new programs and year round activities,

*Producing yearly budgets.

*Equipment and materials purchasing.

*QOrganizing and supervising a large Volunteer staff.

*Working with the public to create new programs.

*Coordinating with the Milan Village School on athletic and after school programs.

* Applying for Federal and State Grants.

Education:

Graduate Gorham High School
Gorham NH 6/1979

\_r\)l—‘lA Se
Fundamentals of Successful Project Management
Manchester NH 10/2004

NHDOT Sponsored Cour,

NHDOT Sponsored Course
MTAP/RTAP Financial Management Course
Concord NH 11/2004

NHDOT Sponsored Course

Basics of Facilities Management Seminar
(Facility Maintenance Plan)

Manchester NH 6/2005

NHDOT Sponsored Workshop
Transit Security Workshop
Concord NH 8/2005

-



Grant Writing Workshop
New Hampshire Community Technical College
Berlin NH 10/2005

NHDOT Sponsored Workshop
FTA Drug & Alcohol Workshop
Concord NH 11/2005

NHDOT Sponsored Workshop
Emergency Planning and Disaster Management
Manchester NH 8/13/2006

NH Conference on Statewide Emergency Preparedness
6/2007

Certified Training and Safety Reviewer
Community Transportation Association of America
June 2009

Certified Safety and Security Officer
Community Transportation Association of America
10/2012

National Transit Institute
Procurement for Small and Medium Transit Systems
10/9/2012-10/10/2612

Tri State Transit Conference
/7007

1072008
1072010
9/2012

Granite State College
Emergency Management
9/2005 — 12/2007

Continuing Education
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MONDAY--FRIDAY
Main St. 7:00 9:00 11:00 1:00 3:00

AG Resource Ctr.

Brookside

AVH 748 15 11:15 1:15 3:15
NHCTC

Brown School

St. Anne 7:35 9:35 11:35 1:35 3:35
CCFHS(B)

IGA

Wai-Mart 7:55 9:55 11:55 1:.55 3:556

Mtn. Vailey Plaza.
Fam. Res. 47 1047 12:17 2:17 4:17

Gorham Com.

Birch Grove
Prom. Court
CCFHS(G) &:30 10:30 12:30 2:30 4:30
Wal-Mart &:40 10:40 12:40 2:40 4:40

LAST STOP 4:45 MAIN ST. BERLIN

SATURDAY SCHEDULE
Main St. 9:00 10:45 1:00 2:45
AG Resource Ctr.
Brookside
AVH 9:15 11:00 1:15 3:00

Brown School

St. Anne 9:25 11:10 1:25 3:15
CCFHS5(B)

IGA

Wal Mart 9:50 11:35 1:50 3:40

Mtn. Valley Plaza

Fam. Res. 10:12 11:59 2:14 4:02
Gorham Com.

Birch Grove

Prom. Court

CCFHS(G) 10:25 12:12 2:27 4:15
Wal-Mart 10:35 12:22 2:37 4:25

**Drivers Lunch 12:30-1:00**

LAST STOP 4:30 MAIN ST. BERLIN

The bus may have to deviate so departure times are
approximate. Riders are encouraged to call ahead for
pickup times at locations between the scheduled stops.
Flag Downs are Welcomed!

Hours of Operation

Monday-Friday
7:00 am to 4:45 pm
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MONDAY - FRIDAY SCHEDULE

BUS COURTESY

*Wheelchairs must be secured. Shaw’s 8:10 10:25 1:30 4:00
Hmmm”m_nm%_ mﬁ_ﬁxmﬂmﬂm King’s Square 8:30 10:45 2:00

Emmco.:m of m:<.£:a and . O__oﬁmmo St. 8:45 11:00 meo

disruptive behavior or profanity is Littleton Reg. Hosp. 9:05 11:25 2:45

prohibited. Wal-Mart 9:20 12:05 3:15
*Please reserve front seats for the Industrial Park By request only
*m_amzu\. . Ammonusuc Clinic 9:35 12:25 3:25

Pets of other animals are King’s Square 9:55 12:50  3:45

prohibited.
* Seatbelts must be worn at all times.
(Except service animals)
*Packages limited to what rider can carry (Drivers Lunch 11:30-12:00)
and safely store under their seats.
Oversized items and furniture are not
allowed on bus.
*Failure to abide by these rules, will
result in you being asked to leave the
vehicle, or not being permitted on board.

Mma cancellations or schedule %%m%m **Call 1-888-997-2020 in advance for pick up at: Mountain View Grand, Weeks Med.

ue to weather, listen to your local radio Ctr., Parker Village, Main St. Littleton, Lowe’s Home Depot and Shaw’s. The bus will
and TV stations or call our office. ’ . -
deviate to these places as it travels the route.**

Departure times are approximate.

This Route deviates )
up to 1/4 mile from route as long as it Monday—Friday
is safe to do so. Riders are 8:00 am — 4:00pm
encouraged to call ahead for pickup
times at locations between scheduled All Day Fare
stops. $3.00
Flag downs are welcomed! Multi-day
15 day Pass for $40.00 or 30 day
Pass for $75.00

(Passes do not have to be used on consecutive days)

*All passengers must wear a seathelt*
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Hours of Operation/Service Areas
Effective March 5, 2012

N. Conway/Conway/Albany/Madison
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday,
Friday
8:30 am to 3:00 pm
Thursday’s 8:30 am to 12:30 pm

Tamworth/Chercorua

Moultonborough/Sandwich

Monday, Tuesday, Friday
10:00 am to 4:00 pm

Freedom/Effingham
Tuesdays — 10:00 am to 4:00 pm

Ossipee/Moultonborough/Citr. Harbor
Wednesday — 10:00 am to 4:00 pm

Ossipee to Wolfeboro

Thursday — 10:00 am to 4:00 pm

FARES

Elderly & Disabled: suggested donations
are accepted

General Public: Posted prices or ask your
driver

Due to inclement weather, The Blue Loon
may suspend service. Closings can be
monitored on local radio stations, and on
Blue Loon voicemail. Clients with
scheduled appointments are called to
make them aware of the service closing.

Closed Holidays

Dial A Ride

Is a service in which individual passengers
can request a ride within a service area to
go from one specific location to another
specific location at a requested time.

24 Hour Advance Trip Scheduling is
required. Schedule Monday trips on the
Friday before.

Same day service can e requested but is
not guaranteed
Return trips must be scheduled 1 hour
before the system stops operating

How to use the Service

Call a scheduler toll free at 1-866-752-
6890 to schedule your trip. Provide
them with your name, phone number,
trip request time, pick up location,
destinatior, and inform
them if you require any special assistance.
Pick up times may vary within
a %2 hour window before or after the
requested time so please be ready early.

for pagsengers.

The Blue Loon’s Dial A Ride operates
under an “open door” policy. Elderly and
Disabled passengers are given priority for

medical appointments. However, the

general public will be schedulzd if space
and scheduling permits.

Tri County CAP, Inc. does not
discriminate against an individual based
upon the person’s race, color,
disability, or national origin.

Animals

With the exception of service animals,
other animals are not allowed.

Shopping bags and parcels

-must be stowed under the seat, on the floor
in front of the seated passenger and
- must remain out of the bus aisle

Eating, drinking, smoking solicitations,
weapons of any kind and disruptive
behavior and speech is prohibited.
Passengers not abiding by these rules will
be asked to leave the bus,

The Blue Loon’s mission is to provide safe,
reliable, accessible, and affordable
transportation to help individuals maintain
their wellness, independence, and dignity.




S3[2IYdA 9|qISS9IIY
Jileydjaaym

ERIPNETS
apry-e-jeiqg

SNO3JN0YD
‘a|qenojwo) ‘ajeg

0689-26.-998-1

J1|qnd |elauds) ay) pue
pajqesiq ‘Apep|3 ay) Jo4
opIng sisply
«SOOB|d NOA a)e] [|9M,,

weibold ou] ‘dvD AJunon-u| v

uooT anjg ay|

"0689-24.-998~1
9914 1oL
Jysuel] fjunoy) jjodaen
Joejuod aseajd “IsALq
Ja9junjop e Bunuoosaq
ui pajsadajul a1.noA Jj
‘papiroid diiy sad abes|iw
J18Y} Jo} pasinquial
3l SISALIQ J5O)UN|OA
"SBAJR IDIAINS
Jenbai 1no Jo apisyno
sjuawiuiodde esipau
aAey oym sisbusssed
10} S9DIYdA jeuosiad
umo J1ay} Buisn
uoneyiodsueldy spinosd
SJ92JUNJOA “weabou
[ed1pay asueysiq Huo
ANO 10§ SIBALIP JOIJLINJOA
10} Bunjoo; shemje
S| U0OT dnjyg ay L

Sro0-deooymmm

0689-29L-998-1
‘[rea din e snpayds oy,

0S18-€7¢-€09
988¢0 HN Yiiomwre]
Any UreIunoy MM 8t
weidor
"ouy ‘qv) Aunoe) By v
ysuery, &KUNO)) [foIre)

.S90e|d noA aye) |1.aM\,

(L0D)
Hsueld] Ayjunon

joJ1en




Hours of Operation/Service Areas

Monday through Friday
8:00 am to 4:00 pm

Return trips must be scheduled
no later than 3:30 pm.

Closed Holidays

FARES

Elderly passengers: suggested donations
are accepted for service area.

General Public: Posted prices or ask
your driver

We provide transportation for Medicaid
recipients. Please call our offices for
more information.

Winter Closings
Due to inclement weather, North Coun-
try Transit may suspend service. Clos-
ings can be monitored on local radio
and
television stations, and on our dispatch
voicemail. Clients with scheduled
appointments are called to make them
aware of the service closing.

Dial A Ride

Is a service in which individual passengers
can request a ride within a service area to
go from one specific location to another
specific location at a requested (ime.

How to use the Service

Call a scheduler to make your reservation.
Provide them with your name, phone
number, trip request thine, pick up location,
and destination. The driver will arrive
promptly to transport you to your
destination and be back at the appointed
time for your return trip.

Return Trips must be scheduled no later
than 1 hour before system stops operating

Pick up times may vary within a !z hour
window before or after the requestad time
so please be ready early
Drivers will not wait longer than 5 minutes
for passengers.

24 Hour Advance Trip Scheduling is
required. Schedule Monday trips on the
Friday before. (Same day service can be
requested but may not get guaranteed)

North Country Transit’s Dial A Ride
operates as a public transportation service,
open to the general public.

Trip cancellation must be dorne an hour
or more before your scheduled trip

Animals

With the exception of service animals,
other animals are not allowed.

Shopping bags and parcels

-must be stowed under the seat, on the floor
in front of the seated passenger or on
passenger’s lap.

- Shopping bags and parcels must remain
out of the bus aisle and cannot take up a
seat if the seat is needed for a passenger.

Eating, drinking, smoking solicitations,
weapons of any kind and disruptive
behavior and speech is prohibited.
Passengers not abiding by these nules will
be asked to leave the bus.

North Country Transit’s mission is to
provide safe, reliable, accessible, and
affordable transportation to help individuals
maintain their wellness, independence, and
dignity.

Tri-County CAP Transit
31 Pleasant St
Berlin NH 03570

To schedule a trip call
Toll Free: 1-888-997-2020
752-1741
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